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Board and Committees

EXERERS

BOARD AND COMMITTEES
As at 17 July 2019

BOARD

Executive Directors

WANG Dongbin (Chairman)

WU Zhanjiang (Chief Executive Officer)*
WU Hongyuan (Executive President)*

LI Kangying

Independent Non-executive Directors
NG Kong Fat

HAN Bin

WANG Peng

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

NG Kong Fat (Chairman)
HAN Bin

WANG Peng

Nomination Committee
WANG Dongbin (Chairman)
HAN Bin

WANG Peng

Remuneration Committee
HAN Bin (Chairman)

WANG Dongbin

NG Kong Fat

* With effect from 1 June 2019, Mr. Wu Zhanjiang was appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wu
Hongyuan was re-designated as executive president of the
Company. Details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 May 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREREEAR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Dongbin, aged 51, is a founder of our Group
and our Chairman and executive Director. Mr. Wang is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for the overall business corporate strategies
planning and development of our Group.

He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in modern physics
application from Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 1990.
He obtained a master’'s degree in nuclear physics from
Tsinghua University in July 1992.

Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in the information
technology industry. Prior to founding of our Group, Mr.
Wang started his career in the industry when he was first
employed as a technical director by Beijing Teletron Internet
Technology Company Ltd. between May 1996 and June
2001. He then joined Becom Software Co, Ltd. as the general
manager between July 2001 and April 2008. Between May
2008 and July 2012, he was the executive director and
the general manager of Beijing Jietong Yishin Technology
Development Company Limited.

Mr. Wu Zhanjiang, aged 50, is a founder of the Group
and has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2019. He is primarily
responsible for overall operation and development of the
Group’s smart city loT and smart energy loT businesses. Mr.
Wu Zhanjiang graduated from North China Electric Power
University and obtained a master’s degree in Automation
of Electric Power System in March 1996. In 2015, Mr. Wu
Zhanjiang graduated from China Europe International
Business School and obtained EMBA certificate. Mr. Wu
Zhanjiang has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power industry in the PRC and has accumulated abundant
experience in technological research and development and
commercial application of smart city loT and smart energy
loT related areas.
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Directors and Senior Management
EESEgREREEAR

Mr. WU Hongyuan, aged 46, an executive Director of
the Company who has been re-designated from the post
of Chief Executive Officer of the Company to Executive
President of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019
due to strategic planning. He is primarily responsible for and
focus on the operation and management of our Group's
IOT. Mr. Wu Hongyuan joined our Group in December
2011 as the general manager of research and development
and customer service department of Along Grid and was
promoted to the general manager of Along Grid in April
2014. Mr. Wu Hongyuan graduated from Beijing Electricity
College (being incorporated into Beijing Jiaotong University
in 2000) in the PRC in July 1994, majoring in electricity
system communication.

Mr. Wu Hongyuan has over 20 years of experience in the
electric power selling and management system industry. Prior
to joining of our Group, he started his career as a teaching
staff in the information engineering department of North
China Electric Power University between July 1994 and
October 2007. He was then employed by the Beijing Puhua
Yalong Technology Company Limited as the deputy general
manager between November 2007 and December 2011.

Mr. Li Kangying, aged 62, is a founder of the Group and is
primarily responsible for investment and acquisition related
matters of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from North China
Electric Power University in December 1979 majoring in
telecommunication and has extensive experience in corporate
management in mainland China and Hong Kong.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kong Fat, Brian, aged 63, the independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 5 February 2018.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the University of Stirling in Scotland in 1983
and was admitted as a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland in May 1987. Mr. Ng has over 20
years of experience in corporate, investment and financial
management. Mr. Ng has served as an executive director of
Beijing Enterprises Environment Group Limited (stock code:
154), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and principally engaged in solid waste treatment
business in the PRC since July 1993.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEaREREEBAR

Mr. HAN Bin, aged 65, the independent non-executive
Director since 5 February 2018. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Company. He graduated from North China Electric Power
University (previously known as North China Electric Power
College) (“North China Electric Power University”) in the
PRC in December 1979, majoring in electricity system
communication.

Mr. Han Bin has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power selling and management system market in the PRC.
Between August 1989 and November 1992, he joined
Tsingtao Electricity Supply Company (previously known as
Tsingtao Electricity Affair Department) where he had worked
at various positions, including assistant engineer, engineer
and deputy head of the system operation department.
Between December 1992 and May 1999, he joined China
Fulin Wind Power Development Company where he had
worked as the deputy general manager of the project
department. Between June 1999 and October 2013, he
joined China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited
(previously known as Longyuan Power Group Limited) where
he had worked at various positions, including assistant of
the general manager, deputy chief engineer and project
development department officer.

Mr. WANG Peng, aged 45, the independent non-executive
Director of the Company since 5 February 2018. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He graduated from North China
Electric Power University in the PRC in July 1994, majoring
in electricity system and automation of electricity system. He
obtained a master’s degree in engineering from North China
Electric Power University in January 1997. He then obtained
a doctoral degree in electricity system and automation of
electricity system from North China Electric Power University
in April 2002.

Between April 1997 and May 2005, Mr. Wang Peng worked
in North China Electric Power University as a teaching staff.
Mr. Wang Peng was qualified as an associate professor from
North China Electric Power University in November 2003.
Between May 2005 and May 2015, he worked in National
Energy Administration North China Regulatory Authority)
(previously known as National Electricity Regulatory
Commission North China Regulatory Authority). Since May
2015, he has become a professor of North China Electric
Power University. Mr. Wang Peng is currently an independent
non-executive director of Sichuan Energy Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1713), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management
EESEgREREEAR

CHANGE OF INFORMATION RELATING TO DIRECTORS

Changes in directors’ information since the publication
date of the 2018 interim report of the Company until the
publication date of this 2019 annual report which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, are set out below:

BARB018FHRHFETIRBHER
AR2019F T A B IEB B EWARRISE
13.51BMEBE T HEMNESEREEEH W
T

Name of director Details of change EENSE BEFE

Wu Zhanjiang 1. Appointed as the Chief Executive REOT 1. B20195F6 A1 AR
Officer of the Company with ZREBRRETRE
effect from 1 June 2019 #

2. Entered into a service agreement
with the Company in respect of
the service as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company for a
term of three years commencing
on 1 June 2019 and shall be
entitled to an annual salary of
HK$120,000 and a discretionary
bonus with reference to the
Company’s remuneration policy.

Wu Hongyuan 1. Re-designated from the post
of Chief Executive Officer to
Executive President with effect
from 1 June 2019

2. Re-entered into a service
agreement with the Company in
respect of the service as Executive
President of the Company for a
term of three years commencing
on 1 June 2019
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEaREREEBAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Yanmin, aged 54, is the deputy general manager of
our Group. Mr. Li Yanmin joined our Group in October 2012
as the general manager of the research and development
and customer service department of our Group and was
promoted to the deputy general manager of our Group
in April 2016. He is primarily responsible for project
management for Software Systems and hardware of our
Group. Mr. Li Yanmin graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in electricity engineering from Wuhan University (previously
known as Wuhan Hydro Electricity Institute) in the PRC in July
1987. He obtained a master’s degree in electricity system and
automation of electricity system from North China Electric
Power University in January 1993.

Mr. Li Yanmin has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power selling and management system industry in the
PRC. Prior to joining our Group, between July 1987 and
September 1990, and between July 1993 and October
2007, Mr. Li served as a teacher in North China Electric
Power University. Between November 2007 and September
2012, he served as the deputy general manager of Beijing
Puhua Yalong Technology Company Limited, where he was
responsible for software and technology development.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. YUEN Wing Yan, Winnie, aged 48, the company
secretary of our Company since 30 November 2016
responsible for the company secretarial matters of our Group.
Ms. Yuen is a director of corporate services of Tricor Services
Limited (“Tricor”). She graduated from Lingnan College (now
known as Lingnan University). In October 2012, Ms. Yuen
was admitted as a fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom.

Ms. Yuen has over 20 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field providing professional corporate services
to Hong Kong listed companies, multinational, private and
offshore companies. Prior to joining Tricor in January 2004,
Ms. Yuen was a manager of company secretarial department
of Ernst & Young, Hong Kong responsible for company
secretarial matters. Ms. Yuen is currently the company
secretary of China First Chemical Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2121), Genes Tech Group Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8257), WuXi AppTec Co., Ltd. (stock code:
2359), and Shanghai Junshi Biosciences Co., Ltd. (stock code:
1877), all of which listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 (referred to as
“financial year”).

As an information and communication technology (“ICT")
service provider, the Group is dedicated to Industrial Internet
of Things (“loT” and “lloT") related technical innovation
and its application in smart energy loT and smart city loT
businesses. The Group provides tailor-made software and
solutions, technical services and hardware products to various
types of energy companies, government and corporate
customers.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 21st century, ICT has been becoming the main driver
for economic growth and productivity improvement. An
ever-increasing number of countries around the global has
been and are placing the upmost the importance on IT and
considered it as a fundamental and strategic part of national
economy and society prosperity.

From macro-economy wise, China is the process and in the
pivotal period of transforming economic development model,
improving industrial structure. The traditional extensive
economic growth pattern has exhibiting ever decreasing
momentum, while the new economic growth model as
characterised by technology advancement, management
improvement and higher labour calibres has been gaining
general acknowledgement and consensus. As such the
construction of “information infrastructure”, that is based on
new generation of ICT, is of upmost importance in leading
technology advancement and management improvement.
Accordingly, cloud computing, big data, loT and etc. have
becoming the underlying driving force across various sectors
and industries. From 2018 onwards, the importance and
potential lloT has also gaining overwhelming recognition by
major market participants, particularly with the development
5G technologies and its planned application.
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Chairman’s Statement

R

From industrial policy wise, state authorities has also
considered new generation of ICT is a core development
area and enlisted it into 13th Five Year Development Plan
for National Strategic Emerging Industries [+ = |B 5 &
BT A S B2 R AR E))). In 2018, Beijing, Shanghai Fujian
and various major municipal and provincial governments
have endorsed and implement policies to promote the
development of new generation of ICT and the construction
of underlying information infrastructure. Under such
circumstances, investments activities in information
technologies are expected to prosper and provide broad
opportunities and potentials for market participants.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2019 financial year, software and solutions (as
known as “software systems”) and technical services were
the bi-driving force of our business and source of income.
The Group continued to provide planning and consultation,
design and development, installation and implementation,
operational maintenance and various tailor-made software
and solutions as well as technical services to customers in
energy and public sectors, as well as government and various
corporates, so as to assist them to enhance technology
applications, as well as operations and service innovations.

In our existing smart energy business, leveraging our long-
term dedication and investments in technological research
and development (“R&D"), such as cloud computing,
big data and IoT, etc., the Group developed and further
enhanced OneForce Cloud Smart Energy Service Platform
("OneForce Cloud”) and Software as a Service (“SaaS")
business pattern, which enabled us to assist local and
medium-size electric power companies to increase
management efficiency and improve customer experience.
In 2019 financial year, at the meantime of strengthening
its trusted relationship with major customers such as State
Grid Corporation of China (“SGCC"), Inner Mongolia Power
(Group) Co., Ltd. (“IMPG") and Tianjin TEDA lJinlian Electric
Power Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin TEDA"), the Group further expand
business horizontally (new geographical areas) and vertically
(new product and service offerings) and markedly expanded
customer reach, namely: China Southern Power Grid Co.,
Ltd. (“CSG"), NARI Technology Co., Ltd. (“Nari”), the IT
subsidiaries of PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”)
and China National Offshore Qil Corporation (“CNOOC"),
and local government authorities.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®E

Meanwhile, which the development of urbanisation and
the acceleration of urban renewal, the Group completed
the Acquisition of the Target Group and its smart city and
loT related business during the year ended 31 March 20191,
Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Group successfully
marched into smart city related IoT business sector. By
leveraging technological know-how in electric power and
loT, the Group innovatively launched a comprehensive and
practical solution, “iPole”, for the implementation of smart
city projects and successfully developed our proprietary
product “mPoint”. Equipped with such solutions and project,
the Group is prepared and dedicated to exploring the brand-
new market as brought by the development of smart city and
related IoT infrastructure industry in the PRC.

The construction of the Group’s smart city loT project in
Beijing Mentougou ("MTG Project”) — 1st phase ("MTG-
1 Project”) has been completed and put into commercial
operation. Under the agreement reached with relevant
government authorities, the Group was granted an exclusive
concession right for a period of 10 year. By applying iPole
and mPoint, MTG-1 Project is the 1st smart city project of its
kind in the PRC that has been successfully implemented in
a whole entire municipal administrative area and in real life
environment. The complete construction and commercial
operation of MTG-1 Project not only showcased the
Group’s market-leading capability in the application and
implementation of smart city loT related project, it also
provides an invaluable pilot site for further R&D of new
technologies and products, both internally and externally
with our partners.

The Group has recently entered into the supplementary
agreement with relevant government authorities for the
development of smart city project in Beijing Mentougou
district (“MTG-2 Project”). Upon completion of construction,
MTG-2 Project will cover all major streets of central
Mentougou district and apply a vast range of new loT
technologies and applications, such as: 5G deployment,
intelligent transportation and internet of vehicles, as well
as various applications in relation to intelligent municipal
administration as well as more congenial environment for
civil and corporate citizens.

1 Reference is made to (i) the circular (“Circular”) of the Company
dated 15 January 2019; and (ii) the announcements of the
Company dated 29 November 2018 and 28 February 2019 in
relation to the Acquisition.
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Chairman’s Statement

R

Meanwhile, the Group has forged strategic cooperation
relationship with Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited
("BG") to leverage the opportunities brought by smart city
loT information infrastructure market in the upcoming years.
Via our firm and tight cooperation relationship with BG,
the Group intends to explore and roll-out our smart city loT
related solutions and projects in projects in Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region, Yangtze Economic Belt and Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. In February 2019,
the Group’s cooperation with BG has crystalised. The
Group's joint venture company with BG has entered into
a cooperation agreement with entered into a cooperation
agreement with Jiangsu Province Wuxi Airport Economic
Development Zone Administrative Commission in relation to
the development of smart city and big data centre projects in
local area.

In addition, the Group’s has also formed strategic and/
or project-wide cooperation relationship with a number of
esteemed and established parties, including China State
Construction Engineering Corporation (“CSCEC"), China
Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”), Aliyun Computing Co.,
Ltd. (“Aliyun”) and Beijing Kingsoftyun Internet Technologies
Co., Ltd. (“Kingsoftyun”), etc., to jointly explore smart city
loT related markets and business. Recently, the Group has
successfully landed our first cooperation project with CSCEC
in Tianjin Tanggu Bay by applying our iPole solution and
miPoint.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

The Group has accumulated abundant experience and
technological expertise in providing industrial IT services, in
particular, by serving and cooperating with SGCC, IMPG and
local electric power companies over the years, the Group has
successfully built up self-developed intellectual property rights
and comprehensive service network, and established trust-
worthy brand name and reputation in the market. We will
further leverage our strengths and capabilities in exploring
the brand-new opportunities brought by the construction of
loT information infrastructure.
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The Group has clear lloT-oriented business strategy in place,
which is also highly consistent with national economy and
industry development trend. By leveraging our technological
R&D and applications in cloud computing, big data
and loT etc., the Group will pro-actively participate into
the construction of new generation of loT information
infrastructure in smart energy and smart city sectors.

In smart energy business, the Group's long-serving customer,
SGCC, announced its outline to develop and construct the
ubiquitous electric power loT (27 S 1 ¥E:48), which
indeed is creating an intellectual data sharing service system
that connects all people and equipment in the entire power
system, by applying new and advanced information and
communication technologies, such as cloud computing, big
data and loT etc. The nature and substance of ubiquitous
electric power 10T is in line with the core development
concept of lloT, which not only brings more commercial
opportunities with SGCC to participate into related projects,
but also created valuable opportunities to cooperate with
various partners in the lloT sector. As the dominant market
player, SGCC's outline set up the tone of China's electric
power industry. Other market participants, such as CSG,
IMPG and other major local electric power companies, are
expected to join forces with SGCC, which means more
growth potential and business opportunities for the Group.

In smart city loT business, the Group has forged cooperation
relationship with BG and various state-owned entities. By
exercising respective advantages in technological expertise,
project resources and implementation, the Group is capable
of aligning partners in the ecosystem to better participate
into the latest civil urbanisation process and the construction
of smart cities by applying cloud computing, big data, loT
and various new and advanced technologies, so as to achieve
delicate urban administration and convenient public services
to a greater extent.
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APPRECIATION

The Board would like to present its great appreciation to the
management team and employees of the Group who have
contributed to the success of the Group and are working
towards achieving the Group'’s visions. Heartfelt gratitude is
also expressed to all of partners, customers, suppliers of the
Group and the Shareholders. With their kind support and
trust, the Board is confident that it will lead the Group to
another milestone.

By order of the Board
OneForce Holdings Limited
WANG Dongbin

Chairman

Beijing, China, 21 June 2019
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CEQ’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
THARODEREEENWED N

The Acquisition of the Target Group and it loT related
business in 2019 financial year is another milestone of the
Group development. The completion of the Acquisition
indicates that the Group has (I) crystalised its lloT oriented
strategy in the coming decade and (Il) formed our dual-
core business engine, namely: smart energy loT business
and smart city loT business. In our existing smart energy
sector, the Group mainly provides tailor-made information
technology solutions, technical services and hardware
products to various participants in electric power industry.
While, in the new smart city loT business sector, the Group
has built up competitive advantages in technical know-how
and project execution, by leveraging our strong alliance with
partners, the Group is dedicated to provide comprehensive
and integrated solutions (including overall design and
implementation planning, etc.) and proprietary products to
smart city loT infrastructure projects.

OUR INDUSTRY

As a major source of energy, electric power provides the
basis to economy and business operation. Along with
the development of China’s economy, electric power
industry has been proactively undergoing restructuring and
adjustment. Electric power grid connects energy production
and consumption, links its distribution, transformation and
usage, which makes it the centre of the industry. On top of
energy connection, electric power grid in future will evolve
and achieve comprehensive and ubiquitous connection of
information, people and equipment, which eventually will
drive another round of technology advancement.

Meanwhile, with the development of lloT related
technologies, its applications include an ever-increasing
range of scenarios, which in turn provides new and practical
solutions for the promotion of national urbanisation and the
construction of smart cities. It is expected that a emerging
market with abundant opportunities are going to arise in the
coming years.
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CEO’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

THASOEREEEBNWEDH

For the past year, the industries the Group operates has
exhibited the following major features:

Ever increasing demands on electric power continues
to propel industry-wide reform

In 2018 calendar year, the demands on electric power in
China remained strong and consistent. In accordance with
statistics published by National Energy Administration, the
total volume of electric power consumption in 2018 calendar
amounted to 6.8449 billion kWh, representing a growth
rate of 8.5%, and is the third consecutive year to record a
growth. Meanwhile, reform in electric power industry has
made continuous progress. In March 2019, the Report on
the Work of the Government by the State Council (BB [
FL{E&RE ) requires further deepening of market-oriented
reforms in the electric power sector, lower electricity costs
and cut the average electricity price for general industrial
and commercial businesses by another 10%. Subsequently,
National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC")
announced to reduce VAT for electric power consumption
from 16% to 13%, which exemplifies government’s
dedication to promoting reforms and cutting taxes and
charges for the benefit people and corporate citizens. In this
regard, it is expected a strong and continuous demands on
electric power in the coming years.

Construction of electric power loT leads IT investments

In early 2019, SGCC announced its outline to develop and
construct the ubiquitous electric power loT. The outline also
unifies and clarifies SGCC’s strategy in business innovation
and system development in the coming years. The nature
and substance of ubiquitous electric power loT is in line with
the core development concept of lloT, which not only brings
more commercial opportunities with SGCC to participate
into related projects, but also created valuable opportunities
to cooperate with various partners in the lloT sector.
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CEO’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Clear target for civil urbanisation

In April 2019, NDRC announce and published “Key Tasks
of Civil Urbanisation in 2019"” (20194 ¥ & $E/b &2 28
B2TF%5]), which clarifies and requires NDRC and related
government authorities to lead the work of improving
appraisal standards for the construction of new smart
cities, directing cities at prefectural level to consolidate and
build digitalised administrative platform, strengthening
liaison and enhancing the use of scientific, refined and
intellectual methods in municipal administration. As such,
the construction of smart city information infrastructure is
considered as a key area in the process and provides clear
regulatory direction as well as market opportunities for the
Group's smart city loT related business.

The abovementioned changes and trends all indicate
forthcoming development in smart energy and smart city
related loT business, ever-growing market scale and brand-
new opportunities in the years ahead.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Based on years of experience in China’s electric power
industry, the Group has formed its core competitive strengths
in industry knowledge and experience, technological
expertise, tailored make products, as well as comprehensive
service system.

Industry knowledge and experience

Our experienced Executive Directors and senior management
team are all with relevant technological and research and
development (“R&D") background and has accumulated a
wealth of industrial experience and resources since 1996, the
debut of their respective careers in China’s electric power
industry. Furthermore, their sound technological experience
and business know-how, are one of the key cornerstones
for high customer satisfaction to our product and service
offerings, reputation of our brand as well as our leading
market position in serving local electric power companies.
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Technological expertise

The Group has consistent emphasis on technological
expertise. As of the date of this report, the Group’s operating
subsidiaries have applied/registered 20 patents and 82
computer software copyrights in the PRC, and have also
been accredited the certificates of CMMI Level 5, ISO 9001
and ISO 20000, as well as System Integration Level 3 and
“High and New Technology Enterprise” by Beijing municipal
government.

Based on our technological expertise, the Group developed
our proprietary Research and Development Support Platform
("RDSP") with core intellectual property rights. RDSP is
constructed by applying new generation of information and
communication technologies, such as “cloud computing”,
"big data”, internet of things” and is dedicated to offer
our customers with a comprehensive range of tailor-made
solutions.

Leveraging our RDSP, the Group developed and went live of
OneForce Cloud. The rolled out and commercial operation
of OneForce Cloud illustrated the Group’s technological
expertise and R&D capabilities in cloud computing and
mobile internet, as well as its subsequent application and
commercialisation.

Products and market

By utilising RDSP and OneForce Cloud, we are capable of
providing tailor-made IT solutions and technical services to
our customers and in accordance with each of their unique
requirements.

Based on our knowledge and experience in customers’
system, in together with our tailor-made products and
services, the Group earned ideal customer satisfaction of
our IT solutions, and the current leading market position in
providing electric power selling and management systems to
local electric power companies.
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service network

In addition to technological expertise, the Group has built up
a nation-wide service network during the course of servicing
our customers. Our technical service team covering all 26
provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities that SGCC
operates, as well as over 30 municipal cities, leagues, banners
and counties in Inner Mongolia autonomous regions with

R348 4%

IMPG's operation. The total coverage of our service network
amounts to over 80% of geographical area of the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

gy dE) ]

Revenue

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries

Costs incurred in connection with the
Acquisition or Listing

Profit attributable to shareholders

Earnings per share — basic and diluted
(RMB cents)
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For the
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31 March 2019
BZ
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19,921
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Revenue

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's
revenue by business segments for the year ended 31 March

2019:

L'ON

TREFINEE2019F3A31HIEEE - K
SERESESEDIDOWAFFE

Software and solutions B R fiRR T 2
Technical services FAi AR 7S
Hardware products 2 2 mn

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's revenue
increased by approximately RMB29,309,000, which is mainly
due to the combination of the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

increase in revenue arising from provision of technical
services by approximately RMB25,280,000 as a result
of the Group’s continuous efforts to enlarge product
and service offerings and further expansion to electric
power despatch management and system integration
related services to SGCC;

growth in sale from hardware products of
approximately RMB14,832,000, which in turn, was
mainly attributable to the Group’s endeavour to
increase market presence in new geographic areas
and newly explored esteemed customers such as CSG
and Nari; and

decrease in sale of software and solutions of
approximately RMB10,803,000 due to lower income
from IMPG as a result of the completion of certain
major products, such as Rural Access to Selling and
Management Information System Project in the prior
year; and the Group’s continuing efforts to explore
new business, new markets and new customers so as
to further reduce reliance on fewer major customers.

For the For the

year ended year ended
EARVET  WHAEM 31 March 2018
BZE HE
pONEEEYSEIN= 20183 H31H
LtEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
40,943 51,746

45,775 20,495

28,390 13,558
115,108 85,799

REZE2019F3A31HILFE - AEBIWA
R4 AR29,309,0007T - TELZHNIA
THEEMNGAEFE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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Cost of sales and gross profit margin

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's
costs of sales and gross profit margin by business segments
for the year ended 31 March 2019:

SHERRRERN R

TREHNEE2019F3A31HILEE » &
EESEBD IR EERRNEREFRFE -

Cost of Sales (RMB'000)
Software and solutions
Technical services
Hardware products

Total

Gross profit ratio (%)
Software and solutions
Technical services
Hardware products

Average

For the For the
year ended year ended
EA NV ET(dWONEN 31 March 2018
HBE HE
pINCESYE =l 20185E3 8311
IEEE IEFE

HERET(ARETIT)
W R ERR T 2 22,683 24,087
AT AR 7% 31,061 10,961
IR E S 23,464 10,583
&5t 77,208 45,631

EFE(%)

B R ERR T E 44.6% 53.5%
AT AR 32.1% 46.5%
EU EE 17.4% 21.9%
Fig 32.9% 46.8%

For the year ended 31 March 2019, cost of sales increased
by approximately RMB31,577,000, which was in line with
revenue pattern. Meanwhile, the Group’s overall gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 46.8% to
approximately 32.9%, which was mainly due to:

(i) As explained above, attributed to continuous efforts
in expanding product and service offerings, exploring
new markets and customers, the Group not only was
accredited new contracts by SGCC regarding electric
power despatch management business; also marched
into new markets and earned new and esteemed
customers such as CSG and Nari. As such, the
increase in cost of sales was in line with sale pattern;
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(i) For the year ended 31 March 2019, to bring more
flexibility in strategic planning and business operation,
in particular under current economic sentiment, the
Group engaged an increasing number of staff for its
routine operations through outsourcing, while the
Group’s own staff focused more on technological
innovation, R&D and activities with higher value-
added to the Group. Accordingly, staff outsourcing
costs were higher than the prior year; and

(iii) For the year ended 31 March 2019, in connection
with the development of the Group's sale of
hardware products business, related equipment
procurement costs also correspondingly increased.

Other income

For the year ended 31 March 2019, other income mainly
represents refund of value-added-tax of approximately
RMB5,192,000 (year ended 31 March 2018: approximately
RMB6,901,000).

The decrease in refund income is in line with changes in the
Group's revenue mix as fewer number of projects completed
during 2019 financial year were eligible for refund of value-
added-tax.

Administrative and other operating expenses
The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s

administrative and other operating expenses incurred for the
year ended 31 March 2019:

(i) REZE2019F3A318ILEE - AF
IR A AN BB RS 2 - WA
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Hepr A

REZE2019F3A31HIEFE - Eilg A
FTEBERZREREHRHARES,192,000
TT(EZE2018F3A31HILEE : YARK
6,901,0007T) °
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For the For the

year ended year ended
EANVET WOHAEM 31 March 2018
BE HE
pOYEEEYSEIN= 201853 H31H
LEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T

Labour costs ATRAR
R&D expenses s
Professional services expenses HERKE
Others A

5,879 5,598
3,063 1,145
6,872 863
4,107 3,271
19,922 10,877
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For the year ended 31 March 2019, administrative and
other operating expenses amounted to approximately
RMB19,922,000 (year ended 31 March 2018: approximately
RMB10,877,000). The increase was mainly attributable to:

(i) annual salary increase to the Group’s employees;

(i) the Group’s continuous dedication and efforts to
further strengthen technological capabilities and
invested more in initial R&D activities in the current
year; and

(iii) increase in professional service expenses in relation
to legal and compliance counsels, audit and printing
services as incurred by the Company after the Listing
(classified as Listing Expenses in the prior year).

Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries

Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries represents the
difference between:

0) the fair value of the consideration Shares issued upon
completion of the Acquisition on 28 February 2019, as
determined by making reference to the closing price
of Shares on the same date; and

(ii) the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
target group as at 28 February 2019.

Listing and Acquisition related expenses

Listing and Acquisition related expenses mainly represent
professional service fee in relation to (I) the Acquisition
completed during the year ended 31 March 2019 of
RMB5,309,000; and (Il) the Global Offering and Listing on 2
March 2018 of RMB11,157,000, respectively.
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Property, plant and equipment

As of 31 March 2019, property, plant and equipment mainly
represents the assets in relation to the agreement originally
entered into by a subsidiary of the Group with Committee
on Economy and Informatisation of Mentougou District to
obtain the right of use of related light poles for 10 years.
The lights poles were renovated to provide smart city loT
infrastructure services.

Intangible assets

As of 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of intangible
assets was approximately RMB73,416,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB18,153,000). In particular:

(i) the Group completed the acquisition of the target
group and it loT related business and assets (mainly
smart city loT related patents and software copyrights)
in 2019 financial year and successfully marched into
smart city loT market; and

(ii) as an innovation driven company, the Group placed
continuing efforts and resources in its R&D activities.
As of the date of this report, the Group has applied/
registered 20 patents and 82 computer software
copyrights in the PRC (31 March 2018: 37 computer
software copyrights).

Trade and bill receivables and contract assets

As of 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade and bill
receivables and contract assets (previously known as gross
amount due from customers for contract work) amounted
to approximately RMB117,243,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB91,132,000). The increase was mainly due to the timing
of invoicing to customers and the Group's credit policy and
the creditability of its customers were stable as compared
with prior years.

Inventories and contract costs

As of 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately RMB11,697,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB8,036,000). The increase was in line with the
development of the Group’s business and the number of its
pipeline projects.
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R&D expenditure

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s
capitalised/R&D expenditure incurred for the year ended 31
March 2019:

Wi

TREHNEZE2019F3831B IEFE - A&
BEEAR,/ BEEMFESL HFS

For the For the

year ended year ended
EANVET WDOAEN 31 March 2018
BZE HE
pIEEcY=ESN= 2018F3 H31H
LHEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTTT

R&D expenditure HE
Capitalised ERfbeHE
Charged to profit and loss accounts STABEIERSE

As a technology and innovation driven company, the Group
has been consistently investing in R&D activities. For the year
ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s continued to place great
efforts in R&D, which were exhibited by the application/
registration of 20 patents and 82 computer software
copyrights in the PRC in total (31 March 2018: 37 computer
software copyrights).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s operation
and capital requirements were financed principally through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating
activities and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group had net current assets of RMB158,952,000 (31 March
2018: RMB172,235,000), including bank balances and cash
of RMB65,293,000 (31 March 2018: RMB87,409,000). The
Group's current ratio (as calculated by current assets divided
by current liabilities) changed from 7.89 times as at 31 March
2018 to 3.49 times as at 31 March 2019. Gearing ratio is
calculated by net debt divided by total capital as at the end of
the year. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
bank borrowings and finance lease payables, if any) less cash
and bank balances, while total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
plus net debt, where applicable. The Group’s gearing ratio as
at 31 March 2019 was nil (31 March 2018: nil). The change
in liquidity position was mainly due to the Group’s efforts to
explore new business, new customers and new market, and as
such, made mode working capital investment.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: (i) market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), (ii) credit risk;
(iii) liguidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Group'’s financial performance.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group operates mainly in the PRC. Entities within the
Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to HK$
and RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

The management of the Company has set up a policy
to require the group companies to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their functional currencies. The group
companies do not adopt formal hedge accounting policy.
It manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movements of foreign currency rates and will consider
entering into forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce
the exposure should the need arises.

CASH FLOW AND FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’'s bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB23,839,000 (31 March
2018: nil), which bears fix rate of interests of 5.655% to
7.395% p.a.. As such, the Group was not exposed to interest
rate risk (31 March 2018: none).

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited at banks, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies.
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The management of the Company makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether there
are any disputes with the debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the management is
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2019, 52% (31 March 2018: 69%) of the
trade receivable were due from the Group’s largest customer
and 94% (31 March 2018: 97%) were due from the five
largest customers determined on the same basis.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance and, if
applicable, external regulatory or legal requirements — for
example, currency restrictions.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of short-term financial assets
and receivables; and long-term financing including long-term
borrowings, if any. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest-bearing borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s contract commitments mainly include minimum
lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises amounted to RMB2,039,000 (31
March 2018: RMB3,902,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary

shares. As at 31 March 2019, the Company had 505,263,177
shares in issue.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not hold any significant
investments (31 March 2018: none).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
completed the acquisition of Great Progress International
Limited and related business. Please refer to (i) the circular
of the Company dated 15 January 2019; and (ii) the
announcements of the Company dated 29 November 2018
and 28 February 2019 in relation to, among others, the
Acquisition.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in the Prospectus or otherwise in
this annual report, the Group currently has no other plan for
material investments and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: none).

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2019, there had been no
material change in the Group's funding and treasury policies.
The Group has a sufficient level of cash and banking facilities
for the conduct of its trade in the normal course of business.

The management of the Company closely reviews trade
receivable balances and any overdue balances on an
ongoing basis and only trade with creditworthy parties. The
management of the Company closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group's assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements to manage liquidity risk.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, a total of HK$30,000,000 of the
Group's bank deposits were charged as security for bank
borrowings of the Group (31 March 2018: none).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no property, plant and
equipment that was held under finance leases (31 March
2018: none).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The total number of employees were approximately 199 as
at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: approximately 190). The
Group’s employee benefit expenses mainly included salaries,
overtime payment and discretionary bonus, share options,
other staff benefits and contributions to retirement schemes.
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total
employee benefit expenses (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to RMB35.4 million (31 March 2018: RMB29.6
million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to the
qualification, experience and work performance, whereas the
payment of discretionary bonus is generally subject to work
performance, the financial performance of the Group in that
particular year and general market conditions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance
with such requirements. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, and having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in
all material respects during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the
Listing Rules and the SFO for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance in all material respects.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group
continually seeks to identify and manage environmental
impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimize these impacts if possible.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable
assets of the Group. The Group strictly complies with the
labour laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong and
regularly reviews the existing staff benefits for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to customers and
maintains a good relationship with them. The Group is able
to establish trust and long-standing business relationship
with its major customers.

The Group also maintains effective communication and
develops long term and stable relationships with suppliers.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no
material dispute nor disagreement between the Group and
its suppliers.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. The actual net proceeds
from the Listing, after deducting the listing-related expenses,
were HK$50.78 million (the “Actual Net Proceeds”). The
table below sets out an adjusted allocation as adjusted in
the same manner and same proportions as shown in the
Prospectus and the actual use of the Actual Net Proceeds as
at 31 March 2019.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Opportunity always be side with challenge, at the meantime
of strengthening our technological expertise and marketing
position, the Group is facing the following main operational
risk factors:

Reliance on major customers

Our revenue was mainly derived from the provision of
Application Solutions and Technical Services to IMPG
and SGCC. For the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue
attributable to our five largest customers represented over
80% of our total revenue. Even though the Group has been
proactively approaching new customers in, electric power
retailing, public utilities and electric power generation
sectors, the exploration of new markets and expansion of
customer base require heavy initial investments in time and
resources and is uncertain in nature. As such, the Group
is like to retain a notable concentration in customer base
in the forthcoming few years. If IMPG and/or SGCC adjust
their respective investment plan and procurement model in
the business sector the Group operates, our product and/
or service offerings cannot satisfy customers’ demands and
requirements, which would lead to decrease in procurement
of the Group's products and/or services from our customers,
or the Group’s R&D projects may not be commercialised, and
our results of operation and profitability may be adversely
affected.

In this respect, the Group is going to proactively penetrate
in the newly engaged electric power retailing sector and
increase its percentage of composition in our revenue profile.
Meanwhile, be leveraging new technology development in
cloud computing, big data and mobile internet, the Group is
also determined to develop new market and business in the
smart energy sector.
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Seasonality of business

The Group’s major customers are electric power grid
companies featured with top-down management structure.
Accordingly, their internal procedures for investment approval
are centrally planed and managed. In general, electric power
grid companies set up next year’'s investment plan (including
information technology related projects) toward the end of
current year. In the following year, budgeted projects are
implemented (from tendering to project kick-off, impletion
and completion) in batches. Subject to electric power grid
companies’ internal management procedures, the signing of
contracts and completion of project inspection are tend to
be conducted in the fourth quarter each year. Accordingly,
more of our revenue is recognised in the same time period.
As such, our results of operation have exhibits certain
seasonality.

In this respect, the Group will proactively communicate
and cooperate with electric power grid companies, so as to
increase visibility of our business operation. Meanwhile, the
Group will also explore new customers and business areas
for the purpose of smoothing seasonality of our business and
results of operation.

Costs in R&D activities

The Group has been focusing on developing technological
expertise to lead business innovation, and making consistent
investments in R&D activities. By doing this, we have evolving
new product and service offering, which provide sound and
solid ground for the development of the Group. While, our
investments in R&D may not commercialise in short-term and
the economic benefits arising from relevant new products
and/or services may not cover the underlying investments. As
such, the Group's results of operation and profitability may
be adversely affected.

In this respective, the Group will keep abreast of the latest
developments in technology and the industry, so that to keep
our lead in technology development, meanwhile not making
excessive R&D investments. By continuously enhancing our
study in industrial policies and trends in development, the
Group is aiming to increase the success rate of R&D activities
and mitigating the uncertainties and risks associated with
business innovation.
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Impairment of trade receivables

Along with the development of the Group business, our
revenue and trade receivables increased accordingly. Our
major customers, electric power grid companies and relevant
enterprises, are all have solid financial ground and sound
creditability, which provide reliable basis for the recoverability
of our trade receivables. In addition, there are sound track
records of our customers and no impairment loss of trade
receivables have ever incurred. While, the rise in trade
receivables do have notable impacts on our cash positions
and increase working capital investments. With continuing
development of the Group’s business, the balance of trade
receivables may further increase. If the full amount of our
trade receivables could not be collected in time or at all, the
Group would face the risk of working capital shortage.

In this respect, the Group will keep close monitor of trade
receivable balances and strengthen communication with
customers in relation to settlement, so as to expedite timely
collection of trade receivables.

Retaining of qualified and experienced staff

The Group’s success and performance depends to a
significant extent on our high-calibre staff. The increase
in market competition will inevitably make the pursuit to
qualified and experienced staff to be increasingly fierce. If we
lose a significant number of members of our management
and/or technical staff and we cannot make timely and
appropriate replacement, the Group's results of operation
and profitability may be adversely affected.

In this respective, the Group is aiming to provide competitive
salaries, welfare and incentive packages, establishing fare
and competitive promotion system, so that our staff can
enjoy both favourable short-term economic benefits, and
share their long-term career pursuit with the development of
the Group.
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The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests
of the Group as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and
safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and practices
that emphasise a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal controls systems, stringent disclosure practices,
transparency and accountability. It is, in addition, committed
to continuously improving these practices and inculcating an
ethical corporate culture.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

THE BOARD
Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns
with solid financial fundamentals, so as to enhance long-term
total return for shareholders. Please refer to the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis for
discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group
and the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the basis on which the Group
will execute its strategy for delivering the objective of the
Group.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for the
long-term performance of the Company, is responsible
for directing and guiding the strategic objectives of the
Company and overseeing and monitoring managerial
performance of the business. Directors are charged with the
task of promoting the success of the Company and making
decisions in the best interests of the Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman (executive Director), Mr.
Wang Dongbin, determines and monitors group-wide
strategies and policies, annual budgets and business plans,
evaluates the performance of the Company, and supervises
the management of the Company (“Management”).
Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer.
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Board composition

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board comprised
seven Directors, including the Chairman, Mr. Wang Dongbin
(executive Director), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wu
Hongyuan (executive Director), Mr. Li Kangying (executive
Director) and Mr. Wu Zhanjiang (executive Director) and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"),
namely, Mr. Ng Kong Fat, Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng.

Mr Li Kangying and Mr. Wu Zhangjiang were appointed as
executive Directors on 24 July 2018. With effect from 1 June
2019, Mr. Wu Zhanjiang has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and Mr. Wu Hongyuan
has been re-designated as the Executive President of the
Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a balance
of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Accordingly, the Board appointment has been, and
will continue to be, made based on merit that complements
and expands the skills, experience and expertise of the Board
as a whole, taking into account age, professional experience
and qualifications, cultural and educational background, and
any other factors that the Board might consider relevant and
applicable from time to time towards achieving a diverse
Board.

The Board diversity policy is available on the website of the
Company (www.oneforce.com.cn). The Board will review
and monitor from time to time the implementation of the
policy to ensure its effectiveness and application.
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Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 3 to
7 and on the website of the Company. A list setting out the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the Directors, and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the
INEDs of the Company and considers all of them to be
independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under the Listing Rules; (ii) the
absence of involvement in the day-to-day management of
the Company; and (iii) the absence of any relationships or
circumstances which would interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgment. Throughout the year ended 31
March 2019, the number of INEDs on the Board meets the
one-third requirement under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, including but not limited to the compliance and
disclosures on the Listing Rules, accounting policies and
relevant regulations.
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Chairman and executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the role of the
Chairman was separate from that of the Chief Executive
Officer. Such division of responsibilities reinforced the
independence and accountability of these Directors.

The position of Chairman, held by Mr. Wang Dongbin, is
responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts in the best
interests of the Group and that Board meetings are planned
and conducted effectively. The Chairman is responsible for
setting the agenda for each Board meeting, taking into
account, where appropriate, matters proposed by Directors
and the Company Secretary. With the support of the
executive Director and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
discussed at Board meetings and provided with adequate
and accurate information in a timely manner. The Chairman
promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
Directors to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in
the affairs of the Board so as to contribute to the effective
functioning of the Board. The Board, under the leadership
of the Chairman, has adopted sound corporate governance
practices and procedures and taken appropriate steps to
promote effective communication and ongoing engagement
with shareholders and other stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the position of Chief
Executive Officer, held by Mr. Wu Hongyuan, was responsible
for managing the businesses of the Group, attending to the
formulation and successful implementation of Group policies
and assuming full accountability to the Board for all Group
operations.

Acting as the principal manager of the businesses of the
Group, the Chief Executive Officer attends to developing
strategic operating plans that reflect the long-term objectives
and priorities established by the Board and is directly
responsible for maintaining the operational performance
of the Group. Working with the Chief Financial Officer
and the Management, the Chief Executive Officer presents
annual budgets to the Board for consideration and approval,
and ensures that the Board is fully apprised of the funding
requirements of the businesses of the Group. With the
assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive
Officer sees to it that the funding requirements of the
businesses are met and closely monitors the operating
and financial performance of the businesses against plans
and budgets, taking remedial action if necessary. He
maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all
Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective executive management team to
support him in his role.
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Board process

In accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules, the Board will meet regularly, and at least four times
a year with meeting dates scheduled prior to the relevant
year. Between scheduled meetings, senior management
of the Group provides to Directors, on a regular basis,
quarterly updates and other information with respect to
the performance, and business activities and development
of the Group. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019,
Directors have participated in the deliberation and approval
of routine and operational matters of the Company by way
of written resolutions with supporting explanatory materials,
supplemented by additional verbal and/or written information
from the Company Secretary or other executives, if any,
and as and when required. Details of material or notable
transactions of subsidiaries are provided to the Directors as
appropriate. Whenever warranted, additional Board meetings
are held. In addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice at all
times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors and they
are at liberty to propose appropriate matters for inclusion in
Board agendas.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors
receive written notice of the meeting generally about 14 days
in advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than three days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
if any, Directors are given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, a Director would abstain from voting on
resolutions approving any contract, transaction, arrangement
in which he or she or any of his or her close associates is
materially interested in, and such Director is not counted for
quorum determination purposes.
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The Company held six Board meetings during the year ended
31 March 2019 with overall attendance of 100%. The

attendance record is set out below:

AKABREZFT2019F3A31HIEFERE
TARREESLH  EFENEREEXRA
100% ° B EkEFIT ¢

Board meetings

attended/
eligibleto  Attendance at  Attendance at
attend 2018 AGM 2019 EGM
Exges
HERE, HE HE
BEREE 2018F R 20195 R R
= W8 BFEXREg BEIRE
Executive Directors HITES
WANG Dongbin (chairman) T 83&( %) 4/6 v v
WU Hongyuan (Note 1) RAM (B aET) 6/6 -
LI Kangying (Note 2) TME (M E2) 3/3 -
WU Zhanjiang (Note 3) REVI(Ha23) 3/3 -
INEDs BAFHTES
NG Kong Fat RrE 6/6 -
HAN Bin 17 6/6 -
WANG Peng 15 6/6 -

Note 1: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr Li Kangying was appointed as executive Director on 24 July
2018

Note 3: Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed as executive Director on 24
July 2018 and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 June 2019

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Chairman had
regular meetings with executive Directors and met with
INEDs without the presence of executive Directors. The INEDs
freely provide their independent views to the Board.

Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company, or in the case of an additional
appointment, until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, and shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting. All Directors are subject
to retirement from office by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at annual general meetings at least about once
every three years. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election
and re-election of retiring Directors at general meetings is
dealt with by separate individual resolutions. In addition,
INEDs entered into service contracts for an initial term
ending on 31 March of the year of their appointments which
contracts are automatically renewed for successive 12-month
periods, subject to re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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No Director has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable by the Company within one year and
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as
Director in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
procedures for such proposal are posted on the website of
the Company.

Training and commitment

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors receive a package
of orientation materials on the Group and are provided with
a comprehensive induction to the businesses of the Group by
the Management.

The Company arranges and provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD") training such as seminars and relevant
reading materials to Directors to help ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. In
addition, attendance at external forums or briefing sessions
(including delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also
counts toward CPD training.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with
details of the CPD training undertaken by them from
time to time. Based on the details so provided, the CPD
training undertaken by the Directors as of 31 March 2019 is
summarised as follows:
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Areas
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Legal and Corporate Group Business/
Regulatory Governance Directors’ Duties
K@K
EERER EXEER EEHE
Executive Directors BITES

WANG, Dongbin (Chairman) ~ F 338t ( % /&) 4 v 4
WU, Hongyuan (Note 1) RO (HT7E1) v 4 v
LI Kangying (Note 2) FE(HEE2) v 4 v
WU Zhanjiang (Note 3) REVI(A7423) 4 4 v

INEDs BYFHITES
NG, Kong Fat ReE v 4 v
HAN, Bin il v 4 v
WANG, Peng T v/ v/ v
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Note 1: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. Li Kangying was appointed as executive Director on 24 July
2018

Note 3: Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed as executive Director on 24
July 2018 and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 June 2019

All newly appointed Directors undergo an orientation
program to obtain background information of the Group
and industry-specific knowledge. During the year ended 31
March 2019, the newly appointed executive Directors, Mr. Li
Kangying and Mr. WU Zhanjiang (appointed on 24 July 2018)
had attended the orientation program and were briefed by
the management on the background of the Group.

All Directors have confirmed that they have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. In addition,
Directors disclose to the Company in a timely manner their
other commitments, if any, such as directorships in other
public companies and major appointments as well as update
the Company on any subsequent changes.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. In
response to specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code in their
securities transactions during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Board committees

The Board is supported by three permanent board
committees: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, details of which
are described later in this report. The terms of reference for
these Committees, which have been adopted by the Board,
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Other board committees are established by the
Board as and when warranted to take charge of specific
tasks.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
processes and timely preparation of and dissemination to
Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and papers.
Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Board Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by
any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees are sent to Directors or
Board Committee members as appropriate for comments,
approval and records. Board records are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments of relevance
to the Group and that it takes these developments into
consideration when making decisions for the Group. From
time to time, she organises seminars on specific topics of
importance and interest and disseminates reference materials
to Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
compliance of the Group with all obligations of the Listing
Rules and Takeovers Code, including the preparation,
publication and despatch of annual reports and interim
reports within the time limits laid down in the Listing Rules,
the timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on connected transactions, notifiable transactions, price-
sensitive/inside information and Directors’ obligation for
disclosure of interests and dealings in securities of the
Company, to ensure that the standards and disclosures
requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable laws,
rules and regulations are complied with and, where required,
reported in the interim and annual reports of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman, all members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.
Ms. Yuen Wing Yan Winnie of Tricor Services Limited,
the external service provider, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the affairs of the Group. Its primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. Wang Dongbin, Chairman
and executive Director of the Company. Ms. Yuen Wing Yan
Winnie confirms that she has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner, within three months and two months
respectively of the year end and the half-year end.

The responsibility of Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. This should be read in
conjunction with but distinguished from, the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 97 which acknowledges the
reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Group.

Annual report and financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of this annual report and financial statements of
the Company, ensuring that the financial statements give a
true and fair presentation in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable in accordance with the

applicable accounting standards.
Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies of the Group.

Safeguarding assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.
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Going concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the
view that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who possess
the relevant business and financial management experience
and skills to understand financial statements and contribute
to the financial governance, internal controls and risk
management of the Company. It is chaired by Mr. Ng Kong
Fat with Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng as members.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee
held two meetings with 100% attendance, where each of
Mr. Ng Kong Fat, Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng attended
all the meeting.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit
Committee discharged the duties and responsibilities under
its terms of reference and the CG Code.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required
to oversee the relationship between the Company and its
external auditor, review the preliminary interim and annual
results, and interim and annual financial statements of the
Group, develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance including compliance with
statutory and Listing Rules requirements, review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the activities of internal audit,
engage independent legal and other advisers and conduct
investigations as it determines to be necessary.

REENEHE  EFR/AEERERH
BRI RARAEEZE - FIEERAT
BEBNERERBEATEERE

BREEE

BEVEESR=IBYIFNITERMER
(RESESN=REER N SE S P iz L Y-
AR AREA T 3Rk - W AR AIBIEER -
MEEkERERSEELER - ZE&H
RABEEEETR  KERBWELERT
Bt -

REZE2019F3A31HILFE @ BZEES
HBITMAEE  HFEEE100% @ EHFR
JEE S A B R R EREAHRAaHE

Pavir =N
FoPEe °

REZE2019F3A31HILFER » EZEE
EREEBESEULEATBITHE -

REEZZEQRERE  HAERARH
EHNERZ BN RR - BEEEVILSTHR
FREEARTFHRFEWHRE - HIER
BEARAIREREBNBRLES - 81
EEE EMRARENETER - BRI TIE
5 WEEKY  EERRBAREREE
B AR R EMEARETTRE

2019F % TmHERERAR 43



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high degree of transparency, probity and accountability.
In line with this commitment, the Company expects and
encourages employees of the Group and those who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors
and debtors) to report to the Company any suspected
impropriety, misconduct or malpractice concerning the
Group. In this regard, the Company has adopted procedures
for Reporting Possible Improprieties in Matters of Financial
Reporting, Internal Control or Other Matters, which is posted
on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee meets with the Chief Financial Officer
and the Management from time to time for purposes of
reviewing the interim and final results, the interim and annual
reports, and other financial, internal control, corporate
governance and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations
of Management, the internal and external auditors of
the Group, with a view to ensuring that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance
with IFRS and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). It also meets at least two times a year with the
external auditor of the Group, KPMG, to consider the reports
of KPMG on the scope, strategy, progress and outcome of
its independent review of the interim financial report and
annual audit of the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Audit Committee holds regular private meetings
with the external auditor, the Chief Financial Officer and
internal auditor separately without the presence of executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in maintaining
effective risk management and internal control systems.
It reviews the process by which the Group evaluates its
control environment and risk assessment process, and the
way in which business and control risks are managed. It
receives and considers the presentations of Management
in relation to the reviews on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
and adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions of the Group, as well as their training programmes
and budgets. In addition, the Audit Committee reviews in
conjunction with the Group's internal auditor the work plans
for its audits together with its resource requirements and
considers the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems in the business operations of the Group. Further,
it receives the reports from the Company Secretary on the
material litigation proceedings, if any, and compliance status
of the Group on regulatory requirements. These reviews and
reports are taken into consideration by the Audit Committee
when it makes its recommendation to the Board for approval

of the consolidated financial statements for the year.
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External auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process. Each year, the Audit Committee receives a
letter from the external auditor confirming its independence
and objectivity. It holds meetings with representatives of
the external auditor to consider the scope of its audit,
approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit
Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of its
external auditor for the various services listed below is as
follows:

o Audit services — include audit services provided
in connection with the audit of the consolidated
financial statements. All such services are to be
provided by the external auditor.

° Audit related services — include services that would
normally be provided by an external auditor but
not generally included in audit fees, for example,
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or processes,
and issuance of special audit reports for tax or other
purposes. The external auditor is to be invited to
undertake those services that must be undertaken, or
is otherwise best placed, to undertake in its capacity as
auditor.

o Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services, except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group engages the services of the external auditor
where it is best suited. All other significant taxation
related work is undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

. Other services — include, for example, financial due
diligence, review of actuarial reports and calculations,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations. The external
auditor is also permitted to assist Management
and the internal auditor with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.
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o General consulting services — the external auditor

is not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work.

External auditor’'s remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the total fees to
KPMG amounted to approximately RMB2,350,000 and are
all for audit services.

RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND LEGAL
& REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Role of the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of risk
management, internal control and legal and regulatory
compliance of the Group.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to inculcate
risk awareness across the business operations of the Group
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent
of risks that the Company is willing to accept in pursuit of
the strategic and business objectives of the Group. It also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems of
risk management and internal control on an ongoing basis
at least annually. Reporting and review processes include
review by the executive Directors and the Board and approval
of detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and
plans provided by management of the business operations,
review by the Board of actual results against budgets, review
by the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of internal
audit and risk management functions, as well as regular
business reviews by the executive Directors and the executive
management team.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee regularly
reviews the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on
an ongoing basis. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the
Company has complied throughout the year with all code
provisions of the CG Code.

Whilst these procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement
of the business objectives of the Group, they do not provide
absolute assurance against material mis-statement, errors,
losses, fraud or non-compliance.

46 Annual Report 2019  OneForce Holdings Limited

. — MR RS — SN BED AT A 1R
H—AREAR RISVER

SMBRBET A &

REZE2019F3A31BHIEFER - KRFIE
NFESHSTMEEMNAERNAAR
#2,350,0007T * B2 ABZRGER -

REREE AMEREEEREES

ExgRAe

ExerRAEASERRERE - B
EEAREREEARER

BT RAEEE TS EBELEERR
B WEHFTBRNESF - BRAERE
MR - RS —E5 Bhap R E R R
MR UEBTTESERE - EFgF LK
BEARNABERN S NS BB X XHE
EmAENRERRZEERIEE - EESNE
LEEHERMAERRRER KA
R - [EREEH IR BBANITE
FHEESEMERERBRINFRLE
HEEEmE  REMNEBE AEEER
IR R ERES  mERZ B SEMNE
BN EREEBENSETE  ARAH
TEFITHERENEETEGER -

ERZBERREFTeEHENAREND
EERRBLER  UHBRZEETARN
Bh - BREZEEEMN  ARFARFERADE
SPEVA ST RIM 2 EBST AR

BE LRFE S EEEAEHEEE
AEXBESETNEZENAR - BELEH
RERPEARERM - 885K - 18K - 7F5R
HEM -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Risk management

Based on the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) model, the
Company establishes its Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework to support the delivery of the Group’s
business and strategic objectives. The framework facilitates a
systematic approach in identifying, assessing and managing
risks within the Group, be they of strategic, financial,
operational or compliance nature.

The Group’s risk management is a continuous process
integrated seamlessly into the day-to-day activities at
all levels of the Group companies. There is ongoing
communication between the executive management of the
Group and the business units on the current and emerging
risks, their plausible impact and mitigation measures so as to
institute additional controls and deploy appropriate insurance
instruments to minimise or transfer the impact of risks to
the Group’s business. In addition, the Group’s Directors
and officers are protected against potential personal
legal liabilities through the Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance.

In terms of formal risk review and reporting, the Company
adopts a “top-down and bottom-up” approach, involving
input from each major business unit as well as discussions
and reviews by the executive Directors. More specifically,
on a quarterly basis, each major business unit is responsible
for formally identifying the significant risks their business
faces, measuring them against a defined set of criteria, and
considering likelihood of occurrence and potential impact
to the business, whilst the executive Directors provide input
after taking a holistic assessment of all the significant risks
that the Group faces. Relevant risk information including key
mitigation measures and plans are recorded in a risk register
to facilitate the ongoing review and tracking of progress.

The composite Register, as part of the Risk Management
Report, is submitted to the Audit Committee for review on
a half-yearly basis. The Committee, on behalf of the Board,
reviews the nature and extent of the significant risks facing
the Group, and provides input as and where appropriate so as
to ensure effective risk management in place.

Pages 30 to 32 of this annual report provide a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group which
could affect the financial condition or results of operations of
the Group that differ materially from expected or historical
results.
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Internal control environment

Executive directors are appointed to the board of the
operating subsidiary of the Group for monitoring the
company, including attendance at board meetings, review
and approval of budgets and plans, and business strategies
with associated risks identified and setting of key business
performance targets. The executive management team
of each business unit is accountable for the conduct and
performance of their business within the agreed strategies.
The executive Directors monitor the performance and reviews
the risk profiles of the Group companies on an on-going
basis.

The internal control procedures of the Group include a
comprehensive system for reporting information to the
executive management team of each business unit and the
executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by both the executive management teams
and the executive Directors as part of the annual corporate
planning cycle. The annual budget is reviewed on a quarterly
basis to identify major variances and propose rectifications
measures. When setting budgets, management identifies,
evaluates and reports on the likelihood and potential
financial impact of significant business risks.

The executive Directors review monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operating statistics
of each business and holds monthly meetings with senior
management of business operations to review these reports,
business performance against budgets, forecasts, significant
business risk sensitivities and strategies. In addition, the
Chief Financial Officer and finance managers of the business
operations have monthly meetings to review monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and to address
accounting and finance related matters.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system
for its subsidiary operations and the finance department
oversees the investment and lending activities of the Group.
Treasury reports on cash and liquid investments, borrowings
and movements thereof are distributed monthly.
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The Group has established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. Operating expenditures
are subject to overall budget control and are controlled
within each business with approval levels set by reference
to the level of responsibility of each executive and officer.
Capital expenditures are subject to overall control within
the annual budget review and approval process, and more
specific control and approval prior to commitment by the
executive Directors are required for unbudgeted expenditures
and material expenditures within the approved budget.
Quarterly reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also reviewed.

In terms of formal review of the internal control system of the
Group, an internal control self-assessment process is in place,
requiring senior management of each major business unit to
review, evaluate and declare the effectiveness of the internal
controls over the operations and devise action plans to
address the issues, if any. These assessment results, together
with the Risk Management Report as mentioned earlier and
the independent assessments by the auditors, form part
of the bases on which the Audit Committee formulate its
opinion on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are
operated in compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The investor relation and compliance department
has the responsibility of safeguarding the legal interests of
the Group. It monitors the day-to-day legal affairs of the
Group, including preparing, reviewing and approving all
legal and corporate secretarial documentation of Group
companies, working in conjunction with finance, corporate
secretarial and business unit personnel on the review and
co-ordination process, and advising the Management of
legal and commercial issues of concern. In addition, the
investor relation and compliance department is responsible
for overseeing regulatory compliance matters of all Group
companies. It analyses and monitors the regulatory
frameworks within which the Group operates, including
reviewing applicable laws and regulations and preparing
and submitting response or filings with relevant regulatory
and/or government authorities on regulatory issues and
consultations. In addition, the department prepares and
updates internal policies and conducts tailor-made training
sessions where necessary so as to strengthen the internal
controls and compliance procedures of the Group.
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The investor relation and compliance department reports
to the Board on all material legal, regulatory and corporate
secretarial matters and it proposes to the Board for the
engagement of external legal advisors, ensuring the requisite
professional standards are adhered to as well as the most
cost effective services are rendered. Further, investor relation
and compliance department organises and holds continuing
education seminars/conferences on legal and regulatory
matters of relevance to the Group for Directors and the
Management.

On the listed company level, the Group is subject to the
Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Buy-backs, the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the SFO. The investor relation and compliance
department is vigilant with the legal requirements under
these statutes, rules and regulations.

Code of ethics and handling of inside information

The Group places utmost importance on the ethical, personal
and professional standards of the Directors and employees
of the Group. In addition to the various policies adopted
and implemented by the Group imposing requirements
on Directors and employees to conduct themselves in
compliance with applicable laws, rule and regulations,
every employee is required to undertake to adhere to
the Code of Ethics, and is expected to meet the highest
standards of behaviour including avoiding conflict of interest,
discrimination or harassment and bribery and corruption.
Employees are required to report any non-compliance with
the Code of Ethics to the Management.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating
inside information in compliance with the SFO, additional
procedures, including

o pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the
Company by designated members of Management,

o notification of regular blackout period and securities
dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and
employees, and

o identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information to stated purpose and
on a need-to-know basis,

have also been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.
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Internal audit

The internal auditor, reporting directly to the Audit
Committee, provides independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal controls systems in the business operations of the
Group. By applying risk assessment methodology and taking
into account the dynamics of the activities of the Group,
internal audit devises its annual audit plan which is reviewed
by the Audit Committee, and continually reassessed during
the year to ensure that adequate resources are deployed
and the objectives of the plan are met. Internal audit is
responsible for assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, including reviewing the
continuing connected transactions of the Company and
whether adequate internal control procedures are in place to
monitor such transactions, formulating an impartial opinion
on the systems, and reporting its findings to the Audit
Committee, the executive Directors and the Management
concerned as well as following up on the issues to ensure
that they are satisfactorily resolved. In addition, internal audit
maintains a regular dialogue with the external auditor so that
the parties are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scope of work.

Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of work performed
by internal audit includes financial, IT, operations, and
regulatory compliance reviews, recurring and surprise audits,
fraud investigations, as well as productivity efficiency reviews.

Reports from the external auditor on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters are presented to the
internal auditor and, as appropriate, to the Chief Financial
Officer. These reports are reviewed and appropriate actions
are taken.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and is satisfied that
such systems are effective and adequate. In addition, it has
reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function of the Group,
and their training programmes and budget.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee comprised three members with expertise in
management and personnel emoluments. The Committee
was chaired by Mr. Han Bin (as INED), with Mr. Wang
Dongbin (as executive Director), and Mr. Ng Kong Fat (as
INED) as members. The composition of the Remuneration
Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and
independence under the Listing Rules. The Committee meets
towards the end of each year to determine the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management of the Group.

Remuneration matters are also considered and approved
by way of written resolutions and where warranted, at
additional meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings with 100% attendance,
where each of Mr. Han Bin, Mr. Wang Dongbin and Mr. Ng
Kong Fat attended all the meetings.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
to assist the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating employees of the highest calibre
and experience needed to shape and execute strategy of
the Group. It assists the Group in the administration of a
fair and transparent procedure for setting remuneration
policies for all Directors and senior management of the
Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining the
remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior
management of the Group is delegated to the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information on market
data (including economic indicators, statistics and the
Remuneration Bulletin), the business activities and human
resources issues, and headcount and staff costs of the
Group. It reviewed and approved the annual director’s fees
for executive Directors and made recommendation to the
Board on the directors’ fees for INEDs. It has also reviewed
the remuneration package in relation to the appointment of
Mr. Wu Zhangjiang as executive Director on 24 July 2018
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 June
2019, and the appointment of Mr. Li Kangying as executive
Director on 24 July 2018. Prior to the end of the year, the
Committee reviewed and approved the year end bonus and
remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior
executives of the Group for the coming year. The executive
Director do not participate in the determination of his own
remuneration.
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Remuneration policy

The remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Group is determined with reference to their expertise and
experience in the industry, the performance and profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from
other comparative companies and prevailing market
conditions. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group and the individual’s performance.

Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration

Details of emoluments paid to each Director the year ended
31 March 2019 are set out below:

I BOR

EFHSNEERABNFTMRLBRETE
EREER  AKEARFHRRMEF - A
K 2EHMA] L AR E LR E R TS
BRETE - EEHE T2 EIEAEERE
ARIRMETEIEAL L

ESHSREBEASHH

REZE2019F3A31HILFESNFRES
MBS FIBOT

Basic salaries, Provident
Director's allowances fund  Share-based Total
fees and BIK Bonuses  Contributions payments  Emoluments
Exge MRGHER
EShe ZHRENAE T AESMR R e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETRE
Executive Directors ~ H{TEZE
WANG, Dongbin THRE 103 440 - 57 - 600
WU, Hongyuan (Note 1) itki(#7:#1) 103 499 - 59 - 661
L, Kangying (Note 2) i (Hi#2) 7 - - - - 7
WU, Zhanjiang (Note 3) ~ RENT(#1:13) 1Al 331 - 4 - 445
INEDs BUKYTES
NG, Kong Fat RyE 103 - - - 44 147
HAN, Bin B 103 - - - 44 147
WANG, Peng THE 103 - - - 44 147
Total st 657 1,270 - 159 132 2,218

Note 1: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. Li Kangying was appointed as executive Director on 24 July
2018

Note 3: Mr. WU Zhangjiang was appointed as executive Director on 24
July 2018 and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 June 2019

The remuneration to the members of senior management by
bands for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

BiiE1 © B2019F6 818 » R EERAT AR
NRIITEE

FsE2 © 7A2018F7 A248 » M E L L EZ(T A
TE%

BiEE3 : 201847 A248 @ REUTRLEZ T AW
1TEE - WHR2019F6 A1AEZTAAR
BTEUABEL

REZE2019F3A31HILEFE  aREEA
BB FMNEESEY T

Number of
Individuals
Remuneration Bands [ e il AE
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 178 702£1,000,00078 7T 7
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5 of the
CG Code on 5 February 2018. During the year ended 31
March 2019, the Nomination Committee comprised three
members, namely Mr. Wang Dongbin (as executive Director),
Mr. Han Bin (as INED) and Mr. Wang Peng (as INED). The
chairman of the Nomination Committee was Mr. Wang
Dongbin.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii)
assessing the independence of the INEDs; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

The nomination policy aims to set out the relevant selection
criteria and nomination procedures.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
following factors would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee, including but not limited to:

(@) reputation for integrity and accomplishment and
experience in the financial services industry, in
particular, in the securities, commodities and future
markets;

(b) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(©) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background
and ethnicity, etc..

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration
and recommendation. A circular setting out information
as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations of the proposed candidates will be sent to the
shareholders. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

54 Annual Report 2019  OneForce Holdings Limited

REEES

REZEBEMN2018F2 58 /K - WiBHR
ERSTRIEASEFIFT EMBEEE - HNE
E2019F3A3MBILFE @ RERLEGRIE
/KB BEEBEE(EARTES) -
BWAREERBYIENTES) REIBEA
(ERBILIFNITES) - IRBRZECERA
TREILAE ©

REZBENIEBREBEETRL)AT
B (MR EEGRE - RERAK ¢ (i)
FHEBY IERITESABIYE ¢ R E
IREFRIEETREFEIFENESS
1R R R -

REBREEHIEEEREERERR
J_? o

REHEIREARTRER - REZE KA

TIREEER2ZE - BRERETRR :

@  EHEHENEE  ARESERS
TEFRIZES - AmkBEHS)
FIR L B A8 8

(b)  AHRHRAYESE R AERE NS ¢

© BIEABZTITE  BRETR
RUER - Fie - ERBBEBERUAR
TR o

REMBREER - ERRZEeRELERRZ
FAREZESEY - BRIREAEBRAE
E29ER - RRZESANEFTSIRLRES
DHEZ R ER - RS ERBE 2
REARBERER - RRISIROIHRERME
BREEANER - MEBNESSHEER
BAREARRAS L2ENEE EFQ
BEARBRTERE -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company has adopted a board diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background and ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Company will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for
Board appointments. The Company would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal
of bringing the Board to gender parity. The Company also
aspires to having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in the Group's core markets, with
different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s
strategy.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings with 100% attendance,
where each of Mr. Wang Dongbin, Mr. Han Bin and Mr.
Wang Peng attended all the meetings.

In June 2019, the Nomination Committee members (i)
reviewed and considered that the structure, size, diversity
and composition of the Board are appropriate; (ii) assessed
the independence of INEDs; (iii) recommended the
re-appointments of Directors, and (iv) recommended to the
Board the appointment of Mr. WU Zhangjiang as executive
Director on 24 July 2018 and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 1 June 2019, and the appointment of
Mr. Li Kangying as executive Director on 24 July 2018.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Founding Shareholders gave a non-competition
undertaking in favour of the Company (the “Non-competition
Undertaking”). Each of the Founding Shareholders has
undertaken under the Non-competition Undertaking that
it/he shall provide to the Company and the Directors from
time to time (including the INEDs) with all information
necessary for the annual review by the INEDs with regard to
compliance of the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking
by the Founding Shareholders and the enforcement of
the Non-competition Undertaking. Each of the Founding
Shareholders has confirmed compliance with the terms of
the Non-competition Undertaking and that during the year
review, there was no matter which required to be deliberated
by the Board in relation to the compliance and enforcement
of the Non-competition Undertaking. The Board comprising
all the INEDs is of the view that such Founding Shareholders
have been in compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking in favour of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders to
be one of the main objectives. Stable dividend payment to
shareholders is the primary objective of the Company. The
basic policy is to pay interim and final dividends in each
financial year.

The declaration of dividend is subject to the Board’s
discretion, where the Board takes into various factors into
account when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends, including but not limited to:

- liquidity position of the Company;

- shareholders’ interests;

- financial results;

- capital requirements; and

- general business conditions and strategies, etc..
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The Board will not declare any dividend(s) where:

- there are reasonable grounds for believing that the
Company is or would be, after a dividend payment,
unable to pay its liabilities or discharge its obligations
as and when they become due;

- pursuant to dividend decision date, the Company is
insolvent or bankrupt or where, as a result of paying
dividends, the Company would be rendered insolvent
or bankrupt; or

- there is any other case set forth by any law.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communication with the investment community throughout
the year. The Group is committed to enhancing investor
engagement and communications. Through the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Investor
Relations Department and the Corporate Secretarial team,
the Group responds to requests for information and queries
from the investment community including shareholders,
analysts and the media through regular briefing meetings,
announcements, conference calls and presentations. A policy
on shareholders’ communication, which is available on the
website of the Company, has been adopted and is subject
to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information on the Group to shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. The Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Moreover, additional
information on the Group is available to shareholders and
stakeholders through the Investor Relations page on the
website of the Company.
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Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings
of the Company. Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of
Association, any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company has statutory
rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders,
by sending the Board or the Company Secretary at the
principal place of business a written request for such general
meetings, signed by the shareholders concerned together
with the proposed agenda items and such meeting shall be
held within two months of the deposit of such requisition.

All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided
on a poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary
and scrutinised by the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the
Company. The results of the poll are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. In
addition, regular updated financial, business and other
information on the Group is made available on the website
of the Company for shareholders and stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company held
two general meetings. Separate resolutions were proposed at
the respective general meeting on each substantive issue and
the percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
14 September 2019 and 30 January 2019, respectively. All
resolutions put to shareholders at the AGM were passed. The
results of the voting by poll were published on the websites
of the Company and HKEx.

During the year under review, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to
date version of the Company’s Articles of Association is
also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Other corporate information relating to the Company is set
out in the “Corporate Information-Investor Calendar” section
of this annual report. This includes, among others, dates for
key corporate events for 2019.
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The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts
to promote transparency and foster investor relationship.
Enquiries, comments and suggestions to the Board or the
Company are welcome and can be addressed to the Investor
Relations Manager or the Company Secretary by mail to

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

or by e-mail at
investors_media@oneforce.com.cn

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability
of its businesses and the communities in which it
conducts business. It has adopted a proactive approach to
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") responsibility
and has established a working group comprising
representatives from key departments of the Company to
promote the ESG initiatives and activities of the Group and
continually enhance the Group's ESG efforts. The ESG Report
of the Group is set out on pages 60 to 69 of this annual
report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report
provides an annual update of sustainability performance
in respect of the Software Systems, Technical Services and
System Integration business of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019. It has been updated to reflect the interest
of various stakeholders. Additional material quantitative
data, detailed ESG requirement as well as policies and
programmes have been included to illustrate the main
initiatives implemented by the Group. This report is prepared
in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing
Rules, ESG Reporting Guide, issued by the Stock Exchange in
2015 and should be read in conjunction with the Corporate
Governance Report section of this annual report.

Approach to ESG Strategy and Reporting

The approach to ESG seeks for alignment with the long-term
strategic development of the Group and enhancement of
shareholder value. Key issues are identified, prioritised and
addressed in a way that demonstrates transparency and
accountability.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group acknowledges
the importance of sound ESG practices in its daily operations.
The Board and the senior management provide strategic
direction, establish sustainability policy and objectives,
oversee corporate governance matters and monitor progress.

All departments formulate and translate policy into action,
while facilitating exchange of best practices throughout
group companies. They build and incorporate such initiatives
into operations and processes. They also collect and
analyse data, evaluate performance and report major issues
periodically.
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Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment

The Group maintains on-going dialogue with key
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders, customers,
suppliers, local communities, professional institutions, non-
government organisations and authorities, etc. The Group
regularly collects views from its stakeholders through a
variety of channels, such as meetings, and workshops.

ESG compliance and how the Group benefits the community
are among stakeholders’ key interests. Important aspects
vary and range from sourcing practices to environmental
emissions to employment and operating practices, as well
as community involvement. Material aspects identified are
reviewed periodically and the Board is updated as and when
appropriate.

The six sections set out in this report summarise the Group'’s
commitments to its employees, customers and supply chain,
as well as to anti-corruption, the environment and service
to the community. Key initiatives and activities have been
included in each section to demonstrate and highlight the
efforts in enhancing long-term value for stakeholders.
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COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES
Recruiting, engaging and retaining talent

Employees represent a precious asset, and career
opportunities are made available to loyal and industrious
staff members as the Group expands.

As of 31 March 2019 the Group employed 199 full-time staff
members and they all Chinese citizens from mainland China.
It is committed to complying with the employment associated
guidelines and regulations, including laws prohibiting child
and forced labour. Every aspect of employment is subject to
a stringent internal review process involving a well-defined
monitoring procedure to verify a candidate’s personal
information so as to prevent misrepresentation and any
form of forced labour. An employment contract comes
complete with easily-understood terms and conditions, and
each individual is well briefed before being employed. The
code of ethics of the Group requires staff to comply with
applicable government and regulatory laws, rules, codes and
regulations.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies
and runs programmes to ensure employees are hired,
promoted and assigned on the basis of skill and ability.
The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
positive, diverse, respectful and safe working environment,
without discrimination or harassment. The selection process
affords equal opportunities to all persons subscribing to
the commitment to excellence and is carried out regardless
of gender or religious belief. This non-discrimination policy
continues throughout a staff member’s career and applies
to all employment matters including placement, transfer,
promotion and compensation.
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Investing in training and development

Heavy emphasis on career development manifests itself as a
variety of workshops and on-the-job training. Comprehensive
and structured programmes are designed to familiarise new
staff members with the industry. The Group also extends
tailored programmes to certain educational institutions
to help identify potential employment candidates and
allow those interested to find out more about a career
development path.

In November 2012, the Group entered into a cooperation
framework agreement with North China Electric Power
University (“CEPU") and has been cooperating with CEPU to
perform research and development activities in the electric
power industry. Currently, the Group’s cooperation with
CEPU is mainly focusing on demand side management, cloud
computing in smart energy industry and smart charging
management software, etc..

Educational support is available to employees in the form of
job-related courses provided by internal/external institutions.
Employees are encouraged to take part in work-life balance
activities and community service. These include employee
outings, sports events and volunteering activities in the
community.

Promoting well-being, health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees and is committed to complying with all applicable
health and safety laws and regulations. Such considerations
are an important element of the design, operation and
maintenance of office facilities and the way our business is
conducted.

Employees are able to access health and safety information
posted on the intranet, which also offers hyperlinks to
external sites. A list of first aid helpers is maintained in
offices, along with information to help employees understand
how to handle health and safety issues.

Since February 2018, Along Grid has been granted the
ISO18001: Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certification.
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Water management

The water consumption at the Group is minimal and there
has been no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations that has a significant impact relating to
employment and labour practices, or occupational health
and safety during the year. Neither did the Group identify
any incidents relating to hire of child or forced labour.

COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS
Building trust through reliability and quality

The Group has built up long-term relationship with each
of the key customers (e.g. IMPG Group, SGCC and Tianjin
TEDA), which was primarily attributable to its consistent
emphasis on the quality of products and service offerings and
high customer satisfaction.

Improving customer experience

The Group maintains a comprehensive frontline customer
service network across main geographical areas covered by
business operation of our major customers, namely IMPG
Group and SGCC, so that feedback can be collected and
acted upon. The Group treats customer feedback with due
care and in a timely manner. Any customer complaints are
handled efficiently and investigated to identify and rectify
root causes. Records are kept as to how complaints are
handled and whether any improvements resulted, and
measures are in place to review outcomes. The Group
also fosters a culture of continuous improvement by
benchmarking and publishing service performance details
on a regular basis. Service levels are gauged according
to performance pledges, then reviewed by departments
periodically.

Protecting our customers

As an information technology related products and service
provider, the Group values customer data privacy to the
upmost importance and is committed to complying with data
privacy laws and regulations. The Group has developed a
robust system to control collection, as well as access to, and
updating, security and retention of customer data received.
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Since April 2018, Along Grid has been granted ISO
27001: Certificate of Information Security Management
System Certification, which demonstrated our effort and
achievement in protecting customer data privacy and
security.

Protecting consumers and safeguarding their privacy are top
priorities. The Group distributes guidelines and handbooks,
and issues periodic reminders to customer-facing employees,
while running workshops to emphasise the importance of
protecting personal data.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws or regulations that has a significant
impact concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling or
privacy matters relating to products and services, or methods
of redress during the year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
Fair assessment of suppliers

The Group is committed to upholding relevant laws and
regulations. Purchasing and Business Partner Evaluation
Policies and various procedures provide direction and
guidelines on evaluation and engagement when dealing
with major business partners. This encompasses working
relationships with suppliers of goods and services to ensure
business is being conducted only with legally, financially and
technically-sound entities.

The Group adheres to industry best practices and conducts
fair and unbiased tender processes, where applicable, in
dealings with vendors. When selecting vendors and suppliers,
the Group takes factors into account such as quality of
products and services, past performance, financial standing,
capacity assessment and reputation including track records
in handling social and environmental matters. The Group
expects suppliers to observe the same environmental, social,
health and safety and governance considerations when
carrying out their own operating practices. Procurement
teams are trained to apply each and every aspect of these
policies and procedures when assessing suppliers, while
tendering procedures are always communicated carefully to
vendors, where applicable.
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Anti-corruption

An Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy sets out standards
of conduct all employees are required to follow. The Group
has also established procedures for reporting possible
improprieties relating to matters of financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. The aim is to encourage
employees — and those who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) to report any
suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within the
Group. These procedures aim to provide reporting channels
and guidance, while reassuring “whistle-blowers” they will
be protected against any unfair treatment. Relevant cases
will be followed up independently by internal auditor and
reported to the Audit Committee and senior management.

The Group organises periodic corporate governance seminars
and training on anti-corruption measures and guidelines, as
well as sound operating practices and business ethics.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any of non-compliance with
laws or regulations that has a significant impact concerning
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering during the
year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT
Energy use and carbon emissions

Our office building, IT equipment and infrastructure account
for most of our energy consumption. Environment-protection
policy of the Group details a commitment to minimise the
negative impact of business activities on the environment
and support protection initiatives.

The Group demonstrated a keen sense of minimising energy
consumption by adopting the optimal temperature set-point
of 24°C ~ 26°C for office buildings and facilities.

The Group strived to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions
through enhancing energy efficiency and reducing energy
consumption across operations.

As of 31 March 2019, the Group has equipped with one
electric vehicle in its fleet of total four vehicles. In the next
five years, the Group will gradually upgrade the remaining
vehicles.
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In or around 2016, the Group launched a printer cartridge
recycle programme. Used cartridge were sent for refill or
recycling. So far, the Group has also achieved 100% use of
re-filled cartridge for printing.

As an active participant in the broad information technology
industry, the Group has been keeping abreast of new trends
and development. In particular, the Group encouraged
employees to take part in the Ant Forest initiative to reduce
carbon emission through mobile APP (Ali Pay) which convert
daily exercise statistics into carbon emission reduction
equivalent. For the year ended 31 March 2019, our
employees has achieved a total of 4,868 kg carbon emission
reduction through this initiative.

Since February 2018, Along Grid has been granted the
ISO14001: Certificate of Environment Management System
Certification.

Waste management

Our non-hazardous waste mainly consists of general office
waste. To ensure our waste disposal methods are in line with
local regulations, we engage professional cleaning service
providers and contractors to handle this waste.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that has a significant
impact concerning air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water or land, or generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste during the year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR COMMUNITY

The Group engages in a wide range of philanthropic efforts
to benefit the community. Such initiatives include employee
volunteerism, education and health care. In line with sound
corporate governance practice, donations and contributions
are subject to internal compliance guidelines and controls in
order to safeguard stakeholder interests.

The Group has adopted a public engagement and donation
policy to encourage service to the community through staff
voluntary efforts and by way of cash and in-kind donations.
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Based on our cooperation framework agreement with NCPU,
the Group is also planning to offer internship opportunities
to students with appropriate background.

Since November 2017, Along Grid has been accredited as
a qualified employer that offers internship opportunities to
graduates from software and information service related
subjects in university in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei area. As of
31 March 2019, Along Grid has offered internship positions
to a number of candidates and also successfully assisted
them to secure job offers subsequently.

2019 Environmental Key Performance Indicators
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Notes:

1. “tonnes Co, e” is the short form of tonnes carbon dioxide
equivalent.

2. Scope 1 emissions generated from petrol from fleet.

3. Scope 2 emissions generated from the electricity consumed by
office of the Group.

4. Rounded to the nearest tonne.

5. Attributable to knowledge-intense nature of business, the Group

did not general hazardous wastes or consume any packaging
materials in its normal course of operation. The Group also only
consumes a very limited amount of energy, paper and water
and the consumption intensity in respect of energy, paper and
Water, as well generation of waster are minimal.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting to shareholders
their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As an ICT service provider, the Group is dedicated to IloT
related technical innovation and its application in smart
energy loT and smart city loT businesses. The Group provides
tailor-made software and solutions, technical services and
hardware products to various types of energy companies,
government and corporate customers.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries are
set out on page 195 to 196 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), comprising a discussion and analysis
of the Group's performance during the year, a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred during the year ended 31 March 2019, as well as
an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group, are provided in the following sections:

o “Financial Review"” on page 18.

° “Chairman’s Statement”, “Business Review"”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Group
Capital Resources and Liquidity” and “Key Financial
Information” on pages 8 to 33.

° “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on pages 30 to
32.

o “Financial Risk Management” in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 215 to
221.
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o “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 33 to 59.

° Discussions on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, an account of the Group’s key
relationships with its stakeholders and the Group's
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group
are provided in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 60 to 69.

All such discussions form part of this report.
GROUP PROFIT

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 98 to 99. The state of
affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 100 to 101 and note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report, respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (year ended 31 March
2018: Nil).

# The Company is not aware of any arrangement under which
a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends
(Appendix 16,17)

RESERVES

The reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 102 to 103 and
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
As at 31 March 2019, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium and
retained loss, amounted to approximately RMB141,393,000
(2018: approximately RMB93,355,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not

make any donation to charitable organisations (year ended
31 March 2018: RMBO0.8 million).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up
to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
WANG Dongbin (Chairman)
WU Zhanjiang (Note 1)

WU Hongyuan (Note 2)

LI Kangying (Note 3)

INEDs

NG Kong Fat
HAN Bin
WANG Peng

Note 1: Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed as executive Director on 24
July 2018 and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

Note 3: Mr Li Kangying was appointed as executive Director on 24 July
2018

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Dongbin, Mr. Wu Hongyuan and
Mr. Ng Kong Fat shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received written confirmation from all
INEDs regarding their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the INEDs to be
independent.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON
THE COMPANY

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, to the best of
their knowledge, information and belief, the Directors were
not aware of any non-compliance by the Company with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors of the
Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty. Directors liability insurance is in place to protect
the Directors of the Company or of its subsidiaries against
any potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors. The relevant provisions in the Articles
of Association and the Directors liability insurance are in
force during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as of the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which a subsidiary,
fellow subsidiary or holding company of the Company was
a party in which a Director of the Company or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year 31 March 2019 or
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 March 2019.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction during the year ended 31 March
2019 which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules. Related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are disclosed in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
confirms that the Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company

BEBALRBERS

B iR A ISR 2730 EEIN - RATIRE
izo19¢3)ﬂ31 B E RN RS EAZR
BEETRANFURBENEERS - ~EE
REZE201993A31H IEFE AT K RIEE
AEZZRER Hﬁ%i&i’%%zz%%&“
ESEARAREIRE EWHRANE14AE
TEAERERT -

EERBRSTRASRKRG - HERD
RfEZzEHREKA

MR20194F3A31H  EERARAESITH
AERARRSET AR EE(FxERFE
HREFEEMIEXVED) 2 i - ARG, &

TT%?EP?‘?&*ﬁﬁ?ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬂ%XV*B%7
N B8N B ME AR T KBt Ffr 2 ek M
KR (BIERIEESMPERN 2 ZE KX
RAEANEERBRSHEE S RAR) » 5
BERRARRRIEZES KA EKHIZE352
EREEFEzECLM  SBREZESTREM
CARRNA MR ESEFRBIT

RADRRE - HERDRES 2 EE KK
B

RAR AR RAGREIR (7.2 4 &

Approximate

% of
Number of shareholding
Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held ERE
= B0 REmtE FERGHE BMABE2E
Wang Dongbin Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000
FHE EiEEER
Beneficial owner 1,000,000%
ERBEBA
61,000,000 12.07%
Li Kangying Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000
TR Xy EEER
Beneficial owner 1,000,000@
ERBEBA
61,000,000 12.07%
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Approximate

% of
Number of shareholding
Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held HRE
BE= 513, RmitE KFERGEE BHBEIE
Wu Zhanjiang Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000
REUT R EEER
Beneficial owner 1,000,000.00@
ERBAEA
61,000,000 12.07%
Wu Hongyuan Beneficial owner 1,200,000.00@ 0.237%
SO BaEAA
Ng Kong Fat Beneficial owner 500,000.00@ 0.099%
Ryt ERBEBEA
Han Bin Beneficial owner 500,000.00® 0.099%
EBH ERBEAA
Wang Peng Beneficial owner 500,000.00® 0.099%
Tl ERBAEA
Notes: FFE
1 These Shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned 1 ZER D B Smart EastiF B - ZARIHAER

by Mr. Wang Dongbin.

2 These Shares were held by Main Wealth, which was wholly 2
owned by Mr. Li Kangying.

3 These Shares were held by Union Sino, which was wholly owned 3
by Mr. Wu Zhanjiang.

4 These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the 4
options granted by the Company on 30 July 2018 pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme adopted on 5 February 2018 (“Share
Option Scheme™”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, none of the Directors,
substantial shareholders of the Company nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business which causes or may
cause significant competition with the business of the Group. KRS

WAL ERER -

ZEMR D EHMain Wealth#58 + ZARIBEF
MEEELEHER -

%MD fiUnion Sino¥E B XA RIHRE
IRERERS -

ZERMIEARLTN20184F7 A308 RERH
201842 A5 A M A B AL iE =T 8 ([ BB AR 42
FTEID RIS T RARRER D -

EERBERB 2 ES

REZE2019F3A31HLFE £ - AR
AITERMRFMEANEESECETHEA
(FER LR A B ¥ 2R & F 275
BRI BB E A B M ES P A M

Em °
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2019,
other than the interests and short positions of the Directors
as disclosed in the section titled “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above, the following persons
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:

Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company

REFHZRPERIATRE ZRRE

BmRAR

MANTIEEMAL - R2019F3AH318 -
B[ EEREEITHRABRES « 18
e MESH 2w AR IR 2 A A A
BEZERIORBIN  THATEARRFRK
PSRRI (D R A R IEE S R EEAE
XVEBE2 R EIDEIREBRIAR N AIHEEE -
HEERLRARRREESMBEKGE
336K EBF 2 ERLM - sEMERRT]
KRBT 2 RERMBOR B

FERRREDTARG RAEBRG 2 EHER
KB

AR EIR G RIGBEK D Z 4B

Approximate

% of
Number of  shareholding
Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held ERE
BEx 55 EniE FERGHE BMAOBSL
Xiong Weiqin Interest of spouse 61,000,000 12.07%
RRET= [kt e
An Ning Interest of spouse 61,000,000@ 12.07%
ZE [kt e
Zhang Jianhua Interest of spouse 61,000,000® 12.07%
R [kt e
Smart East Beneficial owner 60,000,0004 11.87%
BEHEBEAA
Main Wealth Beneficial owner 60,000,000 11.87%
BEEBEAA
Union Sino Beneficial owner 60,000,000© 11.87%
BEEBEAA
Long Eagle Beneficial owner 60,000,0007 11.87%
BEEBEAA
Cao Wei Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000 11.87%
T REEEER
Wang Jiangping Interest of spouse 60,000,000® 11.87%

T
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Approximate

% of

Number of  shareholding

Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held HEIRE

S B4 ERtE BERHHE BMAOBEDL

Chance Talent Management Limited  Beneficial owner 45,072,000 8.92%

EREEA

CCBI Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%
REEE R

CCB International (Holdings) Limited  Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%
FERBIRR (R AR A A R EE R

CCB Financial Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%
BITemZERERAR LR R

CCB International Group Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%

Holdings Limited B

BITRR R EZERER AR R EE R

China Construction Bank Corporation Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%
B RIRITIRID BIR A A R EE R

Central Huijin Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%
PRESKREBRBMERT] RpEEER

Great Attain International Limited Beneficial owner 124,191,17700 24.58%

Notes:

BEmfEBA

Ms. Xiong Weigin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Dongbin, an
executive director of the Company. Under the SFO, Ms Xiong is
deemed to be interested in the 60,000,000 Shares held by Smart
East as mentioned in Note 4 and 1,000,000 underlying Shares
under the outstanding options granted by the Company to Mr.
Wang pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Ms. An Ning is the spouse of Mr. Li Kangying, an executive
director of the Company. Under the SFO, Ms. An is deemed to
be interested in the 60,000,000 Shares held by Main Wealth as
mentioned in Note 5 and 1,000,000 underlying Shares under
the outstanding options granted by the Company to Mr. Li
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Ms. Zhang Jianhua is the spouse of Mr. Wu Zhanjiang, an
executive director of the Company. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhang
is deemed to be interested in the 60,000,000 Shares held by
Union Sino as mentioned in Note 6 and 1,000,000 underlying
Shares under the outstanding options granted by the Company
to Mr. Wu pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

These Shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Dongbin, an executive Director.

FHAE

BB E R T ARNRRRITES TR LA
BB o IRIEEFRAE SN - s TR
REERE4RT It Smart Easti® A #960,000,000/%
Betn  LARARARIREERET SR T A
A 18 R 1T (5 A B AR B 1B T 891,000,000 %
AR P AR -

RBEZ T RARNRPITESTETNREENE
18 o IRIEEF RBE KRG - TR IWARIER
sERES ATt Main Wealth3s 4 #960,000,0000%
[R5 - ARAREIRIRE R 8% T2=5%E
A ) 1 AR 1T 89 B AR FE TE T 491,000,000 A%
BRI PR -

REELZLTAARRRITESRETIEERN
Be4® o IRIEFEF RBAEKA - RZTWRIE
A FEFE6FT it Union Sino#3 A #960,000,0000%
B ARARBIRIEERET SR FRE
A B A AR 1T (58 Y B AR 1 T /91,000,000 %
RIS A R o

ZER D HASmart FastiFh - ZARIHAAR

AITESETRIREE2EHR -
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5 These Shares were held by Main Wealth, which was wholly
owned by Mr. Li Kangying, an executive Director.

6 These Shares were held by Union Sino, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Wu Zhanjiang, an executive Director.

7 These Shares were held by Long Eagle, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Cao Wei.
8 Ms. Wang Jiangping is the spouse of Mr. Cao Wei. Under the

SFO, Ms. Wang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Long Eagle as mentioned in Note 7.

9 These Shares were held by Chance Talent. As at the date of this
report, China Construction Bank Corporation was owned by
Central Huijin Investment Limited as to approximately 57.31%.
CCB International Group Holdings Limited was wholly owned by
China Construction Bank Corporation. CCB Financial Holdings
Limited was wholly owned by CCB International Group Holdings
Limited. CCB International (Holdings) Limited was wholly owned
by CCB Financial Holdings Limited. CCBI Investments was wholly
owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited. Chance Talent
was wholly owned by CCBI Investments. Each of Central Huijin
Investment Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial
Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI
Investments is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
Chance Talent is interested in.

10 Great Attain International Limited is owned as to 25% by
each of Smart East, Long Eagle, Main Wealth and Union Sino
respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the
Directors have not been notified by any person (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 5 February 2018 for the purpose
of enabling the Group to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group.

The details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus of the Company dated 12 February 2018.
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The exercise price was determined as the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Shares of HK$0.800 as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of granting
the options; and (ii) the average closing price of HK$0.798
per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of granting the options.

Particulars of share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year
ended 31 March 2019 and share options granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme during
such period were as follows:

For the six months ended 30 September 2018

BRETEEATIME 2 RaE - ()RE
A% BB P RY B 3RR A AT S 2 T B
S5 0.8008 7T ¢+ M (i EEE R R
i B HART A 3 BB AT R B SRR AT S,
W E AR D0.7988 7T °

HZE2019F3 31 H L FERMH N KR ER

REBRAEET B T RRTTE 2 BB - AR
ZHNARERE R BIR L  171E - L

R BRAEFBWT -

Price of share of the Company

BE201859A30R 1LA(ER KAFARGER
Nurber of
Nurmber of share options
share options held as at
held as at 30 September Exercise prior to
1 April 2018 2018 price Dateof  the exercise
R018E A2018 of share grant of date of
Date of grant of 4R1A Lapsed/ 98308  Exercise period of options  share options share options
Category of participants share options( BEERE Granted Exercised Cancelled ~ %AEME share options BRE BRE it
SRER REgRERH0 #A R it KN/ #A RREGRES k& BFRE  BRERHH
HK$ HKS HKS
BT AT BT
Executive Directors®
#irgzn
-Wang Dongbin - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 080 0.80 NA
-IR0 ¥k
- W Hongyuan - 120000 - 1,200,000 080 080 NA
-REH ¥k
- LiKangying - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.80 0.80 A
-BhE ¥k
- Wu Zhanjiang - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.80 0.80 A
-REI ¥k
INEDs? - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 30 July 20180
[N GEED 30 July 2018 31 December 2021
-NG Kong Fat 018F7A30H - 500,000 - 500,000 201857A30EE 080 0.80 A
-RRE 15128318 ¥k
-HanBin - 500,000 - 500,000 080 0.80 A
&Y TR
- Wang Peng - 500,000 - 500,000 080 0.80 A
- ¥k
Other employees of the Group®® - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 080 080 A
FELfER TR
Advisers to the Group® - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 080 080 N/A
F5EERY ¥k
Total - 6700000 - 26,700,000
ot
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Notes:

(1) 20%, 30% and 50% of the share options granted will vest
on each of 30 June 2019, 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021,
respectively.

2) Vesting of the share options granted to independent non-
executive Directors and advisers to the Group is not conditional
upon satisfaction of any vesting conditions.

Vesting of the share options granted to executive Directors and
other employees of the Group is conditional upon satisfaction of
certain performance conditions applicable to relevant grantees.

(3) Do not include the executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang
Dongbin, Mr. Wu Hongyuan, Mr. Li Kangying and Mr. Wu
Zhanjiang.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme”) to (i) recognise and reward the contribution of
certain eligible participants to the growth and development
of the Group and to give incentives thereto in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme was adopted by the Board on 27
July 2018 (“Adoption Date”) and valid and effective for a
term of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. The
aggregate number of the Shares underlying all grants made
during the term of the Share Award Scheme is limited to
3% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The maximum number of awarded shares granted to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

On 27 August 2018, the Board, based on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board, resolved to provide a sum of HK$3.0 million for the
trustee of the Share Award Scheme to purchase Shares from
the market pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Further
details of the Scheme are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 27 July 2018 and 27 August 2018,
respectively.

As of 31 March 2019, there were 4,556,000 Shares held in
trust by the trustee under the Share Award Scheme. As of 31
31 March 2019, no Share has been awarded by the Board to
any eligible participant of the Share Award Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company does not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding in the
Company's Share.

SHARES/DEBENTURES ISSUED

Other than the allotment and issue of Consideration Shares
for the purpose of the Acquisition as disclosed in the Circular
of the Company dated 15 January 2019, no shares or
debentures of the Company were issued during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2019 were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiary corporations or fellow subsidiary corporations
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company.

e 17
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentages of
revenue attributable to major customers of the Group were as
follows:

IERFRHER

REZE2019F3A31HILFE - REBKB
FERPZRBZHAEERZ ZED N
T

Percentage of
total revenue
of the Group

hAEE =

HWEESL

The largest customer BE—HRAKF 52.46%
Five largest customers combined BIAREFEET 93.94%

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentages of
purchases attributable to the major suppliers of the Group
were as follows:

REZE2019F3A31BIEFE » AEBE M T
DHEPRBHASERERE G LN
T

Percentage of
total purchases
of the Group

{EAEE MRS

BEADL

The largest supplier B AEER 38.31%
Five largest suppliers combined AR AR ER AT 66.71%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of Directors own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had
any interest in the major customers and/or suppliers noted
above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
at all times throughout the period from the Listing Date to
31 March 2019 as required under the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 18
September 2019. Shareholders of the Company should
refer to the details regarding the AGM in the circular to be
despatched by the Company and the notice of meeting and
form of proxy accompanying therewith.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 13 September 2019 to Wednesday, 18
September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 12 September 2019 (Hong
Kong time), being the last registration date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2019 have been audited by
KPMG Certified Public Accountants who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
OneForce Holdings Limited
WANG Dongbin

Chairman

Beijing, China, 21 June 2019
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Financial Information

MBER

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (Note 1)

IE S-S

(BREmEEI

FrE @ BAARE T RE8)

meaBmER(E

For the year ended 31 March

HE=A=1t—"BItFE
2015 2016 2017 2018 m
Revenue A 47,899 59,047 87,338 85,799 115,108
Profit before taxation BB B A 15,491 25,635 21,692 20,528 21,837
Income tax FriS#i (2,070) (3,467) (3,688) (3,806) (1,583)
Profit for the year AR AL
attributable to FERHEF
equity holders 13,421 22,168 18,004 16,722 20,254
Earning per share AT
Basic and diluted HEAR KL ES
(RMB) (ARE) i@ A i A NiE 5.71 5.20
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Note 2) AR R R (FEE2)
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 m
Total assets BEHE 125,227 111,036 128,911 216,165 328,064
Total liabilities BE8TE 70,527 46,672 19,222 27,845 66,651
Net assets FEE 54,700 64,364 109,689 188,320 261,413
Total equity Wk 54,700 64,364 109,689 188,320 261,413

Note 1: The results of operation for the years ended 31 March 2015,
2016 and 2017 are derived from document of global offering of
the Company. The results of operation for the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2019 are set out on pages 98 to 99. All such
information is extracted from the financial statements prepared
under International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

Note 2: The consolidated financial position as at 31 March 2015, 2016
and 2017 are derived from document of global offering of the
Company. The consolidated financial position as at 31 March
2018 and 2017 are set out on pages 100 to 101. All such
information is extracted from the financial statements prepared

under IFRS.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

E_M?%lﬁiﬁiﬁth

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
OneForce Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 229, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code") together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

BRANEZERAERATDRRNE L ZBEAMBRES
(RESEEZMA LA BHRLA])

o)
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TAZEEM (AT RBIEAM ) BT EHR
F98E 2298 ML NIERR AR A E (LA T
BMEAR D REMBRARTUATHREIEE
B MG eiBmE LB REREER
20193 A31 MR G MBI R EEEZ
mirm,ﬁ%ma %&Hﬁﬁi@uﬁz/%
EREEHRNGERESRER + URER

REnE
éﬂ?ﬁ%#&i‘%ﬂﬁﬁ @%Ix SETHRIE -

BPRE  ZEHRAVERREBERES
‘Jr/iﬁlJEE%A(FI e ERIEES | )M
PRSI S EADEEmMP SR T
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e WEBREB(AREIDNEERTE

RRHER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

BARETSEE

BREFFHEERERMANERALE - AR
BAFGRAVBRRNEARSEENSE
B EUFREERMBA BB UHER
KEHABREETRIEN - RATSHE
LERRBHEBOER o

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

BRKATER

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI BRI M T2 B 5B KA it4
The Key Audit Matter
BREEEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRE P EEZSENG X

The Group’s business involves entering into
contractual relationships with customers to provide a
range of services, including the provision of design,
implementation, enhancement and upgrades of
software systems and the provision of technical
services for power grid and other distribution
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC").

EEENER S NATPII LA HBE - ARHE—
IR - ERATEARAMBE([HE)EER
RELARRHRKE - 31T - BAARFAREE RS R
PRI ARR

A significant proportion of the Group's revenue and
profits is derived from long-term contracts, most of
which are fixed price contracts.
ERENRIBABARRFRERBELH - HPX
MO RBEEBREL -

The recognition of revenue on long-term contracts
is based on the stage of completion of work
performed on a contract at the reporting date. The
recognition of revenue for an incomplete project is
dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
contract as well as the work performed to date.
REEONRATIERRE BB S OMETTZT
TERY ST B BRI TR o ARSEAKIA B AV A REREUR R
BRNEFTRER - URIESEETIEE -
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
contract revenue included the following:

BAIFHE S AR B R FEIEATEIA -

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
recognition of contract revenue, including
the controls over recording work done,
invoicing and cash receipts;

J B i e m Ak 51 B KO W AR 0 3 ZE R ERIE
BRRGET - ITEEA L - BIEYREHE
ST TR - BERERIR S UEREVIES]

o selecting a sample of contracts, using a
variety of quantitative and qualitative criteria,
and performing the following procedures for
each contract selected:

J PBEHER - A TRNEE MEMRE
NELATEME SRS N EBIEA TR

OneForce Holdings Limited



Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AN R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition of contract revenue

BRWARER

FEETEE(A)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI A B RN 20) 8 BB R R 4
The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRARFSTPEEZBEANS X

Forecasting the outcome of a contract involves the
exercise of significant management judgement in
relation to estimating the total costs for individual
contracts. These assumption include estimating
future labour costs required to complete the contract
based on the customised specifications of individual
contract. Errors in contract forecasts could result in
a material variance in the amount of profit or loss
recognised to date and therefore also in the current
period.
FREWER R EES AN EIREIE
HEBEAFIE - ELBRREEENEES O TERA
BRIEFT TR A K PIFBEREALRAE o & 49788
IR BB S MANBRSHEFEERER -
WMATERRNBRR T -

We identified the recognition of contract revenue
as a key audit matter because contract revenue
accounts for a significant proportion of the
Group’s revenue and because the recognition of
contract revenue involves a significant degree of
management judgement in assessing factors which
can be inherently uncertain and may be subject to
management bias.
BARENRAERREAREAFE  RERALN
WAL SEEBERANEKLS - BELHOKBARER
B REHERI e R EE A T HE M EZRIELEXR
EREHE PR FEEIRER RIRERIER

inspecting key terms, including
pricing, deliverables, timetable and
milestones, which were set out in
the contracts and inquiring of the
relevant project managers about key
aspects of the contract, including the
estimated total contract costs, key
project risks, contingencies and billing
schedules;

BESLHHINNERE - XN - KEK
NEREETZIERNMEMER K
BERAONTIENE  BiEEE
BRAKRA - TBEARR - HAEE
N B B AR

challenging the underlying
judgements of senior operational and
financial management personnel in
their estimations of total estimated
contract costs and estimated costs to
complete the contract where it was
still in progress at the reporting date
by comparing their estimates with
relevant underlying documentation,
including suppliers’ quotations and
agreed contracts;

BAKEAEE RMBER ARG
AHEEEX A (BREREBOHRER
BESH) L - BREEMTAML
AHARARARTER @S B BN EE
TR E KR AT ARCRRE L 48R
HEf
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FARETEE(E)

Recognition of contract revenue

BHRBARER

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI B AT 2() 8 B T B K it 4

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HARETER RAREBSPEEZXSEEANG X

- comparing items recorded as contract
costs during the year with suppliers’
contracts, third party engineers’
certifications of work completed,
where applicable, and other relevant
underlying documentation;

- R ERARYI RS KRARIER Bt
EEa4 F=HFIREMEAEMNTIE
SERCREBR (ANE A ) M B A AR A ST 13
THEE

- agreeing total contract revenue to the
contracted terms;
= B & KEFRR S KA

- comparing the percentages of
completion as assessed by the
Group's project managers with the
customer’s certifications of work
completed;

- b BEEEEALEFENTIE
SLLEE S AR TIETTAER

- recalculating the percentage of
completion based on contract costs
incurred up to the reporting date and
estimated total contract costs; and

- ERNBEEHREBHEENSHKE R
HEt AN AEFRFTETIASD
ke &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition of contract revenue

BRWARER

FRETEE(E)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

SRR A R AN E20) B EHR R4

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

RREER BRARFSTPEEZBEANS X

on a sample basis, comparing management’s
estimated costs to complete selected
contracts at the end of the previous financial
year with actual costs incurred during
the current year and enquiring of the
management about any significant variances
identified; and

BEAEELREREN F—EFRERE R
et TR E SN A RN FEESANE
BRACAR - SIS 22 fE AR 9 BT a8 Bl ) (R f BB K
ZH R

on a sample basis, discussing with project
managers the stage of completion and
services provided.

REAREEEIE R KB RT LR RFTR
AR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

E L E S )

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets

EZRWHRERESNEENERRE

Refer to accounting policy Notes 2(n) and 2(o) and Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

BERIRE I TE IR 2(n) FI2(0)H & 5B R et 167117

The Key Audit Matter
BEREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAREBSPEEZXSEEANG X

The Group’s operations gave rise to significant trade
receivable balances and contract assets. As at 31
March 2019, trade receivables and contract assets
amounted to RMB73,008,000 and RMB44,235,000
respectively, which represented 22% and 13% of
the total assets of the Group respectively.
EEENKCEENELAREEIRRFELEHR K
BHEE - N201943A318 - EHEKFERA
WEEED B AARET3,008,0005T kAR
44,235,0007T * D hlth EXEEAEEN22% Kk
13% °

The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” on 1 April 2018 and recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
April 2018.

BEEEERN20185F4 A 18 BIRERANBIRR B 75 5 4
AIERIemMT A WHERBAXEANRGFTE
EREIN20185F4 A1 B FER A R EE o

The Group measures loss allowances on trade
receivables and contract assets at amounts equal
to lifetime expected credit losses (the “ECL")
using a provision matrix which involved significant
management judgement in estimating loss rate and
adjusting factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

EREFABREREERNBRAEHEEBE
WEEAEEHRIFIBRENEENBERER -
ERSREGABERERAREBEARERAEZTE
EAEIEEHE R E RS B HE IR & FRR B

AR AP -
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets included
the following:

BFFHAE ZRKKIE R AN EEBERENE
BFEEATEE

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection
and estimating loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets;

. PR N ET R B E B S - Bk E R E
PRVFEREHNEENEERETEN T
EREEHIRRET « AT REERRIL

o comparing, on a sample basis, the
categorisation of trade receivables and
contract assets in the ageing report with
invoices issued, contract terms, contract
progress reports and other relevant
underlying documentation;

. MR BRERBRETESREFIBERGOE
ENDBEEAAENEER  SOGKK - 84
R E M AR R

o obtaining an understanding on the key
data and assumption of the expected credit
loss model adopted by the management,
including the basis of the segmentation of
the trade receivables and contract assets
based on the credit risk characteristics, the
historical default data, and the assumptions
involved in management’s estimated loss
rate;

. BREREMEMNTEREESEEANE
ZEHBRLEFR - BEREEERBRER ML
NESHREREREHNEEN D FELE - B
FEAOBBELEEBGANEREMY RN

Bk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FEETEE(A)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
ESERRWFERENEENEIERE
Refer to accounting policy Notes 2(n) and 2(o) and Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI E B SR 2(n)F2(0)B) & FTIBR KTt 167117

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREITEE

BRARFSTPEEZBEANS X

We identified assessing adequacy of loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets as a key
audit matter because of the significance of the
balances of trade receivables and contract assets to
the consolidated financial statements and because
of the significant management judgement required
in estimating the loss allowances at the reporting
date, which can be inherently uncertain.

BT HESRERERGNEENEBREHT
BRAERBRETFE  RELGFSMBRE
NESRKREREGNEEABRENBRRE B
At BEERETEERRBIEHARAFTER THETE
G0Nl |-

assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance estimates
by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information;
EERENEERERANEEN - &
REHNBEBANUAEKZSHENER - 8
FAIBURTE OBIR R ERIL KA REE
BRESIRBERLERE MR EERHE
HIREFE

inspecting cash receipts, on a sample basis,
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances
and contract assets as at 31 March 2019;
and

MEMENPEF4E R EE TS KEEE2019
FIANBNEFGRRFIBERRENEE
BENRE &

assessing the Group’s disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of trade receivables and contract assets
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
S2ERTEAEUNNRTE - M EEER
FEMBBRENEUBE FRRFTIAREKHE
ERIRER o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Accounting for the acquisition of subsidiaries

W F R AN EE

E L E S )

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(e) and Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI e TSI &M T 2(e) @At B K Hfat27
The Key Audit Matter
BEREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAREBSPEEZXSEEANG X

On 28 February 2019, the Group completed the
acquisition of Great Progress International Limited
(the “Target Company”) and the consideration
shares of 124,191,177 were allotted and issued.
Further details are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

201942 H28H + ESERBRERET
124 1N N7T7TRREBRG X T EHERBRER A
A BREARDHKEE - E— S BRYINGEE N
BEHREMIEE27A o

The bargain purchase gain from this acquisition
amounted to RMB11,596,000, which represented
the excess of the Group’s share of the fair value of
the identifiable net assets, including the intangible
assets of software and patents, of the acquired
business over the fair value of consideration shares
issued on 28 February 2019.

ERAMNBRELANREBERENRARK
11,596,0007¢C " mAREZ EERBEFGEKREEBH
BHRENERTLEENFIBNFEEATE
BHEN2019%2 A28 #THERO A FENED -
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Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for
the acquisition of Target Company included the
following:
HAFHERE R RARN S RENEITEFEHE
ANEIR -

o inspecting the sale and purchase agreement
and evaluating management’s accounting
treatment for the acquisition with reference
to the terms set out in the sale and purchase
agreement;

. EEEE G W2 EZEEHET K
PERMEEREBHRANBN SR

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation
assessment prepared by the directors and on
which the directors’ assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired
was based;

. BV EESEEREUREEHEMUBEEE
KRB EHAFEMRENGEER S
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Accounting for the acquisition of subsidiaries

BT A ENEEE

FEETEE(A)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(e) and Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements

BT AT IR M i 2(e) B FHBE K at27
The Key Audit Matter
HRETEHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRARFSTPEEZBEANS X

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired in the transactions were assessed by the
directors which required the exercise of significant
judgement and estimation, particularly in relation to
the forecast of future performance of the businesses
acquired.
ERURERFTREBNARRIEERBENRT
BTG o FHEFELERAEEEE - 551
T B B S TSR R R BV TR RIAE AR A T -

We identified the accounting for the acquisition
of Target Company as a key audit matter because
of the significant impact the acquisition has on
the consolidated financial statements and because
the valuation of assets and liabilities acquired can
be inherently subjective and requires significant
judgement and estimation which increases the risk
of error or potential management bias.
BHABKRBEEEARNGTREABERESSF
B ARERAKESUHEAMBBRRELTAY
255 HRKENEERAENGHEFERS
HEE - BEERAE LG AmMEMTRE
BB IEER RO ERE o

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, discussing with the management
the valuation methodologies adopted with
reference to industry standards and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards in assessing the fair values of
the assets and liabilities acquired, including
intangible assets, and challenging the
assumptions and critical judgements which
impacted their valuation by comparing these
assumptions and critical judgements with
market data and the Group’s business plan
supporting the acquisition; and

EHMNABEEZIOBET - 2E1T
ERERBTEA LR ENGEETE
HERENmANTARKBNEEREE
(BREELEE) X TENMBERZE - BE/
7 B E AR R N B8 52 ) i B2 T 55 BUR DA
K BEERREOEBGI T -
Bz ERER MR &

assessing the Group’s disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the acquisition with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

SLERTEEUNRE - FHE EEELK
B BHREANG AR X ERIKE -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and no for other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

BB ET R EMBHRRABNERE

BAWER  RUGEMBERREBES T
T KRR S8l AR T B B ) B A SR AR PRt
MFEEMRE - YHASERMERNER
Ah¥RE -

AREERDRIREE - FRILAS - A
MRS TR BERM AR o RAETBLAR
EHAT - HTAEMA TR REREABLR
BfE-

BERBERKENRE - BTEERERR
(BAREMEANDETHET  EX—EAHE
R AR BE IR - S ARERAL AT A IR
AEREHAR S| - ARG EFER T IEFRE
RIER G BB M RRERERBEI T
WRMEHHEERTE - B R0 RRER A
WEEENX »

ERE(RBEERDETETBRES -
BPERTERHAME - RIF T EXIRME
B ° FAFITF -

—  HERIMFHE RS R M BT
EMBHRRFEERNERBLNE
B BRAtRMITERME T IARE L
Rk - ARERFEEMEENBRR
& ERRFITENER - mXRGEF
AIEESRERR  BE BRER &
fRERA - SORBERAEESZ £ -
I ARREZ IR A A FF M B EREER
Rt E R S A AR RE R E B R T
BB KRR -

—  BREBHIEROAEE - Uik
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SEANMEFNERMEERER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AN R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

21 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB"))

HE2019F3A31ALEFE
(AARBTAREDITR)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Selling expenses

Administrative and other operating

expenses

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Profit from operations

Net finance costs
— Finance income
— Finance costs

Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries

Costs incurred in connection with the
acquisition of subsidiaries

Costs incurred in connection with the
initial listing of the Company’s shares

Share of losses of an associate

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the

Company

Earnings per share
Basic/diluted (RMB cents)

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 April

WA
HERKAR

ER

HAbWA
HEEM
TREEMBEEER

B SR IR R EE 1R
OB R

BB AR
—BEWRA
—BERA
WEFRRREBE G
BRI B ARESE
HIRR AN
BREAABRMNERLT
PTEE AR
FE1E— B & A R B

BRBE A2
RS
RARERRREGEFR

Pyl

BREF
BER/BE(ARESD)

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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2018
Note
FEiE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt NG ARETT
4 115,108 85,799
(77,208) (45,631)
4(b) 37,900 40,168
5 5,781 7,094
(6,689) (4,700)
(19,921) (10,877)
6(b) (1,066) =
16,005 31,685
(214) =
17 =
(231) =
27(d) 11,596 =
(5,309) =
- (11,157)
(241) =
6 21,837 20,528
7 (1,583) (3,806)
20,254 16,722
10 5.20 5.71

AEMMA2018454 A1 8 & X e B R
WEERF 155 R EERMBEREERE9
o RIBFMETBE AL LBEANTFE

5l o REFEE2(c) °

F106 B EF 2298 WK
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEEkREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
(Expressed in RMB)
BE2019F3A31BILFE
(AARKETR)

2018
Note
T

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T NG S

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year (after tax)

Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation

FREF 20,254 16,722

FAHMEEBA (BRBE)

HREAISEMABEERE/IAR ¢

—BREREIERMELZR

into presentation currency 5,539 (2,958)
Total comprehensive income for RATERBRREGFEA
the year attributable to equity 2EKALE
shareholders of the Company 25,793 13,764
Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 April 2 ARER20184471 B ERERERA
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative WMEEME ISR RBERM B REEREI

information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated )

financial statements.

5o RIBAIEERETE  LBEBTTE
5l o BBfIEE2(c)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEPBIRR R

At 31 March 2019
(Expressed in RMB)
M2019F3H31H

(AARETR)

2018
Note
FEiE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo5E ARET T NS
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE N ERE 11 26,108 785
Intangible assets B AE 12 73,416 18,153
Interest in an associate A — A S A RS 14 2,681 =
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBE E 24(b) 3,106 =
105,311 18,938
Current assets REEE
Inventories and contract costs FERARKAR 15 11,697 8,036
Contract assets EREE 16 44,235 -
Trade and bill receivables B S EWEIA K BN RS 17 73,008 91,132
Prepayments, deposits and other TANFIE - ek
receivables Hib el I8 18 28,520 10,650
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 19 65,293 87,409
222,753 197,227
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables Z S ENTRIE 20 9,699 5,606
Other payables and accruals Hi e RIa R ERE 21 21,630 12,579
Bank loans IRITER 22 23,839 =
Income tax payable FERFTIS L 24(a) 8,633 6,807
63,801 24,992
Net current assets REBEEFE 158,952 172,235
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBASE 264,263 191,173
Non-current liabilities kFRBAaE
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIREE 24(b) 2,850 2,853
Net assets EEZFE 261,413 188,320
The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated E106 B2 F 229 B MK AR & B B K

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mEBIRR R (F)

At 31 March 2019
(Expressed in RMB)
M2019F3H31H
(AARETR)

Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital [N
Reserves fEf

Total equity R

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 April
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 21 June 2019.

o

2018

Note

TR

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

F=E ARBT T NS
25

4,141 3,083

257,272 185,237

261,413 188,320

AEMPN20185F4 71 B HIRE R BRI
EERNE15HE KBRS REERNFH -
RBFTEERBIDE  LLBREMTTES

R0 »

BEEEMN2019F6 A21 B E R IFRETE -

Wang Dongbin Wu Hongyuan
ERME R
Chairman Director

e EF

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
mEEREEX

For the year ended 31 March 2019

(Expressed in RMB)

HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

(AARKED|R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERRES

Shares held
under
share
Share award Share Other ~ Statutory Exchange  Retained Total
capitasl  scheme  premium  reserves  reserves  reserve profits equity
RERH
R
fi&Et
e Rkt ROEE EtRE iERE  EXRE  REEN  RRAS
Note RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARE  ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE

i3 n T T T n T T T
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
25(0) 5 25(g)) 25(0)i) - 25(g)i)
(Rt (Kt (Kt (Rt ik
50) 5@ 250)) 2500))  25(gli)
At 1 April 2017 R201754R18 = = 25,747 52,609 2,959 (1035 29409 109,689
Changes in equity for ~ EZ2018%3A318
theyearended31  HEEEREH:
March 2018:
Proft and tota ERERREERA
comprehensive income  #5
for the year - - - - - (2,958) 16,722 13,764
Issuance of shares &t 25(0) 3,083 - 61784 - - - - 64867
Appropriation to reserves  ERZFEE - - - - 1,305 - (1309 -
. — S B e e - M GR
At 31 March 2018 H2018%3431R 3,083 = 87,531 52,609 4,264 (3993) 4486 183320
Impact on initial MR RERa RS E
application of RS9 BJE9%HZ/2
(Note 2(c)i) (Rr&2(c)) - - - - - - Wnm o @
At 1 April 2018 H018%4R18 3083 Sms %2609 4264 (3993) 40104 183508

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated F106HEEF 2298 MK G A I B ImE
financial statements. —&5H -
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Continued)

REEESBR(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2019
(Expressed in RMB)
HZE2019F3A31AIEFE
(AARETR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RO RRERFER
Shares held
under
share
Share award Share Other ~ Statutory Exchange  Retained Total
capital  scheme  premium  reserves  reserves  reserve profits equity
RERS
L4 RE
FiEl
s Rk ROEE HAbRE  iERE EXRE REEH  RRER
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR% AR ARE ARE AE# NG ARE ARE
fifz T v T T T v T T
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
25(0) 25 25(g)) 25(0)l) 25(g)i)
(Bt ind (st Bzt (Mt
25(0) ) 25(0)0) 25())  25(g)i)
Changes in equity for ~ §Z201953431R
the year ended 31 LEERGEED:
March 2019
Profit and total EREHREERA
comprehensive income 458
for the year = = = = = 5539 20,254 25,193
Equity-settled share-based MR ELRIM &
transaction EENRS - - - 666 - - = 666
Purchase of own shares BB B %M = (2,627) = = = = = (2,627)
Issuance of shares for ~ AUEEHEL AW
the acquisition of £
subsidiaries 25(0) 1,058 - 52,925 - - = = 53,983
Appropriation to reserves  EEZEE - - - - 171 = a7 =
1,058 (2,627) 52,925 666 177 - (177) 52,022
At 31 March 2019 2019535318 4141 (2,627) 140456 53,275 4441 1,546 60,181 261,413
Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 April T AKER2018F481 AR ERBREE S

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

WEERE 155 R ERM B REEAFEI
5o RIBAIEERETE  LBEBTTE
5l o FBIEE2(C)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

AN Eé\‘t E‘%‘%
mEHEERE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
(Expressed in RMB)

BE2019F3A31HLLFE
(AAR®FR)

Note
i
Cash flows from operating activities RZEZENRERE
Profit before taxation RRBE AT R A
Adjustment for: FEIER -
Depreciation and amortisation e Ko ik 6 6(b)
Finance costs BE KA
Impairment loss on trade receivables B SRV REEE 6
Share of losses of an associate AME—FHBE R R 2B
|
Equity-settled share-based transaction — ARRAE 45 E AR (D A5
HEZ 5
Gain on bargain purchase from W B A RIRERE
acquisition of subsidiaries A
Costs incurred in connection with BREWENE R RTE
the acquisition of subsidiaries =0/
Changes in working capital: gEEeE
Increase in inventories HFE®EN
Increase in contract assets ARIEEEN
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bill B 5 R TE N e
receivables BRA ()
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TARFIE - & REAM
deposits and other receivables FEUGRIE (3B A0), R
9\
Increase in restricted cash PRSI & 1E 00
Increase in trade payables B S I FRIRE N
(Decrease)/increase in other payables E b B R ERT R
and accruals X O A), /& m
Cash (used in)/generated from & (FrA) BB
operations Re
Income tax paid B AER 24(a)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  &&EE (FTA),
operating activities SR &R

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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2018

Note

FEiE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NS
21,837 20,528
7,388 2,695
231 =
1,066 =
241 =
666 =
(11,596) =
5,309 =
(3,449) (1,459)
(44,235) =
11,523 (21,476)
(16,271) 56
(25,734) =
2,901 2,689
(4,786) 3,552
(54,909) 6,585
(102) (2,263)
(55,011) 4,322
AP IEmREK
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

Fade)

For the year ended 31 March 2019
(Expressed in RMB)
HZE2019F3A31AIEFE
(AARETR)

Rengk(&)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payments for self-developed intangible
assets

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Payments for cost incurred in
connection with acquisition

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from new borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of shares,
net of transaction costs

Net increase in advances due from
related parties

Payments for the purchase of own
shares under share award scheme

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect on foreign exchange rates
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

Note:

REFDNRERE
BEYX - BEMRE

B

B ERBELEETA

LGN

SR B RIE LR
BESEA
REEDMARSFHE
MEFHNRERE
FESKPTS50R
e
HIFR X Z Ak AR
JE L R ESE T3 O EA 5 R0
EPIIVE:S
REBR D 2=t BB B
B & B HI 5K
EfNFE

BMEEFHRERSFR

iﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
W), PR

FURERREEEY

IEERBBNTE

FREERRESEY

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 April

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 106 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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2018

Note

i

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MI5E ARET T NG S
(772) (492)

(9,997) (14,580)

481 =

(4,976) =

(15,264) (15,072)

22 21,939 =
- 64,867

- (947)

25(d) (2,627) =
(231) =

19,081 63,920

(51,194) 53,170

19(a) 87,409 35,411
3,344 (1,172)

19(a) 39,559 87,409

ANEMMN20184F4 A1 8 B X ER R %
SR MBI 155 % FRE B A5 355 B 9
5% o IRBFIETEES L - LBERTTE
Bl o RHIFE2(C)

LU e

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 5 July 2016
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 2 March 2018 (the “Listing Date”).
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
design, implementation, enhancement and upgrades
of software systems and the provision of technical
services for power grid and distribution companies in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
sale of hardware and the investment, construction
and operation of smart city infrastructure in the PRC.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“1ASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting year
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting
years reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

2

AAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Preparation of the Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 comprise the
Group and the Group’s interest in an associate.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year
of the revision and future years if the revision
affects both current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note
3.

2

BEASTTER(E)
(b) HBHEROEREE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9]

Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of new
IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

. IFRS 9, Financial instruments

° IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

° IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions

and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

The Group has been impacted by IFRS 9 in
relation to classification of financial assets and
measurement of credit losses, and impacted
by IFRS 15 in relation to presentation of
contract assets. Details of the changes in
accounting policies are discussed in Note 2(c)(i)
for IFRS 9 and Note 2(c)(ii) for IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and
measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9
retrospectively to items that existed at
1 April 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at 1 April 2018.
Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under IAS 39.

The following table summarises the
impact of transition to IFRS 9 on
retained earnings and reserves and the
related tax impact at 1 April 2018.

2 EXRSEEE)
(0 EFBERSEH(E)

(i)  EBEEREERF9
%o E2@ITA

ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁm 9
SRR &t &R
%3%ﬁ'ﬁﬁmrﬁ-
HRRE - HE A
ERERALES R
BE - cRmARBKE
BECRMEEE TS
R EARE °

AEEEREBER
FE¥MN20185F4A18
HFHERIEE B WER
B R B TS R & 2 R 5

9% - AKBEE B H
RERR R 2R
RAE2018F4H1H
HFYEDFHE - E
I ERERGEE
BREEBR S ELE
395 FLAZHR o

TR BB 5
BT 4R 5 B 2500

20184 A1 B MR &
?illz J«/(

BN REENR
RIBRAMGEE -

Retained earnings

Recognition of additional
expected credit losses on:

— Trade receivables

Related tax

Net decrease in retained earnings
at 1 April 2018

RMB’000
ARETT
REEF|
BRBEINEHREE
518 -
— & ZEWFTE (5,555)
R IR 833
R2018F4 51 HRBAEFH
B R EE (4,722)
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes to previous accounting
policies and the transition approach
are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 categories financial
assets into three principal
classification categories:
measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL). These supersede
IAS 39's categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets
under IFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which
the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under IFRS
9, derivatives embedded in
contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of
the standard are not separated
from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(Continued)

a. Classification of financial
assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The following table shows
the original measurement
categories for each class of
the group’s financial assets
under IAS 39 and reconciles
the carrying amounts of those
financial assets determined
in accordance with IAS 39 to
those determined in accordance
with IFRS 9.

IAS 39
carrying
amount at

31 March 2018
REERET

%395 4
2018534318
HEREE
RMB'000
ARETT

Finandial assets REB#HEAR
carried at amortised  BIERAY

BEAREFBER ()

B RS ()

() BB BHREREREI
% £ETAGE)

a. EBEERE
A B (&858
(%&)

TR AR
B BR & 5T %R
FI9HHZ A
AEESME
ERTEFEHE
Al AR E
BIEEE 2
HER|FE395 &
TR EE
B [ {5 B AR 1
BB IS RS
AER|FOSRE T
FHHHER o

IFRS 9
carrying
amount at

Reclassification Remeasurement 1 April 2018

RERRZH

201854818

EHDE Effi:t & REREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®FR  AR®TR  ARRTR

cost SREE
Trade and bill BHRIGER
receivables (Note (i) EWEE
(WHzxG)) 91,132 (39,888) (5,555) 45,689

Note: Fi3E -

(i) Trade and other receivables () BRERE
of RMB39,888,000 were BB BB S
reclassified to contract assets WEERE
at 1 April 2018 as a result of 15% @ B 5
the initial application of IFRS % H i fE W
15 (see Note 2(c)(ii)). HIEANRE

39,888,0007T
20184F4 A
1BEEFH D
BEAREE
(5K 2(0)
(i) °
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(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAREHBEE)
(c) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued) (o) S BESE(E)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments i) EJBR B 3R PR R %9
(Continued) 9% LT AE)
a. Classification of financial a. THEERSD
assets and financial liabilities VN =N-V:005% "]
(Continued) (%)
The measurement categories FrEemaE

for all financial liabilities remain
the same. The carrying amount

CEE LG
B R B o R

for all financial liabilities 20184 H1H
at 1 April 2018 have not MeEcmasE
been impacted by the initial WEREERE
application of IFRS 9. XEREAR
BBt R s
RAIEORHE -
The Group did not designate or 72018%F4 A1
de-designate any financial asset B AN&EEI
or financial liability at FVPL at 1 EIETFT R TB
April 2018. ETEEM S #
EEXTME
BREAFE

B AJERS -

b. Credit losses b. 15 EEE
IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred B R B 7% S 5
loss” model in IAS 39 with Bl 55 9 5% LA
the “expected credit losses” [FEEI = EEH
("ECL") model. The ECL B([FEE=E
model requires an ongoing B8 ) = H
measurement of credit risk RERest%E

112 Annual Report 2019

associated with a financial asset
and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred
loss” accounting model in IAS
39.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

b. Credit losses (Continued)

The Group applies the new
ECL model to the financial
assets measured at amortised
cost (including contract assets
(see Note 2(n)), trade and bill
receivables, deposits and other
receivables and cash and cash
equivalents).

For further details on the
Group’s accounting policy for
accounting for credit losses, see
Note 2(I)(i).

The following table reconciles
the closing loss allowance
determined in accordance with
IAS 39 as at 31 March 2018
with the opening loss allowance
determined in accordance with
IFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018.

2 EXRSEEE)
() EtEREH(HE)

() BB BHREREREI
% £ETAGE)

b. 1ERER(E)

NEB S HIE
HEEEEE
I JE A A I
I A0
TREE(RE
ARAERM
F20n) B 5
JE U 3R 0B N fE
WEig - e
ey A&
BUAKER® K
BEEEY -

EWAEEE
REAE S
22 # i BE
o — & i
1% - RAEE2()
R

T&RAEMK2018
F3H31HR
BB e
B 395k E T
B AR 1R
20184
41 HIBEER
B B 75 3 45 e
BSOS E F /)
FYSERE
AEER ©

RMB’000
ARET

Loss allowance at 31 March 2018

under IAS 39

Additional credit loss recognised at

1 April 2018 on:
— Trade receivables

Loss allowance at 1 April 2018
under IFRS 9

M20184F3 A31 B IR IEEE
SR FE 395 E T RE

B -
A2018F4 A1 BHERREEI

ZEEE
—E S REKFE 5,555
7201854 A 1 BIRIZRBIBE Bf

TS HR S HEBI BB OREE TE Y

EIE R 5,555
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

C. Transition

Changes in accounting policies
resulting from the adoption
of IFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as
described below:

— Information relating to
comparative periods has not
been restated. Differences
in the carrying amounts of
financial assets resulting
from the adoption of IFRS 9
are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at
1 April 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented
for 2018 continues to
be reported under IAS
39 and thus may not
be comparable with the
current period.

— The determination of the
business model within
which a financial asset is
held has been made on
the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed
at 1 April 2018 (the date of
initial application of IFRS 9
by the Group).
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

C. Transition (Continued)

— If, at the date of initial
application, the assessment
of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition
would have involved undue
cost or effort, a lifetime ECL
has been recognised for
that financial instrument.

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue
and some costs from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18,
Revenue, which covered revenue
arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and IAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction
contracts.

IFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from contracts with
customers.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(ii)

116 Annual Report 2019

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

The Group has elected to use the
cumulative effect transition method
and has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported
under IAS 11 and IAS 18. As allowed
by IFRS 15, the Group has applied the
new requirements only to contracts
that were not completed before 1 April
2018.

The transition to IFRS 15 does not
have any material impact on retained
earnings and reserves and related tax
impact at 1 April 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes on previous accounting
policies are set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue from sale of
goods was generally recognised
at a point in time when the
risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods had passed to the
customers, whereas, revenue
arising from construction
contracts and provision of
services was recognised over
time.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

a. Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point
in time or over time. IFRS 15
identifies the following three
situations in which control of
the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred
over time:

A. When the customer
simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;

B. When the entity’s
performance creates or
enhances an asset (for
example work in progress)
that the customer controls
as the asset is created or
enhanced;

C. When the entity’s
performance does not
create an asset with an
alternative use to the
entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to
payment for performance
completed to date.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)
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Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)

If the contract terms and the
entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations,
then under IFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at
a single point in time, being
when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the
indicators that is considered in
determining when the transfer
of control occurs.

The adoption of IFRS 15 does
not have a significant impact
on when the Group recognises
revenue from sale of software
systems (see Note 2(v)(i)) and
render of technical services (see
Note 2(v)(ii)).

OneForce Holdings Limited
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(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

b. Presentation of contract assets
and liabilities

Under IFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group
has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group
recognises the related revenue
before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration
for the promised goods
and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to
consideration is classified as
a contract asset. Similarly, a
contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue.
For a single contract with the
customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on
a net basis (see Note 2(n)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

120 Annual Report 2019

Presentation of contract assets
and liabilities (Continued)

Previously, contract balances
relating to construction contracts
in progress was presented in the
statement of financial position
under “trade and bill receivables”.

To reflect these changes
in presentation, the group
has made the following
adjustments at 1 April 2018, as
a result of the adoption of IFRS
15: “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work”
amounting to RMB39,888,000,
which was previously included
in trade and bill receivables is
now included under contract
assets.

Disclosure of the estimated
impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the year ended 31
March 2019 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 April
2018.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

b. Presentation of contract assets
and liabilities (Continued)

The following tables summarise
the estimated impact of adoption
of IFRS 15 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March
2019, by comparing the amounts
reported under IFRS 15 in these
consolidated financial statements
with estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been
recognised under IAS 18 and IAS
11 if those superseded standards
had continued to apply to 2019
instead of IFRS 15. These tables
show only those line items
impacted by the adoption of IFRS
15:
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts

with customers (Continued)

b. Presentation of contract assets
and liabilities (Continued)

N

BEXRSFHBER(E)

(0 EFBERESFHE)

(i)

Amounts
reported

in accordance
with IFRS 15
REEREH

HEEA
FISHER
ik ]
RMB'000
ARETT

Line items in the consolidated

1201953831 AR F4ER

statement of financial position BHREEAEHERT
as at 31 March 2019 impacted YeNGeNBRRRE
by the adoption of IFRS 15: B:
Contract assets AREE
Trade and bill receivables BHRUGERENEE
Total assets BELE
Net assets BEFH

Line items in the reconciliation of ~ HZ2019538318 L EE
profit before taxation to cash BHAERIREE RS
generated from operations REMHEPERS
for year ended 31 March 2019 BRI BREENE 155
impacted by the adoption of MEFEHER :
IFRS 15:
Profit before taxation B AR
Decrease in trade and bill BHRUGERENER

receivables By

Increase in contract assets EREEEN

44,235
73,008
328,064
261,413

21,837

11,503
(44,235)

BB BREERE
155 EF&ERIKA
(&)

b. 258 FEE

REEE)
Estimated
Hypothetical impact of
amounts  adoption of
under ASs 18 IFRS 15
and 11 on 2019
REERET  R2019FRM
B8  ERIBRS
RENE  RAF5H
NEREE  MiETE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR
- 44,235
117,243 (44,235)
328,064 -
261,413 -
21,837 -
(32,732) 44,235
- (44,235)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

(iii) IFRIC 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance
consideration

This interpretation provides guidance
on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of
it) arising from a transaction in which
an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the
date of the transaction” is the date
on initial recognition of the non-
monetary asset or liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the date
of the transaction for each payment or
receipt should be determined in this
way. The adoption of IFRIC 22 does
not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial
result of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") which is the Group's
presentation currency and the functional
currency of the Company and its PRC
subsidiaries. All amounts have been rounded
to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
indicated.

Subsidiaries

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition is generally
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is
tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs are expensed
as incurred, except if related to the issue of
debt or equity securities. The consideration
transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note

2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale.
Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the investment, and
any direct investment into the associate that
forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Notes 2(I)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method
together with any other long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Other investments in debt securities

The Group’s policies for investments in
debt, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out
below.

Investments in debt securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

(i) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Non-equity investments held by the
Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment
is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is
calculated using the effective
interest method (see Note 2(v)(iv));
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAEFTHEE)
(h) Other investments in debt securities (h) HtEKEIEHFREE)
(Continued)
(i) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (i) E20184%4 4 1H it
(Continued) BB (4E)
= FVOCI - recycling, if the - ZAFERA
contractual cash flows of the HEip 2wl
investment comprise solely (rTEE) - %
payments of principal and KEMERIR
interest and the investment is ERMEERRE
held within a business model e RF B

whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual

® o BRETS
REBHRE

cash flows and sale. Changes U EL A [ IR
in fair value are recognised in ERERDLE
other comprehensive income, MEBEELRH
except for the recognition in BE - RFE
profit or loss of expected credit EERHEME
losses, interest income (calculated R
using the effective interest HEIEHEEE
method) and foreign exchange B FBEWA
gains and losses. When the (ERERFIE
investment is derecognised, EEE ) RIEH
the amount accumulated in W= R EER
other comprehensive income is BaER &
recycled from equity to profit or WILTERRE
loss; or B REAME

H U = 25 EY

DE S E

BEiEE 3K

= FVPL, if the investment does = WAFEEE A
not meet the criteria for being B HEE
measured at amortised cost or T A 5
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in DN R
the fair value of the investment ANTEHAE
(including interest) are recognised t 2 E kS (7]
in profit or loss. )88 ) HIE A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Other investments in debt securities
(Continued)

(ii)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018

Investments in securities held for
trading were classified as financial
assets measured at FVPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the group
had the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-
to-maturity securities were stated at
amortised cost (for impairment see
Note 2(I)(ii)-policy application prior to 1
April 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any
of the above categories were classified
as available-for-sale financial assets. At
the end of each reporting period the
fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve (recycling). Interest
income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method
were recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(v)(iv), respectively. Foreign
exchange gains and losses arising from
debt securities were also recognised in
profit or loss. When the investments
were derecognised or impaired (see
Note 2(1)(ii)-policy application prior to 1
April 2018), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (Note 2(1)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Lease hold improvement Shorter
between

lease period

and 10 years

— Motor vehicles, office
equipment and other
equipment

3 to 5 years

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on an internal research and
development projects is distinguished between
the expenditures during the research phase
and expenditures during the development
phase. Research activities involve original and
planned investigation undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development
activities involve a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved
materials, devices, products or processes
before the start of commercial production or
use.

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year in which
it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (Note 2(l)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
year in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (Note 2(1)).

Amortisation of intangible assets shall begin
when the asset is available for use.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Software and patents 3to 5 years
Both the year and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed year of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to
the Group

Assets that are held by Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting years covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting year in which they are
incurred.

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets

A) Policy applicable from 1 April
2018

The Group recognises a loss
allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

— financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables).

— contract assets as defined in
IFRS 15 (see Note 2(n));

Financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

2

EXRSEEE)
(k) HEEEEGR)
(i) EEHEHT

EAKEEREER
EEE  BRIFBHAM
FARKMEMHAER
HENGEEZEHE
EEERBNAENE
N - HEEMFKIEZ
HEMMRENS
FRASED HE
SRR - AERE
B o FE 18 25 N RERR S
EfFESEFIRER
Hep—#5 - AME
EREELERG A
et FREER

() FEERREERE

() =Z=@MITA- -SFHEE
HIEEEE

(A)  H2018%F4 41
H #E 78 FH 59 1K
x

REEH T3
B IR A HIE
EERERE
B

— REHEAR
AAERNER
BE(ER
RAe MR
EEYM =
5 M A E
W)

— BRI
A |

[=] \

1

o> 8 4
Il A}

=
PIE Oy S

i)
) o

WAFEEE
B % B A T
AR
B IRATRTA o

=

N
=

(n

2019F % THERBERQF 135
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)

136 Annual Report 2019

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the
cash flows due to The Group in
accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that The
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect
of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial
assets, trade and other
receivables and contract
assets: effective interest
rate determined at
initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period
over which The Group is exposed
to credit risk.

OneForce Holdings Limited

BEXRSFHBER(E)

() FEBEBREREEREGE

() =ZBTA SHAZE
ZIEERER (H)

A)

B201844 451
H 3 H 89 1%
R(E)

AAEEHEER
B8

BEHEEEE
REEBEN
B R 0 #E A
it o EEEE
AFTE TR HRIR
TR ARE
EREMN TR
SERER
EEAKETR
H I BR B 3R
gz R E
#) WIRER

=
E-°

MR B E
A - BIFEHAER
®EREKRA
LATF Bh 3R & Bk
I8

- BEAEs
mEE B
5 REAME
W BRI
ARBEE
RN
HEENE
B R
S

HEtFEHEE
EIE AT E B
B & & EIE R
AEBE®EHE
EREREHN &K
& [FEHAM -



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs
(Continued)

In measuring ECLs, The Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information
that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes
information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected
to result from possible
default events within the 12
months after the reporting
date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are
losses that are expected
to result from all possible
default events over the
expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model
applies.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)

138 Annual Report 2019

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs
(Continued)

Loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments,
the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk
of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable
and supportable, including
historical experience and
forward-looking information
that is available without undue
cost or effort.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAEFTHEE)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets ) EEEFENEERE(E)

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i) THITEH BEFEE
instruments, contract assets ZIEEEE(E)
(Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April (A)  H2018%F4H1
2018 (Continued) H # 8 5 B9 15
(&)
Significant increases in credit ESEL N
risk (Continued) HEAN(EE)
In particular, the following EgmE - 5F
information is taken into account HEERRE
when assessing whether credit Y HER L/\ R
risk has increased significantly BB A g3 h0
since initial recognition: B ZEIUTR
BFL
— failure to make payments of — KREEEAR
principal or interest on their FIEAR A
contractually due dates; K& 3k A
— an actual or expected — LRI A
significant deterioration EBEkAERE
in a financial instrument'’s B (m
external or internal credit HWENE
rating (if available); B ok TR HARR
Z231
- an actual or expected — EBALE
significant deterioration in EENER
the operating results of the B HAREE
debtor; and Bk &
— existing or forecast changes - ﬂ B o-
in the technological, market, N ﬁijz
economic or legal environment ,ﬁ@ﬁ&r‘ )
that have a significant adverse B Aok FEHA
effect on the debtor’s ability BENEER
to meet its obligation to the ANBITEY
Group. REESE
HEENBE
N R
@,
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of
the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities
that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value
reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)
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Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income on credit-impaired
financial assets

Interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 AT (E)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets ) FEFEREERE(E)

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i) SETAH SEEE
instruments, contract assets ZIsEEE(E)
(Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April (A)  H2018F4 A1
2018 (Continued) H & 8 7 19 B
K&
Basis of calculation of interest AEEERE
income on credit-impaired EREEF S
financial assets (Continued) W A B EE
(&)
Evidence that a financial asset TREELIR
is credit-impaired includes the EERENE
following observable events: BEIENATH
RS
— significant financial difficulties — BEHALR
of the debtor; 8% 28 B 15
i
— a breach of contract, such — ExAR
as a default or delinquency /R sk e
in interest or principal R B sk AN
payments; BIA
— it becoming probable that — BRARE
the borrower will enter A BEAS & A
into bankruptcy or other EliEITE
financial reorganisation; fth Bf 7% &
48
— significant changes in the - B -
technological, market, %~ KB
economic or legal environment EERED
that have an adverse effect on I8 K&
the debtor; or &) - HEB
ABRFIE
2.5
- the disappearance of an active — BHRET
market for a security because AR
of financial difficulties of the REHITENES
issuer. JEERTIS ©
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

A)

®)
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Policy applicable from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of
a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when The
Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of
an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit
or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an
“incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not
classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade
and other receivables). Under
the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective
evidence of impairment.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 AT (E)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets ()] FEEEFEREERE(E)

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i) THMITEH BFEE
instruments, contract assets ZIEEEE(E)
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April B)  R2018F4A1

2018 (Continued) H B 8 5 89 15

E(E)

Objective evidence of impairment T E T

included: B

- significant financial difficulties — BEBALR
of the debtor; B E 5 A

#

— a breach of contract, such — ERER
as a default or delinquency /R Bsk H
in interest or principal R B sk AN
payments; B

— it becoming probable that the — BEBARE
debtor will enter bankruptcy or B
other financial reorganisation; EETHE

ftv Bf 7% =
4

- significant changes in the - B -m
technological, market, % KB
economic or legal environment SEARIRIE
that have an adverse effect on W& K
the debtor; and g - HWED

ABRFIE
2 &k

- a significant or prolonged — EEZIAXR
decline in the fair value of BHAFE
an investment in an equity AIE Tk ZE
instrument below its cost. R HEH A AR

FERAER
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAEFTHEE)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets ) EEFEREERE(E)

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i) SETAH SEEE
instruments, contract assets ZIEEEE (&)
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April B)  R2018F441
2018 (Continued) H BT 8 59 B

F(E)
If any such evidence existed, s 1 {7 Uth 55 3%
an impairment loss was BiFE - ORE
determined and recognised as EEIRATH
follows: NETE LR
— For trade and other receivables — FELABESHRK
and other financial assets RT|EREE
carried at amortised cost, SR EMFE
impairment loss was measured W skoE & B
as the difference between the thEREE
asset’s carrying amount and ms @ Wi
the present value of estimated BHZEE
future cash flows, discounted EXORE
at the financial asset’s original BRI E E
effective interest rate, where BRE{E 7%
the effect of discounting was TRIEERN
material. This assessment was JRE B R H
made collectively where these RYTIR(HET
financial assets shared similar RARIBER
risk characteristics, such as SHRENZE
similar past due status, and e o Y
had not been individually TR SH R AR
assessed as impaired. Future FBREY S &l
cash flows for financial EEBER
assets which were assessed L R R
for impairment collectively % Flansa
were based on historical loss LLEY 8 HR 1S
experience for assets with SR =
credit risk characteristics B EA
similar to the collective group. wE - A
B[R
FrEfT o &
L& ERR
KIREME
EIREHEZ
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018 (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively
to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that
it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years.

When the recovery of a trade
debtor or other financial assets
carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not
remote, associated impairment
losses were recorded using an
allowance account. When the
group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was
written off against the gross
carrying amount of those assets
directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in
the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off
directly were recognised in profit
or loss.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

148 Annual Report 2019

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- intangible assets; and

- investments in an associate.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

- Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments
of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAREHBEE)
(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets ) EEEFENEERE(E)
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) EMEEREE)
(Continued)
- Recognition of impairment = R E R

150 Annual Report 2019

losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with
IAS 4, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see Notes 2()

(i) and (ii)).

2
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

(ii)
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Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which
the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense
in the year the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the year in
which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs
to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory
(see Note 2(m)(i)), property, plant and
equipment (see Note 2(i)) or intangible
assets (see Note 2(j)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs
of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in
a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or
enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future;
and are expected to be recovered.
Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other
costs that are incurred only because
the Group entered into the contract (for
example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract,
which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)
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Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining
amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that
relate directly to providing those goods
or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract
costs is charged to profit or loss when
the revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in Note
2(v).

Contract assets

A contract asset is recognised when the
Group recognises revenue (see Note 2(v))
before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in Note
2(I)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when
the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 2(0)).

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Contract assets (Continued)
Policy prior to 1 April 2018

In the comparative period, contract balances
were recorded for construction contracts
at the net amount of costs incurred plus
recognised profit less recognised losses
and progress billings. These net balances
were presented as the “gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an
asset), as applicable, under “trade and
other receivables” on a contract-by-contract
basis. Progress billings not yet paid by the
customer were included under “trade and
bill receivables”. These balances have been
reclassified on 1 April 2018 as shown in Note
16 (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented
as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance
for credit losses (see Note 2(1)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(I)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities, trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(x)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)
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Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for
the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to business
combinations, and items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting year, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
year as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in years into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a year, or years, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided that they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of reversal
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
year and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future year in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

2

EXEFHEE)

(u) BERIREE

()

20195

RERAALE

i N =B AR AR
LB E B AERR
FHEEEE - RRA
BEZRfE AR s
HETEREE B
Al {EH AT SE A ET - R
S Y RBEREE I ]
ST EHEERER

e EEBRHEEE
X RlRFEHIARE
TEBEENERR
BrtEERE -

i 7 HE A O ) 25 0 7]
REMEEUE - EEY
BRABEEH TSN
st - Alg AT
BERIRAE
AP 28O Y A BE
HEERRIBRIN - B
MEEARTREX
ZHEAKREHREH
ERAEERRF
- TERE/AEA
BE - EKENER
H &Y AT R 1 KRR
S e

TTHEREBRAT 163



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)
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Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination which are present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined
in accordance with Note 2(u)(i).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
disclosed in accordance with Note 2(u)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Sale of software systems

When the outcome of a service
contract can be reasonably measured,
revenue from the contract is recognised
progressively over time using the cost-
to-cost method, i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to date to the estimated total
costs.

When the outcome of the contract
cannot be reasonably measured,
revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered.

Revenue from sale of software systems
was recognised on a similar basis in
the comparative period under IAS 11.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)
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Render of technical services

Revenue from the rendering of
technical services is recognised over
time as the services are provided. The
stage of completion for determining
the amount of revenue to recognise is
assessed based on work performed.

Sale of hardware

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue was
recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which was
taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of
ownership.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(I)(i)).

Government grant

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are recognised
as deferred income and consequently
recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the related asset.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)
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Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting year. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the company initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group's presentation currency,
at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulation
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(b) has significant influence over
the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 Ej{%%‘l‘fﬁ(% (&)
(y)  Related parties (Continued) (y) EAEERS (&)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any (ii) LA T AR A K
of the following conditions applies: A AlEegmas
B -

(a)
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the entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group;
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

()

the entity is controlled or

jointly controlled by a person

identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity); or

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

3

AAREFIR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements.

(a)

Service contracts

As explained in Notes 2(I) and 2(v)(i), revenue
recognition on an uncompleted service project
is dependent on estimating the total outcome
of the service contract, as well as the work
done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the service
activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue
can be reliably estimated. As a result, until
this point is reached the amounts due from
customers for contract work as disclosed in
Note 16 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting year, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

In the comparative period, revenue from
service projects was subject to the same
estimation as above. In addition, the contract
assets arising from service contracts were
included in trade and other receivables as
amounts due from customers for contract
work and were disclosed in Note 16, rather
than Note 17.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)
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Impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables
are and contract assets based on assumptions
about the expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. For details of the key assumptions and
inputs used, see Note 26(a). Changes in these
assumptions and estimated could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional impairment
charge to the profit or loss.

Provision for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value based on the current
market condition and historical experience of
similar nature. Any change in the assumptions
would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals
of write-downs and affect the Group’s net
asset value. The Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the inventories at each reporting
period end date to determine whether the
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of intangible assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of intangible asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of intangible assets
as described in Note 2(I)(ii). These assets are
tested for impairment yearically or whenever
the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable.

When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to
the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge
or reversal of impairment in future years.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Income tax

The Group calculates current taxation based
on the taxable income for the year using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year, and after taking
into consideration whether the Group has
satisfied the conditions as stipulated in the tax
rules and regulations which may result in the
Group be able to enjoy certain preferential
tax rates and tax allowable deductions.
Such preferential tax rates and tax allowable
deductions are subject to the approvals by the
relevant tax authorities in the following fiscal
year. Actual current taxation maybe higher
or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting year.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)
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Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
design, implementation, enhancement and
upgrades of software and solutions and the
provision of technical services for power grid
and distribution companies in the PRC and
the sale of hardware. Further details regarding
the Group's principal activities are disclosed in
Note 4(b).
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from

contracts with customers by major
service lines is as follows:

WAR D EBHRE (8)
(@) WA(#E)
(i) WA &7
FTERBHEOEES
EUWAZI ST -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T RN

Sales of software and solutions  $§E&E &4 LR TR 40,943 51,746

Provision of technical services RERIM RS
Sales of hardware HERH

Revenue from customers with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenue are set out below:

45,775 20,495
28,390 13,558

115,108 85,799
RSB AEBERA
10% A EMEF U A
PN

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T N R

Customer A ZEA
Customer B =FB

Details of concentration of credit risk
arising from the customers are set out
in Note 26(a).

53,741 13,041
42,517 63,906

RERFHMEERR
EFFHERME
26(a) °
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(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAR D EIRE ()
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) A (48)
(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised (i) RBEEAHAWEEE
in the future arising from contracts EAEFELIKAE
with customers in existence at the B RESE o
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reporting date.

The Group has applied the practical
expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS
15 to its contracts for revenue from

AEEE & BRI 7%
EERFE IS5 E
121 A {THEE 50K

sales of software and solutions, FEF e LR
provision of technical services and RAFZE - BEFEMR
sales of hardware such that the ERIEEBEENSR
financial information does not include WA BAfE B A R
information about revenue, that the P AEEEBK AL

Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts had an
original expected duration of one year
or less.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by
business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which the information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments:

- Software and solutions: this segment
engages in the design, implementation,
enhancement and upgrades of
software systems for power grid and
distribution companies.

- Technical services: this segment
engages in the provision of
maintenance services on the software
systems sold.

- Hardware: this segment sells software
systems related hardware and spare
parts.
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(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WA D SRR ()
(Continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b) S EIRE(E)
(i) Segment results, assets and (i) PEEE  TERE
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liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group's
most senior executive management
monitor the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following
basis:

&

Mmoo BMRE LD
[ i = i}
T AKRBERSTTH
ERABRUATESE
Bo R & Al R ) B R
(EEOES

Revenue and expenses are allocated to AR & ER
the reportable segments with reference BRDAEEMERA
to revenue generated by those FEEEMRAI MY

segments and the expenses incurred
by those segments. The measure
used for reporting segment profit is
gross profit. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018. The Group’s
other income and expense items, such

BEZE DI - meE
DEEFMTAGER
XABEF - B E2019
¢&2018¢3ﬁ31 S|
IEFE - WESIHE
$HE o LK%IE’Jﬁﬁﬁ
WAHERA - ﬁuﬁﬁﬂ

as other income, selling expenses, WA~ EEBH -
administrative and other operating B(&/H\m%«*é%ﬁﬁ
expenses, and assets and liabilities, UREEHRAE(RE

including the sharing of technical
know-how, are not measured under
individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment
assets and liabilities nor information
concerning capital expenditure,
interest income and interest expenses is
presented.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is set

out below.

Disaggregated by timing of UYL A FERRVBS

revenue recognition Eipn

- Over time — BERsfE]

~Point in time —E—Hi%

Revenue from external PERSEAS NS
customers and reportable  EERPDEFUA
segment revenue

EEEGEEZ

Reportable segment gross
profit

Application
solutions

ERAER

LY IES
RMB'000
ARBTR

WA K2 3R & ()

(b) B EIRE (F)

() PEH¥E BEERE
= (&)

HZE2019%F £ 20184
3HA3MRLEFE - BE
REFAEESST
BEBABUDEE
BREFEDBRIRD
KEBAEFHIE
BHERFIT ©

Supporting

services Hardware Total

X BRH Bt CH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFRT  AR®TR  AR®TR

40,943 45,775 - 86,718
- - 28,390 28,390
40,943 45,775 28,390 115,108
18,260 14,714 4,926 37,900
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

4 REVENUE
(Continued)

(b)

(i)
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ANBREEDR)

AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and

WA R &R & ()
(b)  ZERERE (AK)
() DEH¥E BERER

liabilities (Continued) &E(E)
2018
Application Supporting
solutions services Hardware Total
Rt
T YIES 81,0/ B &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFL ARETTL ARETTT ARBTT
Disaggregated by timing of - UL A BEFREY RS
revenue recognition e
- Over time — B 51,746 20,495 - 72,241
— Point in time -E-BEy - = 13,558 13,558
Revenue from external REMSRPRA KA
customers and reportable  EEFRAEYA
segment revenue 51,746 20,495 13,558 85,799
Reportable segment gross AR SEF]
profit 27,659 9,534 2,975 40,168
Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 TE: AEEEFERZ
using the cumulative effect method. BT EANE
Under this method, the comparative R FE B R B RS

information is not restated and was
prepared in accordance with IAS 18
and IAS 11 See Note 2(c).

OneForce Holdings Limited

w4 % B E 15
5 oo BIZEZ A
Ko HBRERT
FEY - WIRE
B SR EAE
185% & BB & &+
AR 1155w &L
(RKIEE2(0) ©
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

AAREFIR)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Reconciliations of reportable (i)
segment results to consolidated,

profit before taxation

WA K2 3R & ()

(b) ZEBIFHE ()

Segment results

Other income

Gain on bargain purchase of
subsidiaries

Net finance costs

Selling expenses

Administrative and other
operating expenses

Impairment loss on trade
receivables

Costs incurred in connection
with the acquisition of
subsidiaries

Costs incurred in connection
with the initial listing of the
Company's shares

Share of losses of an associate

Consolidated profit before
taxation

Geographic information

All of the Group’s operations are
carried out and the Group’s customers
are located in the PRC. The Group's
non-current assets, including property,
plant and equipment and intangible
assets are all located or allocated to
operations located in the PRC.

20195

°] /6 3R 77 S 3 48 B A
B BB B ¥ B
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NS
DEBHELE 37,900 40,168
EmUgA 5,781 7,094
T R RERE
i ) 11,596 =
BB A FRE (214) =
HEEH (6,689) (4,700)
TR REMEE
& (19,921) (10,877)
B 5 EWGIERE
[E518 (1,066) -
BRABEENE AR
FITEE £ K AN
(5,309) =
BAARARMDE X
ETRTEE R AR
- (11,157)
FEAE —FAEgE = A A
&8 (241) =
EREBRBRT S T
21,837 20,528
Giii) HEEH
KEBRABEBRAK
SEEFHEFRH -
AEBRIEREDEE
(BIEME - BE K&
AR B & E )AL
R EDEEPEH
E

TTHERERAT 183
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAN - UAARKIR)

5 OTHER INCOME 5

Refund of value-added-tax ("VAT")  EiEEF([1EEFR])

(Note (7)) (BEEG))
Others Hith
Note:
(i) Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC,

entities engage in the sale of self-developed software
in the PRC and pay VAT at a rate of 16% (before 1
May 2018: 17%) are entitled to a VAT refund to the
extent of the VAT payable in excess of 3% of the self-
developed software sold.
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e N
HABA
2019 2018
RMB'000 [EIYLHW
ARETT NS
5,192 6,901
589 193
5,781 7,094
i

RIEPEARRRIS A RAG - 7
PEREHEEETHERMGLIE
16% (20185 1 HAT : 17% )
REIEEROEE  WEMEE
RBBADEA THAERITFN3I%
R REEISIRIBIZER -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Staff costs*

BB A 2
BRB A M EF0RR T FIEIR -
(@) BIm#

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T NS S

Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥4 « TE& R EMEF 24,690 23,493

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme 3

Equity-settled share-based payment  LAREZS 45
expenses ERMN TR

The employees of the subsidiary of the Group
established in the PRC (other than Hong
Kong) participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme managed by the
local government authority, whereby this
subsidiary is required to contribute to the
scheme at a rate of 19% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of this subsidiary
are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the average salaries
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from
the above mentioned retirement scheme at
their normal retirement age.

The Group has no further obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond
the above contributions.

A 5 IE BB INET 8)

BABM &

2,060 1,874
132 =
26,882 25,367

AEERFE(TEEERE)
P SZE) PN B A B EY B B 200
BT R E R A R E R
FORIKEAEE - B &
MEBARUAZRERSENS
£19% M L K [A FH &K -
ZMB AR EENFEILE
BFERARFREBEREZERA LI
BARFEZFE(CBEBEE
B)FEF K AN LLEFE
HRRARA o

B Lt s - REE I &
B B S A B AR R AR N )
—HEE-
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(BB EEHAN - UAARKIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 Bﬁﬁﬁl‘])\i—éfu (&)
(b)  Other items (b) HEE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT NS

Gain on bargain purchase of WEEFRARIREEE
subsidiaries (Note 27 (a)) w A (HIRE27(a)) 11,596 =
Depreciation and amortisation* TE R
(Notes 11 and 12) (FEE11512) 7,388 2,695
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 EW ISR EEE 1,066 =
Operating lease charges in respect of 75 @8 ## /A = iz ATHI AL
office premises BHESH 1,898 2,646
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEAE S
— Statutory audit services —ATEBIZRT 2,560 64
— Services in connection with the — BB B AR
acquisition of subsidiaries AR 7% 1,644 =
— Services in connection with the —BEARTRHER
initial listing of the Company’s R
shares - 2,567
Research and development costs TS AR AN (B SRR M)
(other than amortisation) 3,063 1,145
Cost of inventories sold# EEFERA
(Note 15) (F4E15) 76,391 44,599
# Cost of inventories sold include & EEGFEXADRIBRESR
RMB26,130,000 (2018: RMB20,850,000) MEIRARITE R
relating to staff costs, and depreciation and i o A R ¥ 26,130,000
amortisation, respectively, which amounts are 7T (2018 F : AR ¥
also included in the respective total amounts 20,850,0007T) - B E
disclosed separately above or in Note 6 for TRat A EX kiR est &
each of these types of expenses. ZERUAT S RIEEN

BRI -
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RERBRANAES

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements (a)

REBRBERANBIAES :

of profit or loss represent:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T N S
Current tax — PRC Corporate BNERRiTE — PR E
Income Tax (Note 24(a)) Fr8®i (FisE24(a))
— Provision for the year —FERE 1,928 1,371
Deferred Tax (Note 24(b)) IEFER1E (FEE24(b))
— Origination and reversal of —ERERENES
temporary differences K 85| (345) 2,435
1,583 3,806
Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REABERTENHREMRX
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: B R 2 BN
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
NS  ARETT
Profit before taxation B F4 AR 21,837 20,528
Expected tax on profit before Fr A A R TR HARR IR -

taxation, calculated at the rates LA ERE R

applicable to profits in the HERHRAE

jurisdictions concerned CBRREG) ~ Gy R (i)

(Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) 6,285 5,363
Tax effect of non-deductible AR S RS

expenses - 618 981
Tax effect of non-taxable income HEF WA RS

7 (1,679) =
— Gain on bargain purchase of —WETARIRERE
subsidiaries bl (1,739) -
— Share of loss of an associate — B — & AT
&8 60 -
Tax effect on bonus deduction of RS RCAN NG HEFOAY

research and development costs B2 (B5Ev))

(Note (iv)) (2,813) =
Effect of tax losses not recognised AERARIEEEAOTZE 1,603 -
Tax concessions (Notes (v) and (vi))  FiIEE % (FF5F(v) Kz (vi)) (2,301) (2,538)
Others HAtb (130) =
Actual tax expense ERBIER X 1,583 3,806
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(BB EEHAN - UAARKIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in
Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: 16.5%).

(ii) The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the
PRC (including Hong Kong) are not subject
to any income tax pursuant to the rules and
regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

(iii) The subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) is subject to
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 25%).

(iv) According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs,
are allowed for bonus deduction for income
tax purpose, i.e. an additional 75% of such
expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

(v) The subsidiary of the Group established in
the PRC, namely Along Grid, has obtained
an approval from the tax bureau to be
taxed as an enterprise with advanced and
new technologies, and therefore enjoys a
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
15% for the period from 22 December 2016
to 22 December 2019.

(vi) The subsidiary of the Group established in
the PRC, namely Aipu Zhicheng, has obtained
an approval from the tax bureau to be
taxed as an enterprise with advanced and
new technologies, and therefore enjoys a
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
15% for the period from 1 December 2016 to
31 November 2019.
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RERBRAMNAES (K)

(b)

()

e -

(i)

(iii)

HE2019F3A318 L4
B AEEREBZMK
ST EH B R R ZEIZ16.5%
MR EHANESNEH
(2018%F : 16.5%) ©

ARREAEERTE(E
EER) ASNE R M AL
BB ARIBEES B
A SZ B 21 0 2% 1) K 38
BAGAERMSEH

HE2019F3A31H 1L
B AEBRPE(TEE
EB )KL B A RZAR
25% KBt R BN R B 1 2
Fr575 (20184 : 25%) °

RETEERBBRA
B AT R AR E
MEHEMMSE - B
F X B RSN T5% AT AR (AT
HEHFI

AN £R B R R B K S RO BT B
AR (BB AKE) EER
% BB AR IR A
MBI - 20165
124228 %E2019%12 A22
AEIRZA15%MFED
EFBHEERE -

AN ER B R A B K S A B BB
AR (B LB ) B R
% BB AR IR
MBI - 20165
12818 ZE2019%11 A31
AEIRZA15%MFE D
EFEHEERRE -
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EE5M
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIB(EB QTGN )Y E383(1)IE &
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (AT (HEZEEFNZERDBEHIYE2
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information M TERE RN T

about Benefits of directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme  Share-based

fees in-kind contributions payments Total

e BER &K DRBA
£ BNAg SRS EROAR 2]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT  ARETR  AR%Tr  ARBTR AR¥TR

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr Wang Dongbin FREEE 103 440 57 - 600
Mr Wu Hongyuan REREE 103 499 59 - 661
Mr Li Kangying* FRES L 1Al - - - A
Mr Wu Zhanjiang* RETEE 1Al 331 VE] - 445
Independent BUKHTES

non-executive Directors

Mr Ng Kong Fat RABEE 103 - - 44 147
Mr Han Bin Bk 103 - - 44 147
Mr Wang Peng k4 103 - - 44 147

657 1,270 159 132 2,218
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(BB EEHAN - UAARKIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EE5HM(E)
2018
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' ~and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
%4 2R RIR
Lk ENfls BB SHEIEER &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr Wang Dongbin TRBEE 16 404 3 47 490
Mr Wu Hongyuan REERELE 16 456 32 55 559
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr Li Yuezhong? Rkt = = = = =
Independent BUkHTES
non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kong Fat RABEE 16 - - - 16
Mr Han Bin B 16 - - - 16
Mr Wang Peng TrE 16 - - - 16
80 860 55 102 1,097
& On 24 July 2018, Mr Li Kangying and Mr Wu Zhanjiang * M2018F7A248 - FEMELER

were appointed as executive directors.

# Mr Li Yuezhong resigned in October 2017.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors during the years as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

190 Annual Report 2019  OneForce Holdings Limited

RETEERZERNITES -

# Z= AR AR20174E10 B BHE ©

AEERFRLEAEEANFHH
YRR 5| E AN A S hn B2 AN 5% (B 05 1)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2018: two) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the remaining highest paid individuals
are as follows:

REHMAL

AfuEEHMALTFRRG(20184F ¢
ML) ZEE 2 HENE KIS EE - #
THREHMA L2 HF@EnT

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T NS

Salaries and other emoluments
Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAL
Retirement scheme contributions RORGTEIH IR

The emoluments of the individuals who are not
directors and who are amongst the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are within the following
band:

#r e ML o

1,860 1,127
130 108
171 139

2,161 1,374

RIFEFEAR/AEERRSFMA
THHBNF T IEE -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T NS

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") Nil to
HKD1,000,000

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these

individuals during the years as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

EHE(BT)E
1,000,000/ 7T

AEERFRLEALFALINFH
B - RIS EINA S I B AN R B
R B S B B E
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(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

192 Annual Report 2019

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based the profit attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB20,254,000 (2018: RMB16,722,000)
and the weighted average of 389,735,906
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: 292,962,411).

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares is calculated as follows:

10

BRER

(a)

BREXEF

BREABRFDREEE
20193 A31BIEFEARR
A o AR B FE A i B A R
20,254,0007T (20184 : AR
#16,722,00070) KB E#&1TE
A% hn e £ ¥ £1389,735,906
A% (20184 : 292,962,411/%)
FTE o

BB BT ENT

2018

Number of shares in issue at 1 April

Capitalisation issue

Shares issued under the public

offering

Issuance of shares for the acquisition

of subsidiaries

Effect of shares repurchased under

share award scheme

R4R1BRE T
RIDE B

B BT

ARBEEE BT
A%

PUEEN B A A
BT D

A1 £ERIETEIIE T
BEERROTE

Weighted average number of shares = 21717 hnfE

in issue

Diluted earnings per

share

FHH

(b)

The diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2019 has not taken into
account the effect of the outstanding share
options, which is anti-dilutive.

OneForce Holdings Limited

381,072,000 11,878

- 285,060,122

- 7,890,411

10,887,994 -

(2,224,088) -

389,735,906 292,962,411
BREERR

HZE201963A31BIEFE -
BREERFIW ET KA
ITFEERENREETE -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y. BERGE
Motor vehicles,
office
equipment
and other Lease hold Construction
equipment  improvement in progress Total
RE
BARER
Hitrsk e HEWE HRIRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARET T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2017 201744818 1,067 = = 1,067
Additions INE 492 - - 492
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 1,559 - - 1,559
Additions INE 725 - 47 772
Acquisition of subsidiaries L &&F/8 2 7]
(Note 27) (HzE27) 25 25,139 = 25,164
At 31 March 2019 R2019%F3A31H 2,309 25,139 47 27,495

Less: Accumulated B RRHE

depreciation:

At 1 April 2017 201764718 468 - - 468
Charge for the year FRAL 306 - - 306
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 774 = = 774
Charge for the year FARY 392 221 = 613
At 31 March 2019 R201953A318 1,166 221 - 1,387
Net book value: HREEE -

At 31 March 2018 1201853 H318 1,143 24,918 47 26,108
At 31 March 2019 1201953 H31H 785 - - 785
The lease hold improvement mainly represents HESEFE RAEE—RFMEAR]
that one of the Group’s subsidiary has entered EFIEERSEMEE(LEE®E]
an agreement with Committee on Economy and B3 A EBERA S 10F 8 BT
Informatisation of Mentougou District to obtain (EFRE o N B A T AT I SR
the right of use of light poles for 10 years with no KO aE 4 T E R L AR TR« HATEHAfE
consideration. The subsidiary renovated the poles RIS IR B AT o

to provide smart city infrastructure service and
depreciated using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives.

201953 THERERALT 193



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY
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(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 HEEEE

Software and

patents
HHEREF
RMB’000
AREFIT
Cost: s
At 1 April 2017 2017547818 8,698
Additions INE 14,580
At 31 March 2018 MR2018%3A31H 23,278
Additions NE 9,997
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27) UeEER B A A (BisE27) 52,043
At 31 March 2019 MR2019%3A31H 85,318
Accumulated amortisation: ZoT e -
At 1 April 2017 2017F4H1H 2,736
Charge for the year FARE 2,389
At 31 March 2018 $201843 4318 5,125
Charge for the year FRARY 6,777
At 31 March 2019 ®m2019%3A3706 11970727
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 March 2018 201853 A31H 73,416
At 31 March 2019 201943 A31H 18,153

The amortisation charges are included in “cost of

sales” in the consolidated statements of profit or loss. KRIA ©
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(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

13 HRHEBATINRE

The following list contains the particulars of TEHITEZEREFBELSE @ BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, B ERHB A TS o
assets or liabilities of the Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
HIEL: 4 dnged
Place and Particulars of
date of registered/ The
establishment/ issued and Group's Held Held
Name of incorporation paidup effective by the bya Principal
subsidiaries and operation capital interest  Company subsidiary  activities
R/ RERAL Z/ERIR  AKEN — K

WEAR AR CEEHERAH BRRAEE BRER AOEAKE ARRE  IEER

Along Grid The PRC RMB100,010,000 100% = 100%  Design,
JtREBBERE 25 May 2011 AR implementation,
BRAE) (Note (i) 100,010,0007T enhancement and

I REREIREHR 2011458250 upgrades of software
ARAT (30 systems and the

provision of technical
services and the sale
of hardware

|E BT B’AR
R 25 kiRt
BRI R E
o

First Magic The British Virgin 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Islands US$1 each HERR
Limited 9 June 2015 1REREE
(“First Magic”) RERLES (E: 0]l

First Magic 201556497
International
Limited
([First Magic])

Citimax Development  Hong Kong 1 share 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited (" Citimax 26 January 2016 1R RERR
Development”) BE

KEERBERAA 2016518268
(TEERE])

Aipu Zhicheng The PRC RMB80,050,000 100% - 100%  Investment,

(Note (i) & (ii)) 27 December 2013 ARE construction and
ERNEEEESE & 80,050,0007T operation of smart
REERAR 2013F12A27H city infrastructure
GEOED) AR AR IEM

20195
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFZHIN - MARKETIR)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 RHBATWIRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

FiE R %
Place and Particulars of
date of registered/ The
establishment/ issued and Group's Held Held
Name of incorporation paidup effective by the bya Principal
subsidiaries and operation capital interest  Company subsidiary  activities
R/ B AR #h/BRIR  AKEN —EHE
WEA RS CEEHER AN BRBAFE HREE A0RARE  QARRKE FEER
Great Progress The British Virgin 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Islands US$1 each RERR
Limited ("Great 23 October 2018 1REREE
Progress”) (Note (i) EEREXES 1ETRR R
HERRARA 2018610A423H
(TR )
(&2 (i)
Main Smart (H.K.) Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited ("Main 13 April 2016 1R REER
Smart”) (Note (i)) &%
B (BB AR 2016547138
Aa([BA%])
( PF3Gi))
Mingan Zhicheng The PRC HKD20,000,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding
(Note (i) & (ii) 26 November 2018 20,000,000%7T RERR
L RALRER H
BEARAT] 2018511 A26H
GE)0))
Mingan Wulian The PRC RMB20,202,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(Note (i) & (ii) 5 December 2018 AR &R
JERAR Y i 20,202,0007T
RERERAH 2018512458
(PZEG) (i)
Note: FfsE -
(0] The official name of this entity is in Chinese. The English (i) REBANAEZMOINEEED
name is for identification purpose only. This entity was #o
registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the
PRC.
(i) The Group obtained the control of the subsidiaries from (i) AEE 201942 A28 A U iE 525K
the acquisition, which was completed on 28 February BESKEB AR ESE - BT
2019, see Note 27. 27 °
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(RS BERAS - AARESIR)
14  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14 REBZNATRES
The following is the particulars of the associate, which TR AHMENTIEHE  HEA3ELH
is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market TR . EEIEHTERE
price is not available:
Place of The Group's
Form of establishment Particulars of effective  Principal
Name of associate  business structure  and business paid up capital interest  activity
ALK [F FEEN
BeENRER E3E Y37 Kems RRAE BRER TEEER
Beijing Beikong Zhike  Limited Liability The PRC RMB15,400,020 38.96%  Development of smart
Energy Internet Company HE ARE city energy internet
Company Limited* AR AH] 15,400,0207C BERBe ML
R EERER R
BHRERAT
i English translation for identification only.
Summarised information of the associate: HMEARERME :
From
28 February 2019
(Acquisition date)
to 31 March 2019
M201952H28H
(WEEH)ZE
2019%3H31H
RMB’000
AREFTT
Amounts of the Group's share of AEEELHEATEHE
the associate
Loss from continuing operations FECEEE R EIE 619
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 AW -
Total comprehensive income 2EW AR 619
20195 % THERBRAR 197
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15  INVENTORIES AND CONTRACT COSTS 15 BERARRE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Hardwares iyl 103 -
Software systems under development  fERFE 4 Z 4t 11,594 8,036
11,697 8,036

The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised
as expenses as follows:

EARAXNFESEINAT

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARETT
Cost of inventories sold BEEGFTEKRA 76,391 44,599
16  CONTRACT ASSETS 16 HBREE
At 31 March At 1 April At 31 March
2019 2018 2018
201945 R20184 R20184
3A31H 4H1H 3A31H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
INEL-EA ARETT  ARETT
Contract assets AREE
Arising from performance BIEFPAR
under contracts with FTEAE
customers 44,235 39,888 -
Receivables from contracts A E S KGR
with customers within the FEWER BN
scope of IFRS 15, which are B PR B s i 22 A
included in “Trade and bill %1557 &6 [E Ay
receivables” (Note 17) BEAREW
FHIE(PFFE17) 73,008 45,689 -

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year is RMB2,502,000
at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: RMB1,998,000),
all of which relates to retentions.
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(BEAEEHIN

16

17

ANBREESR)

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

The Group has initially adopted IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 at
1 April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, some of the trade
receivables, for which the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditional on achieving certain
milestones or satisfactory completion of retention
period, were reclassified from “Trade and bill
receivables” to “contract assets” (see Note 2(c)).

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, amounts previously
included as “Gross amount due from customers for
contract work” under “Trade and bill receivables” (Note
17) were reclassified to “contract assets” (see Note 2(c)

(ii)).

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 EIGRIA

Bill receivables EW =%

Gross amount due from ElEFERTIE
customers for contract work ~ FXIE4E%E

Less: loss allowance

Notes:

(i)

W ERRE

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, an opening adjustment as
at 1 April 2018 was made to recognise additional ECLs
on trade and bill receivables (see Note 2(c)(i)).

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, gross amount due from
customers for contract work is included in contract
assets and disclosed in Note 16 (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

16 BEEEGE)

BAE

@

(i)

(iii)

AREBN2018F4 81 H & IRIRMAE
BB S 3R 45 2RISR 95 K B IR B 7S
HREAERIE 155 - RIBFTETBRIE
FE AR TEN - RMEE
2(c) °

BRAN B PR B 75 R 2B R S8 1 554K
BB HREFE(AEEPERE
TERRAZATRRENRERE
A F UK E) DR EHE
WAL ERERIEFDREIA
REE](RME20) °

BRANBUBR B 75 3R 5 2E R SB 15587 1% -
BEETAIE SRR IE & el =
BI(ME17) BT REKEFART
ERERE INRBETIBEEIA
EI&7ZE | (RMEE2(0i) °

17 EZRUFEREWRE

At 31 March At 1 April At 31 March

2019 2018 2018

A20194F 720184 R2018%

3HA31H 4H1H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

INGESA ARETT ARETT

79,629 49,041 49,041

- 2,203 2,203

79,629 51,244 51,244

- - 39,888

6,621 5,555 -

73,008 45,689 91,132
BiaE

@i B0 B B B 7 R 45 AE RIS 95k 1%

$R2018 A A1 BIEREWRE -

LARESR B 5 M UEE & I IR Y

BIMEHEEEE (R HEE2(003)) °

(ii) PN BIRR B IS 3R 5 £ RSB 1557 1% -

20195

B EFE&RIIEFIBRETAS
RAE - WRIE 1645 E (R K
2(c)(ii)) °
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(BRAEEHI -

AARESR)

17 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

200 Annual Report 2019

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade and bill
receivables (excluding the gross amount due
from customers for contract work), based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance, of
the Group is as follows:

17

B2 BUHRERERRE (&)

(a)

Less than 1 year DR—F
1 to 2 years —EmF
2 to 3 years ME=F
Over 3 years =FPE

The Group generally requires customers
to settle progress billings and retention
receivables in accordance with contracted
terms. Credit terms of 90 days may be granted
to certain customers for progress billings.

Further details on the Group's credit policy

and credit risk arising from trade debtors and
bills receivable are set out in Note 26(a).

OneForce Holdings Limited

SRR DA

REEE 5 U IR & B
ER(TeEREREFART
RRIBAR) REZE AL
BB BB AR BRI 5 AT 40
™

PN ETL M At 31 March
2019 2018
720194 20184
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T NS
63,839 34,086
2,074 11,350
7,095 4,747

- 1,061

73,008 51,244

AEE-—REREFRES
Rl ERFR 05 1B E A 3R % FE U
REHRE - ETEPAIBE
B TIORNEEH -

BRAKEEERRMEL
BEZREERARERRE
MiEERRNE - FFBEHR
PABTEE26(a) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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18 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18
RECEIVABLES

ANNE - fERHEHERKIE

Amounts due from BN —ZE =708

a third party (Note (7)) (B EEG))
Prepayment for technical service fee  FfiipRIS B FaFI 7KIA
Staff advances and other deposits IR EHMES
VAT refundable ALREIGER
Prepayment for miscellaneous HhFA s AT A

expenses
Others Hit
Note:

(i) The amount was cash advances to a third party with

annual interest rate of 7%, which will be due in
October 2019.

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T NS
6,000 =
7,734 6,505
4,814 1,834
4,781 954
2,911 828
2,280 529
28,520 10,650

GEE
()  BEREAA—LESHREGHE

SER - FREKAET% - HR2019
F10A 35 -

RERREESEYRAGRESR

(@) BRERRESEEWEE:

The Group rEH
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NG S
Total bank balances and cash SRITHBR MRS B 65,293 87,409

Less: Restricted cash (Note 22) A ZBRFIRE

(Mf7E22) 25,734 -
Cash at bank and on hand RITFR EFEES 39,559 87,409

The Group's operations in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong) are conducted in RMB. RMB
is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of RMB out of the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong) is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of the foreign exchange
controls promulgated by the PRC government.

AEBRPE(FBERIN W
EBAAREREMETT ©
ARBILDAABEALBNE
% EHBBE(EERIN K
B XPEBNERNINE
B HIRRAMR A KR PIFTARR

201953 THERERAT 201
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 HERHRESEEYREMRESR
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BER(E)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) ®BMETBHEENAGEYHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the TR AEEHREEEE
Group's liabilities from financing activities, ENBEEEDY  BREESR
including both cash and non-cash changes. FReEE  METBEL
Liabilities arising from financing activities are WEEREARELGERE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future MEREYBL KL E AR
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's BEPEABRESRENRS
consolidated cash flow statement as cash MEFIARKASRE A
flows from financing activities. afE e
Net amount
due (from)/ Other
to related payables
parties and accruals  Bank loans Total
(%), H et
FE{SERmE 7 RER
REFE PESTRI RITER - H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%T:R
(Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 22)
(FzE21) (FfisE21) (PftzE22)
At 1 April 2017 H2017%4818 947 = = 947
Change from financing BEREFE
cash flows: BE
Netincrease in advances  FEUR RS 7 2h(F
due from related parties  FIBIE JIIEEE (947) - - (947)
Total change from MERERE
financing cash flows gmmw 000 (_9_4_7_) ____________ - - ( 947)
At 31 March 2018 1201835311 - - - -
At 1 April 2018 R201854A1H = - - -
Change from financing BEREHE
cash flows: BE
Proceeds from new EERE
borrowings A - - 21,939 21,939
Other Changes Hih @5
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& B A 7) 9,603 3,000 1,900 14,503
Total change from RERERE
financing cash flows goem 000 9603 3000 23839 36,442
At 31 March 2019 2019638311 9,603 3,000 23,839 36,442
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(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

20  TRADE PAYABLES 20 ESENE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T NS

Trade payables to third parties ME=ZAXNNE S EMAZIE 9,699 5,606
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled B8 S ENZIBREBR —FRR
within one year or are repayable on demand. ESRIFEE o
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, AEEREZR NS S RN FIER
based on the invoice date, is as follows: BAET

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
LA ARKETIT

Less than 1 year DR—4F 8,958 5,193
1 to 2 years —EMF 328 =
2 to 3 years ME=F - 259
Over 3 years =FE 413 154

9,699 5,606
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21

22

204 Annual Report 2019

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

21 HtESRERESREX

Amounts due to related parties

& 1~ BRESE 77 3RIR

(Note 29(c)) (PHEE29(c))

Other taxes payables Hh eI

Cash advanced from a third party RKE—BE=ZFRIRESRR
(Note (i) (BREEG))

Payables for staff related costs B T BB A e 5

Payables for costs incurred in BT ERESEE
connection with the major KARRMER LT
acquisition/initial listing of the FiTEE S K AN O FE -
company’s shares IB

Others Hth

Note: FfsE -

0] The cash advance is unsecured and non-interest 0]

bearing, repayable in July 2019.
BANK LOANS 22 RAT

Short-term bank loans, secured or

guaranteed (Note (i)

Note:

FEHERTTE R - 2
E R (FHEEG))

i) As at 31 March 2019, the bank loans of RMB21,939,000 @
is secured by the restricted cash deposit amounted
HKD30,000,000; the remaining balance of bank loans
of RMB1,900,000 is guaranteed by the executive

director.

OneForce Holdings Limited

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARST 7 NS

9,603 -

4,191 3,855

3,000 -

2,434 1,819

422 6,293

1,980 612

21,630 12,579

REBRRAEERRTEE - BR
2019F7AEE -

BX

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T NS

23,839 =

R2019%3A318 @ BITERAR
#21,939,0007t R FIR S TR
30,000,000 TTEHE A : IRITEK
4 AR¥51,900,000 T RIFRETTE
EER
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23

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 5 February 2018 whereby the directors
are authorised, at their discretion, to grant eligible
participants option to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. On 30 July 2018, the Company offered
to grant share options to certain eligible persons
(including executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for
a total of 26,700,000 shares of the Company. For
the share options granted, 20% will vest on 30 June
2019; another 30% will vest on 30 June 2020; and
the remaining 50% will vest on 30 June 2021, subject
to the vesting condition. These share options will be
exercisable until 31 December 2021.

No options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2019.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants
are as follows:

23 LURESGEUROGAERNIRS

AABF20184F2 A5 B #4138 ik 4
T E - B ERERENRSERE
ié*%%;ﬁ%%%ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
RIS - 201847308 » AR
Fﬂ%%té.\ié%}\i(ﬁ%ﬁ’&ﬂ%ﬂﬁ
BEERBUIFNTES) ZHRTEE
H%’éé - LAREE & £26,700,000 f% A&
RDRIRD - ERTHERERS -
20%#%72019F6 A30H 8 E : Bob
30%#7X2020%F6 A30B &R E Mk
T50% 8 # 7% 20216 A30B 7B
(BRI HBIEHMmE) M#ﬁﬁﬂxﬁw
2021412 A31HRTA] F171E -

HZE2019F3 831 HILFE - BHEE
REAETETTIE -

() EFERLBRENKRRK
T

Number of Vesting  Contractual life
instruments periods of options
IEZH BRY BRESREH
Options granted to directors: & FEE MM -
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7H30H 1,140,000 11 months from 41 months
the date of grant 4118R
=gtk
#it111EA
-on 30 July 2018 —R2018%7A30H 1,710,000 23 months from 41 months
the date of grant M1EA
Eps =k
f8at23fEA
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7A30H 2,850,000 35 months from 41 months
the date of grant 4118R
EE =L
&35 A
Options granted to employees X FAEEEE Kk
and advisers to the Group:  EERIEBERRIE -
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7H30H 4,200,000 11 months from 41 months
the date of grant 4118R
=gk
#Eit111EA
-on 30 July 2018 —R2018%7A30H 6,300,000 23 months from 41 months
the date of grant M1E A
Ep =k
f8at23MEA
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7A308 10,500,000 35 months from 41 months
the date of grant 4118R
EE =k
&35 A
Total share options granted 1% HEEARIE 42 26,700,000
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

23 LIRESEUROAERNRS

(%)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) EREELERENERERK
are as follows: (Continued) H®HT : (48)
Except for share options granted to advisors MR B R L& IE
and independent non-executive directors HITE S EIREN  BBRR
of the Group, vesting of share options are ENEBASYAEHBHE
subject to financial performance of the Group 20194 20203 A318 1+
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020, FEBERIINES - BRIER
unless the board of directors of the Company NAEEREHBEIEHE -
waive such condition. At 31 March 2019, the M2019%F3H31H r E£R
directors are of the opinion that the vesting B BEEBBRENEBK
conditions in respect of financial performance HEARKATREER - BAR T
is unlikely to be met; and the board of EEemEINPERBIEM -
directors of the Company had no intention to
waive such condition.

(b) Fair value of share options and (b) EREATERBR

assumptions

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on
a Black-Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black-Scholes model.

RRBER BN EREHR
RBOAFEDZEERE
BREHN D FENE - AR
BRENGES A FEDRE
fdese o (RETIEAGHE - BB
g e RFRBELER
R B A BUR - BRRITTE TR
MAEIAGE o IRETIES

BREATFERRR

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date REtE RN ATE HKD 0.28
0.2887T
Exercise price 11(E(E HKD 0.80
0.80787T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted TR I8 (AR IR A 5e o IR 44.90%
average volatility used in the modelling R AR A Y
under Black-Scholes model) METFERIEYR)
Option life (expressed as weighted FEARET AR (LAMRIEMZ T o IRART 3.42
average life used in the modelling B R R
under Black-Scholes model) TS FHIFIR)
Risk-free interest rate (based on EE RN R (ERINEE S FIR) 1.94%

Exchange Fund Notes)
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 23
(Continued)

(b) Fair value of share options and
assumptions (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken
into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with
the share option grants.

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Income tax payable in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent:

(%)

(b)

ma

(a)

BREAFERBRR(E)

TERR IR Ty B B R e (17
R PSCHE AN T 10 R R4 B AT
8) IREAFAFERH
RHOK 8 R FE R & B 1
HAAE - HHREABER
BEREE - THBARRKE
B EHAFEBIEKE

=240
-2 K

BRERBRG GRS -
REEEES - BRERBH
R FEF 8 KRG K& &
- BB A A R
RIS IR o

A FIR R B S8

REMBRRERAENFE
BRI :

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T NS S

At the beginning of the year REH]

Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FREHE(K1EE7(a)
Income tax paid BRI

At the end of the year RER

6,807 7,699

1,928 1,371
(102) (2,263)

8,633 6,807
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24

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

24 HZERBRRRANFER(E)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) CRREERESERAERE :
recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of (i) FEFHBESEREE
deferred tax assets and liabilities H95% 285 % B
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) YA Y % O =]
recognised in the consolidated ﬁgg B R I f 1B A
statements of financial position and E/S(aB)RRER
the movements during the years are as HEBHINT
follows:
Capitalisation
of intangible
assets and
subsequent Credit loss Cumulative
amortisation allowance tax losses Total
EBREE
EXR{ER =&
HiE s BREE  RAHEER Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax arising from:  RE T3 &EH
EEBE
At 1 April 2017 ®2017F4R1H (418) - - 418)
Credited to the consolidated st AR IBHK

statement of profit or loss (FzE7(a))

(Note 7(a)) (2,435) = - (2,435)
At 31 March 2018 #2018F3H31H (2,853) - - (2,853)
Effect of IFRS 9 BPR B T 4

FORANTE - 833 - 833
At 1 April 2018 #2018F4H1H (2,853) 833 - (2,020)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ykt BA Al

(Note 27) (BtsE27) - 53 878 1,931
Charged to the consolidated ~ IE&ABEE

statement of profit or loss (ME7(a))

(Note 7(a)) 3 160 182 345
At 31 March 2019 #2019F3H31H (2,850) 1,046 2,060 256
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24

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 £&ABIEIRRE R FER(E)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities b) CHRIAEEHEEERS
recognised: (Continued) & (@)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HEHBREFELHE
statement of financial position
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T NS
Net deferred tax assets RERIEEE R 3,106 =
Net deferred tax liabilities RERIEEEFE (2,850) (2,853)
At the end of the year RER 256 (2,853)
() Deferred tax assets not recognised: () AKRERELEHEBEE:
In accordance with the accounting policy R A5 B 5E 2(0) 2 51 B9 & 5
set out in Note 2(t), as at 31 March 2019, w0 R2019F3A31H A&
the Group has not recognised deferred tax B ARBARE A EEA
assets in respect of unused tax losses of R ¥ 14,673,000 7T 7 7R Ik IE
RMB14,673,000, as the directors considered MEEE AEERREH
it is not probable that sufficient future taxable BBrR AR REBI 7]
profits against which the losses can be utilised BETE B 7T B R R B AR A v
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction HIH P BN R EE -
and entity.
(d)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) KREZELHIEAE:

At 31 March 2019, temporary differences
relating to the retained profits of the
subsidiary of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) amounted to
RMB47,212,000 (2018: RMB49,797,000) of
which no deferred tax liabilities in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these profits was provided as
the Company controls the dividend policy of
this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that such profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

20195

R2019F3A31H » AR
EERFR(TBEFEERE)
RS R BY B A R AR 88 &
FER=Z=2EAARE
47,212,000t (20184 : AR
#49,797,0007T) ° AR ARA
A2 I % B B A R B AR B R
K BEBETEBUTHERAR
BRI D IRAB R ©
I 4 Tk 5 IR A8 B8 v N i FE A
RIBIRBRIETIEAE -
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25  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 JRA - RHERRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HERBHBE
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGAHEZRZBNEY
closing balances of each component of the LEARAREHESFHNRES
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the HEREEE o
consolidated statements of changes in equity.
Details of the changes of the Company's ARATIIEHEERIEE &
individual components of equity are set out FHBEEYMAT -
below:
Shares
held under
share
Share award Share Exchange Retained Total
capital scheme premium reserve loss equity
Rzt
SRR 2l
BA HEHRD ROEE EXREE REBER R
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET
(Note (Note
(Note 25(c))  (Note 25(d)) 25(g)(i)) 25(g)(ii)
(FiaE (BaE
(B&F25() (=E25(d)  25(9)0)  25(g)iii))
At 1 April 2017 M2017%481A8 = = 25,747 887 - 26,634
Changes in equity ~ EZ2018%
forthe yearended 3A31HIEEE
31 March 2018: g .
Total comprehensive  FRZ2ERA LT
income for the year - - - (3,284) - (3,284)
Issuance of shares Bl 3,083 = 67,608 = = 70,691
At 31 March 2018 $2018%3A31H 3,083 = 93,355 (2,397) - 94,041
Changes in equity ~ EZ2019F
forthe yearended 3A31HIEEE
31 March 2019: ERgs:
Total comprehensive ~ FRZEUWALRE
income for the year - - - 7,040 (4,887) 2,153
Purchase of own shares 1R [% 17 228t 2
under share award ~ BBE B HR)
scheme - (2,627) - - - (2,627)
Issuance of shares FRURBERN B A R
for the acquisition 1R
of subsidiaries (Fi%E25(0))
(Note 25(c)) 1,058 - 52,925 - - 53,983
At 31 March 2019 $2019%3A31H 4,141 (2,627) 146,280 4,643 (4,887) 147,550
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25

(b) Dividends

B~ REERRE (R

(0

(i)

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend
for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

Share capital

Movements in the Company’s issued share
capital are as follows:

(b) RE
(i) FRHRAGEZKRT
R E
HE2019F K 20184

3A31BIEFE - AR
RESEWAEZHKRN
f% 8 o

(c) B

ARTRBTRALBAT :

Nominal
Number of value of
shares ordinary shares
RGEE SEREE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRAR
fully paid: EBER
At 1 April 2017 20174818 11,878 -
Capitalisation issue on 20182 A5H
5 February 2018 BB AL 3EAT 285,060,122 2,306
Shares issued under ANABED BT
the public offering &1 96,000,000 777
At 31 March 2018 7201853 H31H 381,072,000 3,083
Shares issued for the acquisition — BEULBEEH B A T12%1T
of subsidiaries (Note (i)) R (B REG)) 124,191,177 1,058
At 31 March 2019 H201943A31H 505,263,177 4,141
Note: Bz :

(0]

On 28 February 2019, the Company allotted
and issued 124,191,177 ordinary shares with
par value of HKDO0.01 per share to shareholders
of Great Attain International Limited (“Great
Attain”) as consideration of acquisition of
Great Progress. The fair value of share is
HKDO.51, and the excess of the fair value on
acquisition date over the nominal value of the
shares issued amounted RMB52,925,000 were
credited to share premium.

20195

(i) MW 2019 F 2 A28 H -
A A &l A Great Attain
International Limited
(T Great Attain | ) ¥ IZ &
fid 3% & ¥ 17 124,191,177
REREE0.BITHE
R - (ERKELERRE
MRE - BOHBHDFE
A0S - MR U EE B
HOATEBBD ®T
BHEENDD ARE
52,925,000 7T B 5t A B& 15
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25

(d)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Purchase of own shares under share
award scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company repurchased 4,556,000 shares
under share award scheme on the HKSE. The
total amount paid to acquire these shares of
RMB2,627,000 was deducted from equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company.

25

IR

(d)

- RERRE (&)

RERORBABABERS
Vi)

HZE201963A31HIEEFE -
RARREEBELERSE
A& 17 22 B 51 28 214,556,000
B - AEEZERD
MR EREARE
2,627,000y B A A Al
IR B PR P OB o

Number of Price per share
shares SRER Aggregate
Month of repurchase B E A 7 repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
BERGEE B5 B B EER
HKD HKD RMB'000
BT BT ARETT
August 2018 2018F8H 1,360,000 0.7473 0.7155 867
September 2018 2018F9A 1,400,000 0.7127 0.7080 871
October 2018 20184107 144,000 0.5311 0.5311 69
November 2018 2018F 118 1,652,000 0.5700 0.5300 820
4,556,000 2,627

()  Share award scheme (e) MBS

On 24 July 2018, the Company adopted a R2018%F7H248 » AAR)R

212 Annual R

share award scheme (the “Scheme”) with a
duration of ten years. The aggregate number
of the shares underlying all grants made
during the term of the Scheme is limited
to 3% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The Board will
be entitled to make an award to any of the
eligible participant such number of issued
shares as the Board shall determine pursuant
to the Scheme rules. The eligibility of any of
the eligible participants to an award shall be
determined by the Board from time to time
on the basis of the Board’s opinion as to his
contribution and/or future contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.
During the year ended 31 March 2019,
4,556,000 shares were repurchased from the
market. And no share was granted to any
eligible participant.

eport 2019  OneForce Holdings Limited

MR iR 2 (M58 ])
BETF - RETEIERA -
FraE &I 12BN AR BE O AR 1 48
IR R AR BB BITHR
KH3% - EEEZIEHEER
EREER2EERZEHER
B RRETNEBITR
BEE - FREERK2EE
ERERHNEREHESS
BRIEERAELBEHAEE
BEERERNERE FK
REMMAREE - RBZE
2019F3A31HIEFE - BE#
M58 [0 4,556,000 X A% 17 -
WHmEAEREGERSHEER
AR o
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CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25

()

(9)

B~ REERRE (R

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share ) RBEBRKRBERFTE
options at the end of the reporting period B R A 4F HA
At 31 March 2019
M2019%3H31H
Exercise period 1TEHR Exercise price number
TEE R
HKD
BT
30 June 2019 to 31 December ~ 20199F6 H30H &
2021 20214912 A31H 0.80 5,340,000
30 June 2020 to 31 December 20206 H30HZE
2021 2021412 A31H 0.80 8,010,000
30 June 2021 to 31 December 20216 A30HZE
2021 2021412 A31H 0.80 13,350,000
26,700,000
Each share option entitles the holder to BHERERTEEARE
subscribe for one ordinary share in the —BRARBEBARARERF] o
Company. Further details of these share ZEBRENE —SHEBR
options are set out in Note 23 to the AR E B TS ERER M7t 23 o
consolidated financial statements.
Nature and purpose of reserves (g) RFBENHEEREN
(i) Share premium (i) R EE

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time.

B mEBR 2 EA X
KARAEET - Rk
LAE 75 18 IE 2 7
EHERNREENE
FE 3415 (1961 FFH 358
SER - RERE RIERT)
HE -
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(9) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

214 Annual Report 2019

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations, the Company'’s
subsidiary established in Mainland
China is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory reserves
until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distributions to equity holders. This
reserve can be utilised in setting
off accumulated losses or increase
capital of the subsidiary and is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note
2(w).

OneForce Holdings Limited

25

BRA - RERRE(R)

(9)

RENEER B 89 (F)

(ii)

(iii)

ZEFE

R B RA B &
O ARBERFE
P b X 37 B B BB 1 )
AEBHE RGN
0% B2EERE B
B iE A E S M
BARZ250% ° UF#EHE
VAERESTBA
DIKBIHRER o % fE M
A RER IR BB
X 38 OO B B & B & A
- BRIFETEE
BRIFE AT DK

EL#E

34 G 15 2 45 78 51
$ B BRRALD
FASNELE - bk
R 8 B 2(w) 7 B
B BRLE -
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(h) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables and contract assets. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because
cash at bank are held with well-known
financial institutions, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any financial
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

25

26

BRA -~ RERRE(E)
(hy EBEXER

AEBEEEEANETERREZ
BREAEEEEFERE
Rge ) - BUFEE A B RR
HEH R AEMT EEBE
REME THESFARR
HIBEARBERELUR D E AR o

REBEER N E BB RE
BHERER  ABFUAR

= EEKEARERENE S
P BR 3 ¥ SR AR {2 & ANHR O B
KBS RREZHREF
iy -

ARAREMBARHNTR
SMNRIETERI B AREKAR -

TRHEAREERESMTIANAYF
=1

AEEEEEGBEF S REERR
BETRAR Kﬁlﬁ&zziﬂﬁ
MAEEEEEHERROT SRR
BERREAINT o

() =EERRK

EERREHEFHATEITA
EEGITEZY S
EEANRR - AEENEE
EEEEREE S ERE
LEREE  -@\REBTERS
mﬂ%%@%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REEERBREBIR - &)
$%@lﬁi&ﬁ$%%%
SIBMEERKRAR o

AEEYEREHRESAEE
A AS B R g O {17 B 7

E o
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 March 2019, 52%
(2018: 69%) and 94% (2018: 97%) of the
total trade receivables and contract assets was
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. For project contracts, the Group
generally requires customers to settle billings
in accordance with contracted terms, credit
terms of 90 days may be granted to certain
customers for progress billings.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.
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TREREERESMTIANAYF
E(%H)

(a)

FERE (&)
EZEUHBEREEEE

TEEMNEERREIERXE
FRSEBRMTZE - mIE
XREPREEEFIRIITE
SERFAFE At &F
EFNEERBREFEEERN
AEERFENEFAEERNE
TEAEMRZE - 7R201953 A
310 - AEEE 5 EWFIE
MAEREERTERNS2%(2018
£ 1 69% ) 5% 94% (20184 :
97%) D RIRBEAEBZEAR
ERRAAXEFE °

AEBEeHMEERBHE
TEERERNEPETERE
Biffh - ZEFEETRE
P 3 B B R IR B 48 1 AT 8%
RIBEONREN - LEE
EHEFPMEEPREMAE
RERBEENREER -
HRIRAER  AEE—R
SEREFFPRES REFB
EEEFR  ETEPHK®
EE SRR TIOREEH -

AEEZEERBRAEH
EEBRNTRE(ERRER
T HE ) KAt 82 5 RIKFIA
rkERBEERERE AR
AEENBEEEERER
I & R R 2 P 2 B Y e
BEABEREZR  HRE
MR B B IR R Y &
EXAKETREPEBE—
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AAREFIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets

26 SREMEEREMIANDT

E(%&)

(@ FERERG)
ESEUFEARERNEE
(4&)

TRIEHBEBAEEN2019
F3A31HATARMNEERR
URESRERZERERE

as at 31 March 2019: ENTEREEEENER
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TREESIEX BREMAE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET T ARETTT
Current (not past due) BUHA (k% HR) 1% 71,178 591
Less than 1 year past due wmHA DA —4F 3% 39,038 1,014
1-2 years past due BE—EME 7% 3,200 239
2-3 years past due BEME=F 15% 6,635 964
More than 3 years past due @ HA#EE =4 100% 3,813 3,813
123,864 6,621

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

20195

BHEBERXZAEIFMHER
BRERE - LFHLXE
AR - URBRIEBERR
1% HA PR RO A B AR O B2 A AR
SR R N AN S B 5 R UK
TR TR H 17 4B B O AR A L B
BR -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 cREMREEREMIANAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B8\

(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a)

Comparative information under IAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment (see Note 2(I)(i) —
policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018). At
31 March 2018, no trade receivables were
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis
of trade debtors that were not considered to
be impaired was as follows:

FERE (&)

B E st ERE39K B T 49

A2018F4 818 - BEA
EERERER BRI
EEE (R E20)1)-20184
ARTHRIEAMEEK) -
20183 H31H » HEEHE
WHIBW B E ABIE - Wk
AR AR B &Y FE AR SR B
DWW -

At 31 March

2018

7201843 H31H

RMB’000

ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired I A8 BT AORE 58,549
Less than 1 year past due BER DR —F 16,297
1-2 years past due BE—E W 9,871
2-3 years past due BEARE=F 3,235
More than 3 years past due BERFRIA = 976
88,928

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ANBREESR)

(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

Comparative information under IAS 39

(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables and contract assets

during the year is as follows:

Balance at 31 March 2018
under IAS 39

Impact on initial application of
IFRS 9 (Note 2(c)(i))
Balance at 1 April 2018

Impairment losses recognised
during the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

7R2018F3 A31HIRIE
BIpR & it 2RI 3957
EE RS
EpN RS e e
JEBISEOSRIR 2
(B EE2(0)(0))

R2018F4 A1 HR &%

FARERHBIERE

7201943 A31 B

20195

TREREERERMTIANAYF
B (%)

FERR(E)

B E 71 ERIE 3958 T HY
LEREH ()

FA - FREBESBREFAR
FREENERERERZD
e

AN Eldd M At 31 March
2019 2018
120195 20184
3A31H 3HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T NG S

5,555 =

5,555 =

1,066 =

6,621 =
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 ZREREERLSBMIAENAT
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B8\
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (b) FEBHESRAR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
reporting year of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of each reporting year) and the
earliest dates the Group can be required to

pay:

AEBOBETEHRERR
BELHFLLRETHEER
# o ERERARRSHE
REFZEFHHRBIIREEH
EEES  NENEHEE
ENRBEEHK

TRERAEENTES
REERSHRSFROFEH
BREMA - BHREFTHOR
MBERERE(BRERTTH
MER(HBFE)RNERE
FAROBEHN EFENF S
) RAKE R RERE 2R
BT BHEH -
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2019 2018

Contractual Contractual

undiscounted undiscounted

cash flow cash flow
within 1 year (€T within 1 year Carrying
or on demand ENGITE  or on demand amount

3 —ENRE

EX2ZETH EXZBITH
REBREHE IREE pXaskkyoe: FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT T ARETT ANRETT
Bank loans RITER 24,667 23,839 - -
Trade payables B REMTE 9,699 9,699 5,606 5,606
Other payables and accruals — E-{th A FUB B FE TR 21,630 21,630 12,579 12,579
55,996 55,168 18,185 18,185

OneForce Holdings Limited
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ANBREESR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from bank loans is limited
because bank loans issued at fixed rates. The
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest

rate profile of the Group’s borrowings
at 31 March 2019.

26 TREREEREBMIANAF
B (%)

(o)

MRER

MNERRA-HEBTAN
RFEIARKRRESREAD
BHNRZEHMEBOER -
m 7 ER 1T B SR BA B E A =K 2%
B FAAEEERRER
TEFOMNXRRER - &
BREERI M AEE N R
BTN TX()

(i) FIFRER
TRFFMMN 201943

A31H AL B E D
FIRBER,

2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
- GilES BRI
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
% ARETR % ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: ~ EEHZfEH :
Bank loans HITER 5.655% ~ 7.395% 23,839 - -
Fair value measurement (d 2AFEFE

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

20195

WIELARFEFROEHT
BB RTE -

#2019 & K 2018 & 3 A 31
B - & E R AR ok 8 Ak
AFEMER T AREER
ERTFETESAZSR -
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27 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 27

On 28 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% of
the shares and voting interests in Great Progress. The
consideration was satisfied by allotment and issuance
of 124,191,177 ordinary shares of the Company (Note
25(c)).

Great Progress and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Target Group”) are principally engaged in
the research and development of communication
technologies and its application in the development
and construction of smart city and lloT related areas,
as well as the sale of PI Point.

(a) Consideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition

date fair value of each major class of
consideration transferred.

Ws B Ff 18 2 ]

201942 A28H » AREBUREEHE
Bl 2D Mg R - R(ER
BRCEE 2 B1T124,191,17 7R A &
LmAE R (FEE25(0) °

HERR N EMB AR (S BiRE
# ) T EREBERMAOERER
R SRR RE T M T ME AR AR
BB ER - AR T E Y REEH
HYEHE -

(@) CHEEAE

TREANKBARAETE
BRIEERAENATE -

HKD'000 RMB’000
T BN S

Fair Value of equity instruments EETANAFE

(124,191,177 ordinary shares) (124,191,1778%
EiEAR) 63,338 53,983

Less: Fair value of total identifiable & : BJ 5 Bl 42 & &= S E

net assets NS 65,579
Gain on bargain purchase FRIEFEE & (11,596)

The fair value of the ordinary shares issued
was based on the listed share price of the
Company at 28 February 2019 of HKD 0.51
per share.

(b) Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
RMB5,309,000 on legal fees and due diligence
costs. These costs have been included in ‘Costs
incurred in connection with the acquisition of
subsidiaries.
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27 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 27 IWEMBAT(E)

(c) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities () e WESERCRIE
assumed =L
The following table summarises the recognised TEREMAR2019FE2H828HE
amounts of assets acquired and liabilities WEEENDEREABEND
assumed on 28 February 2019. TEREEE o

RMB’000
ARBFIT
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KRR 25,164
Intangible assets mLEE 52,043
Interest in associates B R TR 2,922
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 1,931
Non-current assets EMEBEE 82,060
Inventory g 212
Trade and bill receivables B 5 REWRIE R B R F 1,355
Prepayment and other receivables TETRIE K Bt R MR IR 1,599
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 481
Current assets MENVEE 3,647
Trade creditors and bill payables B O EMNERNENEE 1,192
Other payables HAbERFRIE 17,036
Bank loans RITER 1,900
Current liabilities mEBE 20,128
Total identifiable net assets acquired Al#RI B W EE FERE 65,579
The fair value of the identifiable assets and MU E = IEH B Y AT 7
liabilities acquired in the acquisition were BENMBEBEATFETRERH
assessed based on valuation prepared by BERLLEHNEFT(HAD A E
the directors with reference to the valuation A2019F1 A14B A ERS
report of external valuer dated 14 January Frim e R EETTRTAS ©
2019.

(d)  Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries (d WETFAAREBEERN
Gain on bargain purchase arose from the fair 2E AN EH2018F9530H
value changes of the consideration shares £2019%2 A28 8 HfEM KT
with reference to the closing prices of the B BREEEEMNERER
Company between 30 September 2018 and MERTFEZFEES -

28 February 2019.

20195
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28 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the respective reporting year end dates, the
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

28 RREHERE

REBEFR - ARBRET A HEH
REHERNNARRKEHERRE

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 2 years

—FR

The Group leases certain office premises through
non-cancellable operating leases. These operating
leases do not contain provisions for contingent lease
rentals.

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

—FRERFA

R
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
NGB ARETT
2,039 2,230
- 1,672
2,039 3,902

AEEE BN HHELEH
EHESETHMAERFN - &%
EREMHEY RFARAH
EIEK

29 EXREBMERZ

(a) FEREBASHMN

REBTEEEAEHNE
BRENAABESE(RHES
BRI RAEERETHESHE
B (MR ) BRIE « #
FIET

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T NS

Short-term employee benefits REEERET 3,149 2,642
Contributions to defined M A EHFCRIKET 2

contribution retirement scheme T 274 330

Share based payments LARR (9 AR BRI TR 132 -

3,555 2,972

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(Note 6(a)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BEREHAITS (&)
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEMAE 2R S

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T NS S

Net decrease in non-interest bearing MR 52 £ F0R >

advances granted FER - 947
Payment of dividends AR EATHR 1,087 -
Provision of technical services AT AR A5 4 255 -
()  Balances with related party () EEEH &%

(i) Accounts receivable and prepayment (i) JE L BR SR K2 T AN B
and other receivables comprised the N H b fE W R IE B 1
following balances due from related 51 e W B B T B A

parties: £k

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T NS S

Trade and bill receivables: H 5 EWGRIA K
EWEE
— Beijing Beikong Zhike Energy  — 3t LIRS RIGER
Internet Company Limited HHtHEBR AR 98 =
(i)  Other payables comprised the iy HiESHKEBESET
following balances due from related 51| L B Bt 77 O Ak -
parties:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT BN S
Other payables HAbFE (I RIA
(Note 21): (BizE21) -
- Beijing Aige Reide Technology ~—1t M A& ImfE R
Company Limited BRAT] 8,823 =
— Beijing Aige Reide investment  — b RV IR IBERE
Company Limited BRAT] 780 =
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEEAIN - LARKETIR)
29  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EABEKLIXS (&)
(Continued)
(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating (d) HEEXSEBEN EHTHA
to connected transactions EREER
None of the above related party transactions e FhEsM IR ZEAS
falls under the definition of connected TIRAFE14AZE 2 BB Fk
transaction or continuing connected HERESSTE o
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30 AFEBEMERRE
POSITION
2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥T T NS
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENB AR
& 54,330 =
Amounts due from a subsidiary FEU —FEIFT B A A
T 48,036 24,038
102,366 24,038
Current asset REBEE
Bank balances and cash BeMREEEY 50,514 70,003
Current liability REEE
Other payables H b fE A~ 8 5,330 -
NET ASSETS BEEFE 147,550 94,041
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR A 25
Share capital N 4,141 3,083
Reserves E 143,409 90,958
TOTAL EQUITY e AR 147,550 94,041

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 21 June 2019.

Wang Dongbin
EFRM
Chairman

T
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Wu Hongyuan

KA

Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

31 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 31

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at
1 April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are
disclosed in Note 2(c).

32 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 32
PARTY

At 31 March 2019, the directors consider the
immediate parents of the Group to be Union Sino
Holdings Limited, Long Eagle International Limited,
Main wealth Development Limited, Smart East
Limited and Great Attain International Limited which
are incorporated in the BVI. These entities do not
produce financial statements available for public use.
The directors consider the ultimate holding parties of
the Group to be Mr Wu Zhanjiang, Mr Cao Wei, Mr
Li Kangying and Mr Wang Dongbin.

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019

Up to date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

LB E

AEER2018F4 81 HEHXER
BRBA 75 SR YE BISE 1557 & BB B 7%

HAEAFOW o RIBFMETBES
% ERERATET - BRI
REBRE—PFHBHERMHFE2(0) -

HERBRERR

2019F3A318 - EERALEE
#)E % &2 8 AUnion Sino Holdings
Limited -+ Long Eagle International
Limited * Main wealth Development
Limited + Smart East Limited } Great
Attain International Limited * & A
AN RBRLRFSEMIL - %%
ERUVERRUMHAREANOY R
& BERR  AEENREERT
RRBULELE - BRALE TR
ERERBERE ©

BZ201963A31MALtFECHE
{3 R4 MR ~ FERIR
RN TRETE

HEZSHHRETZAE  BRe
FHEAE RS B BEMEUBIER] RITE
Al » ZFBE] R ERIE E£2019F
3A3BILEFEMREBNKREZSE
IIISSRER P IR - ZEEFT RERIE
FE N5 A] e B AN SR EABREE o

Effective for
accounting years
beginning on or after
RUATBE#sk 2 1%
FIBE S FEAEN

IFRS 16, Leases % B T e o 2R B 1 January 2019
F16% - HE 20191 H1RH

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax BRI RERELTEeRES 1 January 2019
treatments 2358 TR T T 1T 2019F1 A1H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Bl BA 7 2 2 Bl 4 2 B 1 January 2019
Cycle 2015-20174 & #BfE 20191 318
Amendments to IAS 28, Long-term BFE @R E285R 85T - Ft 1 January 2019
interest in associates and joint ventures B AT RA LD ¥R RHEL 20191 A1H
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAN - UAARKIR)

33
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and interpretations is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far the Group has not
identified any aspects of the new standards which will
have significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has
been substantially completed for IFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the
Group, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the group’s
interim financial report for the six months ended 30
September 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in that
financial report.

IFRS 16, Leases

Currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessee.

OneForce Holdings Limited

33

BZ201963A31ALFECHE
B R EMIERT - HERIR
RRENTTRERE(E)

REERIEGZEER] - FER K2
TETEHAR BN TE F AR I R BT T
fih o ANEEE IR B AR BIFTEER T
Al EASEER A IS SRR ER EAF
2. T ENE—SHBEER
TXETiR o BT H BRI R S 2R
F16THFEE RBGER - AR B
A2 e O aT G AR EE E BT A] 15
WERAER - BNRMNZESELW
ERFEMES TR @ MRS
BEE =2019%9A30H 1L/ @ A&+
BB RS RS R B R FE AR S ERIAT
AJRER R E — PR E - ISR
SR ERERAZESERR - AEER
ARER N E @A ER R R (BERE
GEIR

B BREERF 165 HE

AEERFEENERREHE MK
EHE - WERENBEATRT M
HELPARR - AEBERABART
MERDHE o
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

33

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the statement of comprehensive income over
the period of the lease. As disclosed in Note 28, at
31 March 2019 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to RMB2,039,000 for properties, which is
payable within 1 year after the reporting date. The
Group elect not to apply this accounting model
to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is
12 months or less), there’s no amount need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once IFRS 16 is adopted.

33

BZ201963A31MALFECHE
B30 R4 MR ~ FERIR
RENTRESE(E)

BB HRERENFE6S  HE
(#&)

BHERY B REEANF16HTE
HHHEARBE THENREENAR
FABEATE - A - BRP R
EEAF 165 — LR - ABEAMR
TBEIBEHEREEHE - BUM
Rz REREERRIN - ABEARK
PrEMRENBELURERERES R
BOFENE - BIEMRAREERS
B iR BRI E AR ERER M
SAEMEERE  WHEREENIEA
BIBE  -RTHERZEENAR
% ABAREREEAERKER
HAEERFTE £ MR SR R EBEE
EFE - MIFRERERENHER
NEFGEERRRBESHEME
EMBERX - EERSEBRT -
AMARERET SIS HIHEE (BN
R1I2EAIATE) RMEBEEEDN
HERALL RN EHERT
MM RSN HRNR RREE

BB SRS LR E16RBEEEY
BAEBIEARRDEACEHREN
ME - BEREEHEABANEST
BIEF % - BRI R\ B g
MEENEE  URFERESHR
2ERERERAS AR - 0
28FFHEFE - 7201943 A31H » =
EERETATBECEHERERD
EFEMNNSERAENTAEARE
2,039,000t * AL AHIE —F
RS o REEEREBENB I EFHER
FERNEEAE (ANABA12EA K
TE)  —BRABBREEREE
BIZE165% - BEERTEAILRIEE(E
AEEERIATHERRE -
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Definitions

Bx

“Acquisition”

[ A |

" affiliate(s)”

[HtE AL

“Articles of Association” or
“Articles”

A EIZARI I3k
[ARRY ]

"associate(s)”

[HEEEA ]

“Board”

==

“big data”

[ REUE ]
"business day”
[&%A]
“BVI"

[RBRELES ]

“CAGR”

[EAFIERE

232 Annual Report 2019

acquisition of the Target Group (including the Target Company and its
subsidiaries), via acquiring entire equity interest in the Target Company,
and its smart city and loT related business. The details of which are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 November 2018, 28
December 2018, 11 January 2019, 30 January 2019 and 28 February
2019, and the Company’s circular dated 15 January 2019.
BEBKERERARSHEE  RYEEEE(BERERARLE
B A ) ) N HES S T B B B AR R R TS RO MR - BRAFE B EN A
AEIAER2018%11 4290 + 2018412 A28H ~ 20191 /4118 -
2019%F1 A30H 201952 A28 A A EAKRA AR HHI /201941
R 15HHYEK ©

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or
under direct or indirect common control with such specified person
EEERRERENEE A TR EEIEH R EEE AT ERSRETE
HEEHIEAEMALT

the articles of association of the Company approved by the written
resolutions of the Shareholders on 5 February 2018 and effective upon
Listing and as amended from time to time

BARRMAMEREMA - KREN2018F2 ASHUAEEIRZERY
R ETEAER - WETREET

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EEA EHARRIME T RRE

the board of Directors of the Company

EARBERE

refer to information that is huge in amount and volume, which make
it not possible to achieve data collection, management and processing
into data that is capable of being used in decision making in business
operation

B ENENEREE R SEEI - BB REIE - FEANDGE
RERREBIR

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal
banking business to the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
public holiday in Hong Kong
BEBNRIT - RALBFARIHEEFRITER - BWEEH 2
HEXEFEARBRHNE T

the British Virgin Islands
ERBRAEE

compound annual growth rate, a method of assessing the average
growth of a value over time

BEAFERE e —EREE -BRERANFEIERNTTE

OneForce Holdings Limited



Definitions

B=

“Capitalisation Issue”

[EAME#TT]

"CCASS”
[FhRGEEZL

"CCBI Investments”

[ CCBI Investments

“Chance Talent”

[ Chance Talent]

“China Southern Grid”

[FHEH]
“close associate(s)”
[ EEEEE AT

“cloud computing”

“Companies Law” or

“Cayman Companies Law”

[RELEIHAEEE AR

the issue of Shares to be made upon capitalisation of the share
premium account of the Company as referred to in the Prospectus of
the Company dated 12 February 2018

BALFHER2018F2 A 12 BMABRERR T AT AR R EE
BRERNMEmM BT

the Central Clearing and Settlement System established and operated
by HKSCC
BEBBERWIREN P REE R EL

CCBI Investments Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands
on 10 November 2004 and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Construction Bank Corporation, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 939) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601939)

#8CCBI Investments Limited * —fE7X 200411 10 B RIEFH SHEX
DIFEM B B IR B EAE R AR - I A5 3P AR (AR A5 - 939)
R EBEHRSH(RMMRSE : 601939) L AR P BIEFREITRG
BRARNEEEZEMB AR

Chance Talent Management Limited, a company incorporated in the
BVI on 4 July 2007 with limited liability, which was wholly-owned by
CCBI Investments, a Substantial Shareholder, as at the date of this
report

fEChance Talent Management Limited © —[E22007%7 B4B £ £ B
BZESEAMKIMNBRAR - IRATRE B HHRCCBI Investments(—
ZXERR)ZERE

electric power grids covering Southern China, and managed by CSG,
one of the two major state-owned cross-provincial electric power grids
in the PRC

BEEMTLENEN ATEESERER  RTEREXZEA
BEERZ—

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR LTARAIATE T ARE

a internet based way of developing, utilising and delivery of related
services. Normally, it involves providing extensible and visualised
resources via internet

EENEEBENERREFHE - fRANMKMNRN - BEF S RBEH
HRRHZERAARICHEIR

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as consolidated and

revised) of the Cayman Islands
EENEREHERANE(1961FEIFEN - LERE RIER])
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Definitions

B

“Companies Ordinance”
NSIESUN

“Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance”

[RA] OB MRS 1R B )

“Company” or “the Company”

RN

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL

“CSG”

[ EIRE 5 E4 ]
"Director(s)”
=

“EIT
[BERPRFHL

“Founding Shareholders”
[BIPEARER |
“GDP”

(B EERE]

“Global Offering”
[BIREE ]

"Group”, "our Group”,
“we” or “us”

[ E 5[ 314

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

EEBEDIF622ERANED] - ETRERT » MFRsl AR T A B

the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time
BEBENFERERRIOBR LRGSO GRD] - KARHER] ~ #Fsk
AR AL 7T A& 2k

OneForce Holdings Limited (JT J#EMRRER A F]), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 July 2016 as an exempted
company with limited liability

BT HERAER AR - —HR2016F7AsBERASHESFMAA
EHRRER AT

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

HEA EMARAAT THORE

fE 75 E43(China Southern Power Grid Company Limited), an
Independent Third Party, a major state-owned cross-provincial electric
power grid company which is principally engaged in electric power
transmission

JEFREELTEN  ABLF = —HXEEBEEAENAR  £E
NEHEED

the director(s) of the Company
EARRAIESR

enterprise income tax of the PRC
P EIEMEH

collectively, Smart East, Union Sino, Main Wealth, Long Eagle, Mr.
Wang Dong Bin, Mr. Wu Zhan Jiang, Mr. Li Kang Ying and Mr. Cao
Wei

$§Smart East ~ Union Sino * Main Wealth * Long Eagle + EHXH LA
RETEE  FRRRERERLENLGHE

gross domestic product

RENEERE

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
BEEBLMBEE REREE

the Company and its subsidiaries at the relevant time

BARBRERNERHENHE AR

234 Annual Report 2019  OneForce Holdings Limited



Definitions

B=

“HK$" or “Hong Kong dollars” or
“HK dollars”
[l

“HKSCC”
[BEGER

"HKSCC Nominees”
[EBEERIEA

“Hong Kong” or "HK"
[&%]

U

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”
[HERNBPERL D]

“Hong Kong Offer Shares”
[HEEERN ]

“Hong Kong Public Offering”
[HENFEE]

“IMPG Grid”
[ARHENEH]

“IMPG Group”

[AREENEE]

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

o A —

(B E=7

“Inner Mongolia”

I2E=N

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBETERET

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

EEETREEERAA]

HKSCC Nominees Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKSCC
BEAPRERE (REBAN)ERAR - BAEENZENBAF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
EHEEBFNTHR

Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
of the Company
ERRABEBRNBFELYBREERFECARAR

the 48,000,000 Shares offered for subscription and issued pursuant to
the Hong Kong Public Offering
EIRIEE B AFE SR 2 E AR K #176948,000,0008 Az £

the offering by our Company of the Hong Kong Offer Shares for
subscription by the public in Hong Kong
BEARFIREHEBTBEERMARBTENRARALRE

electric power grids covering Inner Mongolia, and managed by IMPG
Group, a state-owned provincial electric power grid in the PRC

EBREASHEENER  ATEEFEAREEARLENEEER

ANEHE N (£E) AR EMEL A A (Inner Mongolia Power (Group)
Company Limited*), an Independent Third Party, a state-owned
provincial electric power grid company, together with its subsidiaries, is
principally engaged in the electric power transmission, transformation
and distribution in the west Inner Mongolia

BAEHEN(EB)EREEAR  ABYE=7  —H+THREGE
REFERR EREMNBARFZEAZTHABRERS - BFERE

==
=h

a person, persons, company or companies which is or are independent
of, and not connected with (within the meaning under the Listing
Rules), any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associate(s)
BEUNARAIEEAMBARINEMNES  TETHRABREE
BRIKESBHHEA  BEZSEATHERE(ERR ETHRA)
BIALHAT]

Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region of the PRC

EPEAREBRR
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Definitions

B

“International Offer Shares”
[ BRFR 3 3

“International Offering”

[BIFREE ]

“Internet+"

[EEEAE+ ]

“internet of things” or “loT”

[ B4R )

“industrial internet of things” or
“lloT”
[ TP |

“iPole”

“mPoint”
[ |

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmRAl

the 48,000,000 Shares offered for subscription and issued pursuant to
the International Offering
TEIR IR BIPR B 1R = 505 DA 3R I N2 38917 H)48,000,0008% A% 17

the placing of the International Offer Shares
RSB B SR

By using information technology and internet platform to deeply
integrate internet with traditional industries so as to evolve new form
of economic development which using internet as infrastructure and
implementation tool

MAGERMEERETE  EEMERERTEETRE/RE
PR A B B S R A R B IR T A A BB R RE

an information accessing media that is based on internet and

telecommunication network, which connects all individually traceable

devices, and is characterised with smart, advanced and connected

three key features

—(EAEN BB N EEREEBAEE  EE RN EIB L SU A
EROHMEBNMES  EEEEE & BB -(EE2RFE

the use of internet of things technologies to enhance industrial
processes

BN BB AR MR TR2RF

a technology, via connecting electric power supply from the existing
lampposts network with the optic fiber network, and in together
with the application of mPoint, to transform the city’s existing street
lampposts into loT network access points

E- R ERRANERERNENHEIERBENER - 1B
W EnE - BRI AR E B IRBAIE R BEEE AT
i

an lloT gateway with integrated access to electric power and fiber
optic network

TR AR HR L ) B A AR I AT BE Y T R B R4

listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 2 March 2018
B 7 2018F3 A2 R ER AT T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
B PES ETRA - EREHERT » s R M T ek
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Definitions

B=

“Long Eagle”

[Long Eagle ]

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Main Wealth”

[ Main Wealth ]

“Memorandum of Association” or
“Memorandum”

[ARREAZAM 3 K4
"Mr. Cao Wei"”
[EEEL]

“Mr. Li Kangyin”
[T

“Mr. Wang Dongbin”

[ EER 4
“Mr. Wu Zhanjiang”
[ REBLUTHE]

“New Reform”

[#rE ek

LONG EAGLE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, a company incorporated in the
BVI on 26 November 2015 with limited liability, which is wholly owned
by Mr. Cao Wei, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

FELONG EAGLE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED + —fE#20155 11 A26 B7E
RERZBREEMNINBRAR  REBRELE (BT ERRLE
MRz —)2EHR

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
R P EIR

MAIN WEALTH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED, a company incorporated
in the BVI on 18 March 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Li Kang Ying, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

FEMAIN WEALTH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED + —fE#20163 A18H7E
RERABREAMRINARAR  AFRESE(—HEIERER
BIRR . —) 2B %E

the memorandum of association of the Company adopted upon
incorporation of the Company (as amended from time to time)

BARA B AR EMAERANESEERAR G TRERT)

Mr. Cao Wei (B ), a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

FEEAL  BRETERRRAIMBIRZ —

Mr. Li Kangying (Z#13%), a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

BFERREEL - REBERRMAIREERZ —

Mr. Wang Dongbin (E 5 3H), an executive Director and chairman
of the Board, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

BEREEL  RRTESNRESSIRE  ITERRLAIMBRZ —

Mr. Wu Zhanjiang (;2%;/I), a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

BREIELE  REIZRRNMAIBRR 2 —

Several Opinions on Further Deepening the Reform of the Electric
Power System (RARNE — R (LB HBFIKNFENETER)), a reform
opinion promulgated by the State Council in March 2015 regarding,
among other things, the acceleration of the construction of the
electric power exchange platform and the permission of private electric
power retailing companies to purchase electricity from electric power
generation companies and re-sell to end users
ECANE— T REBHRFINENETER) - —HN2015F3A /A
BRI HIAE - WABR(ER R IMRERENXSHFa kit
EUABNEERRREERABEENHES N TRHAP
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Definitions

B

“Offer Shares”
[ &R

“PRC” or “China”

[ B

“Reorganisation”
[E54 ]

“RMB”
[ARE]

“5335"

x4 B AR 7% |

B

"SGCC Grid”

[BEHRERLRER]

TR

“SGCC Group”

238 Annual Report 2019

the Hong Kong Offer Shares and the International Offer Shares,
collectively

REBRERN MBEREERDFE

the People’s Republic of China, except where the context requires
otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

BPEARHENE - RIENESEFE  TATEEEE - R EDRF]
FiTHERAE

refers to the reorganisation arrangement undergone by the Group in
preparation for the Global Offering
BAREREBEIREEMETNEALTHE

Renminbi, the official currency of the PRC

EPBATEBARE

Software as a Service, is a model of providing software system related
services via internet. Under Saas, service providers deploy software
system in servers, and users can subscribe required services based on
their specific demands via internet. The underlying service fees are
calculated based the scope and length of services subscribed

E—ERAE BRRMHEG ZGREREER o REBREIRE -
ARG M FE R 1S B R BB RIARES = - AP AT LA B R8Tk -
RIAE A EARMNRE - ARG BRI BREHERFHRE

o
ATE -

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

EEEEFLPESHEREZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEBEVENEIZIHFRPERD - KFRHER] - s AR M
MBS

electric power grids managed by SGCC Group, one of the two major
state-owned cross-provincial electric power grid in the PRC
EREREEANTNEEEENER  RHPEMEATZEEBEEEM

%X & 492 Fl(State Grid Corporation of China), an Independent
Third Party, a major state-owned cross-provincial electric power grid
company, together with its subsidiaries and operating companies, are
principally engaged in electric power transmission, transformation
and distribution in the PRC, other than the west Inner Mongolia and
Southern China

BEREHELNT  RBUYE=F  —HFEEEELEEHEQF &R
HIfB AR NREELRR  F2REFXNPR(ASRHEBREIEER
SINBE - BB RILBES

OneForce Holdings Limited



Definitions

B=

"Share(s)”

[Rsdn )

“Shareholder(s)”
[f%E ]

“smart city”

[ = ]

“smart city related loT
infrastructures”

[ BE YOk T A R W gk 48 R i |

“Smart East”

[ Smart East |

“Southern China”
[FAR%E ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 52 FA

“subsidiary(ies)”

)= PNSIR

"Substantial Shareholder(s)"”
[ FZRER

ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01
each, subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the
Stock Exchange

£

holder(s) of the Share(s)
B IDIFAR A

the materialisation of intelligent management and operation of cities
via new generation of information and communication technologies,
such as internet of things, cloud computing and big data, for more
convenient life of people and sustainable development of cities

ERANMYEE  EERARBESENT -—RERBERMERMT
B ERNENE - UARAPIRRESENEE R TH A FHEER

city infrastructures which are embedded with smart sensing
technologies and connected to centralised management systems which
allow for real-time data acquisition and analysis

ERA B LR E RN S h REIR R T T A 3Rt - BESR
HSBUR MEL D

i

&

\r

SMART EAST LIMITED, a company incorporated in the BVI on 27
November 2015 with limited liability, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Wang Dong Bin, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

FESMART EAST LIMITED © —fA20155F 11 B27BE RE R LA S+
MRZABRAR - REREEE(—BEERIRAMPRRZ )2
BHA

collectively, the five southern provinces in the PRC, including
Guangdong, Guangxi, Yunan, Guizhou and Hainan

EPBELERSTEONSE  BRER  EBEA - EF - ENLER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBBARSMERAT]

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance

1REA A RGRGIRE T &l HEEE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR EMARAE T &AREE
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Definitions

B

“Takeovers Code”

[yl

“Target Company”

[BRERA]]

“Target Group”
[BREHE]

“Tianjin TEDA"

[RiEZE

“Union Sino”

[ Union Sino

"US$” or “US Dollar”

ES

“VAT"
[EEH]

240 Annual Report 2019

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs in Hong
Kong as approved by the SFC and as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

BEBRARWE A ERMEETR > SRESHELKTRE
A1~ HFRB AR M B

Great Progress International Limited, a company incorporated in the
BVI with limited liability
HHEBBRBR AR — RN RBRLFSTMAZEER AR

the Target Company and its subsidiaries

BRARMEKBAT

RZZREZBE HHR A F(Tianjin TEDA Jinlian Electric Power
Company Limited*), which is an electric power generation company
as well as electric power distribution company established in the PRC
operating electric power grid at county level

BREFEEIMENARRAT > R—RERPEKZNFREFELEE

BRI REEE AR

UNION SINO HOLDINGS LIMITED, a company incorporated in the BVI
on 4 January 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Wu Zhan Jian, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

#EUNION SINO HOLDINGS LIMITED * 7A2016%F 1 B4ABfE LB R LB S
MK IBERAR - AREVIAE(—BEERRRAIRRR 2 —)
2EHE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

EXBAEERET

Value-added tax
FEIL (R

OneForce Holdings Limited
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